
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




'q+7 leqLUeAoN o+


$ [ z Jeqo+)o ruor] uoJ +or{+ uor+)ele eLl+ }o stlnser aLI+ sulo+uof, +roder s!L.lI


'uor+lsod ee+snl+ eq+ loJ eto^ PuP ldl^Lu esn o+ Je+sl6er uo) PUnj uolsued


eL|+ }o sreqrueu ero toql seeLoldue l';uo 'lul^u 1o1rod raqueu
ern)es s11 6u1sn uol+f,ole eq+ pe+lnpuo) JUI 'Je/Y\er€ plro)'uo1+re;e


ro+ e+oplpuo) euo +o +ueruef,old eq+ pa,rorddo Puo O I reqo+)O '(opuoyy
uo +oru aa++rrutuo) 6u11ou1tuop eq+'(r1;od uo!+f,ela Jdl tl+t^ a)uoplof,)o ul


{xxxi trr.*m* grdffiwffi#*greffi ,smffiA{}:dwffi







I e60d


ro+leJ!o e^!+nlex:l


uolstv IAtXV)


,1 A
'(gelerul5


'slqlqxa peq)o+to aq+ u! pepelJel


(1elo.rn33o olo s+lnsel eqt Puo 'se1nl uo1+lele pup sr*o1Lq L1r3 eql q+!^\ eluoPlo)f,o u! +no PelJlpl ueeq


sor{ uolpela 9 [OZ eq+ lpql uoluldo Jno s! +! 's11nser puo sernpocold uolpele sq+ Jo ^ 
alleJ Jno uo peso€


elop (q ss+ol lo Jeqrunu lplol :s+lnsa1 lo)!+srtots o


s+ollpq pelo^ ,o uoltolnqpl :sllnssu uolpell o
:sr ollo, so oloreq peqlp+o ero pup pelelduor ueeq e^oq suoltolnqol loulJ .


'+olloq .redod o


.to1 slsanbal ou ete/v\ eteql '.lelnduoo p oI sssf,fo e^oq +ou prp I'eq+ 11 ledod lsanbel see(o;dute


P|noqs rolloq .redpd o Puo JU](tu qonoqr 3le/v\ e+o^ p;nol seel.o;drue qrrq*r l'q spoq+e1y o


luaurerunouuD ,o Ador 3 goder du;q3;1nry - q6nolq+ ps)lrll yog'L PUo


ego; uedo %VL qtt^ srequlsqns g I t'8 o+ JU:l (q tues so/'r lloue roq+ouo qt/ge /Ot uO o
Iaflals/'AeN


eeAo;dru3 g loz raquo^oN - e tlqlqxl - elol o Isof, o+ n oLl Pup uolpele eq+ 6u11;o+aP


ef3luo uo r{l!x see(o;dure 0Z6'lol pellor.u so/,r r€[els/v\eN JU] eq+ 9rc(,/ge /Ot "o 
o


luoruerunouuo Jo {dor a yoder dur1q311nry - Z tlqlqxl - q6norq+ Pe))!ll %o L'9 puo e+er


uedo yo7.LZ .l+!^ sreqlrrsqns e I L'9 o+ lueuef,unouuo lloue uo lues Ju] 9 LOe /te /Ot uO o
spllDO Jo AIlf, ruorJ llptul - L llT!{x1


- see(oldtue llp Jo sesserPpo llours llo tl+!^\ lUl pepl'ro'rd (13 aq+ puo pe+senbe'r e171 o


Ju:l(ur 6ulsn e1o,t o1 (llunpoddo eq+ seeLo;drue ;1o ue't16 e^nq eAA '
'sr'ro1Lq sl! qr!^\ e3uDPlo))o


u! solloo Jo &l) eq+ lo punJ lueuerl+eX ,see(o1du3 eq+ Jo uolpele 9 IOZ €tl+ pepnpuo] soq J]o+s lul oql


LOegl sPxsI'so;;oq


OgfZ s+lns'1aer15 poed q+roN 009
see+snrl ,o Ploo8


spllpO Jo &!f oW Jo PunJ +ueuo;1+e6 ,see(o1dur3


g LOZ '/_ leque^oN


srlnsru Nolt33lI lSrSnur


(fU=) punl lueluerlteg ,see(oldul
(tUl) punl luatuellla1 ,saeAo;dut3







z a6od


o/"oy.z L :+nournl relon


LOZt 3sresn JUI(u perelsloeu lplol


16e :sre+on PrlpA lolol


0z6' I :sre+o^ elql6lll lo+ol


srs^louv uo!+lel:l


9 LOZ


9 LOZ'l reqtlle^oN







e e6od


/-/- serldxe uolsslulxo) {W


spxol Jo o+o+S'r!lqnd (ro1o51


*,f'tff%/t"


'gLO(, requs^oN to (op ql slgr eru eroleq peqylsqns puo ol uro^ S


se+o^ le+o+ /6t rer er€ 'o oFe)
rsquew Prpog


:ure+ 6u!+o,\ g LOZ aq+ ro+ sllnser sqt erp 6uranol;o1 eq1


;ffi: t?ir.i,::.e.


80490-/0 s34o(:l 'lxu[3 
^y 8t68ll # 0t AUVT0N


sEr€I lo slsts 'cflgnd A.,BU{
Nllm fl rM5.rH


(lUI) punJ lueuerlou ,see{o1dtu3







f e6od


.- -------*GTt) punJ rsafi;tlau Faa,toiauri







I


'autluo oalsnJl Jorr alo^
ilaql ]se3 ue3 Aeq] aJe/v\e u]aql8ulleu lteua ue aaAoldua qlea puas ll,a/y\ 'uorleullorrut s!ql q1!M isassaJppe


lleua saaAo;dua Jo +sll 
^sf,' 


e au puas noA ue3 'd;aq .rnoA paau I aJaq/v\ st s!q] uorlsala IUI s!t.l]
ul aulluo alo^ pue ;alst8ar uec Aeql aJeme r.uaql8u1>;eur seaAo;dua lle ol lteua ue puas o1 alll p.en11 '1y3Aru


Jo srasn palelsl8al oJe uotlelndod aaAoJdrua eqlJolleq Al.reap 'JUlAul Jo srasn pa.ralsr8a.r aq lsnu
saaAoJdua alon alnf,as e lsef, 01 'punl aq] o1lsof, ou le uot]tala pasoddoun ue unJ uef, o/v\ ;eyod 3g3Aur aqt
q8noqt Aes o1Addeq u,l 'uorpe;a pasoddoun ue ur uorlf,ala aalsnl] e Jo (OOO'OIS) rsoc luerr;ruBrs slq] arnpaJ
ol aauluuo3 Sutleutu.toN oq] Aq pa4se uaaq aneq aM 'uotltsod uado aql ro; Suruunl saleptpuel lo Jaqtilnu
aq]]ossa;ple8a.ruol]f,alaueploqolVOr.raldeq3luaunlopturu.ranotlulaqlAqparrnbelaJeaM'ra/naJg


e1re3 'aalsnJl JUl Jol unJ o] aleprpues euo paleururou aalll,uruo3 Surleurulou JUI aql qlOT Jaqopg uO


'etut8.tt1


uor]lall aalsnJf 193 :pa[qng
A;;oy11 ';1o.ue3 la8puaq13 prne6 1r.ue1 ln6 luotslv;fuaq3:r3


:o1
6d SS:€S:€ qTOZ'tI Jaqo]lg ,Aeprl1 :1ua5


suJeH esstlahl :[!oJJ


6VZ9L XJ 
6sellec


1ee4s IrBed r{iloN 009
punC ]ueruer4e5 ,saedoldurg - selpqyo fir3


rotcorr6l findsq
e8pueqlg .) pl^€C


'suo4senb due e,req no.(gr l\ou{ etu }af '6enber penordde rre sr srr{J


'eur8rrn


uor]3all aelsnrf lUl :aU :pe[qn5
uolslv lfuaqf lAllot4 ,llorre3 trn6 ,ule1 :cX


erurtr14,uos;ete;1 :esstlat4,suleg :o1
l td LZ:E 9TOZ'VT raqollg ,Aep1.rg :1ua5


[3.ro'p asel I ep@ a8pr.raqlep: o1; I eu] atpuaqlS pt^e6 : uro4


erur&r1


'as;a Eurqflue paau noAy rvroul etrt la'l


:slueluqrEuv
:pa[qng


:)1
:ol


:luos
:l,uou


'e 
L,i p^y?"W


u,t >75 S)tl7e llvwa hoe /_
xslx'9T6T0T - ltetua uetltntf,


uorpall aelsrul lul :lu
uolslv l^roqf 1IJ1oy1 ,;;o.ue31ure1 rn6


stleH esstla6l :a6puaqt3 prne6


f\,ld 90:S 7TOZ' 6I raqolto'{epsaupall
< tuo:'11eq(11)sellep@uosleleq'erurErrn> erur6,lrl,uosleJpH


srrJeH ess!lehl







dJo'+JaseTrep'MMM
IOZSL sexaf 'se11eg


'1aa;15 TJead qUoN AO9


6tLL-O8S-VTZ
ua8eue6 suoTle)TUnuuof


srJJeH essTTaW


* 1v:7*.:.:1 * t*a ae p :. ? :i-
si-l BJe!&<lrS,s*,&*83 !f osrz alTns


'd;aq rnoA JoJ aoue^pe ut slueql







9IOZILIII0J I gqlqug g:p1ry06 IJepZqZ6Ee LlJg gJVVJqZpV:nLrutox. Zelrqore-u8reduec.y 1 sn77:dpq


aJou pue 'salppdn ptep 's8uqaau Jaquou allt ,saeu lsatpl aq] qlla otpp ol dn daey


StvctciqYS lHl 13lt4l
.a1r^tas uorsugd jo sr{laou 6 puE rt€aA 6Z seq elrel .}uau}edaC


sarAras Surplrng pue tlaudlnbl aql rot Ea)!turs lelJueurl lo la8eue!! aqt 5l euel
'53al5nt.L 


]o pteo€ Jl3 aqlJo Jtelll-arrA
lurrjn! aql lail6lg !lJe) ,uoqlaF tol Elpplpuea auo Io luaualeld eql paAojddp pue OI
,aqo]ro l/lepuoN uo:oe irlttuuol SuueuruoN aql Alllod uo!])313 J!: r1$d 3)uepjolte !l


'ud S )P 
' 


raqueAoN it€plJl uo pua
IIM pue up g p Id raqolro f.Ep:JJ uo uogf,el; aql ul Suqo utBaq ,lt^1 saololdul .uooral6
ro, u€do uollrsod aatsnl] euo seq lul real :rq-[ .saeiolduE iq pap3la alp uori^1 jo aarL]l
's3.lsn{ }o pJeog jaquau ua^as e lq pau.^o8 sr (J8l) punJ llaua:qag .taa,{o1du: aq1


W H=*?YXrA*N s tX HX&*93*


N0ll0lt]tw
# e#ffi


^ 
oleq ra^ll aqt aas aspald 'uolllalS aelsn]l eql uo uollplulo]ut e_lolu JoJ


'lU3H y)ll 
^epot 


slrels tpql uorllall aetsnll l;l alll ur ato^ o-L


x*113+:=
++isn-:j, .=uE1j tri**J*j:E€s *ri} rji e;*,1 ** jE#3j-{."! *: ui,&*:


^ alelsuErl


-'ffi EiX uusn pur*


'uorled!lu6 rlaql
roJ sala8atao aallluuoJ tutl!utuoN
aql Jo qJea lueqt ol arll plno^r J83


no^ iuEql


V roou aluaJal,uof, '/NJll
eI!?/! 00qI 'lleH llD sElie0


rlld at - Nv 0I
9I0U ,tZ raqopo


'suoltef,rlJenb Jnq ]noqe aJou ureal
pupelpp'FUpr aqlt6au otArunloddo
ue nol a^rE lira unloJ eleplpuel sql


J!! ir.rl lr5 'B!eo^ ro Bur;arsr'ar alq.orr a^"t ;:iiiffi?:r';:ITr1fi 'eprrj !o pua pue l V 8 te IZ raqor)O ,epuJ lt8eq lll^r uoulala aql


no,l aro,tsq elo^ or rq'u 3qi uo iurr avr a'n u"r 
""^ 


rrtj,"o i-o#."*l';$il 'ie^1e lqBu €to^ lou pue ue?Jfs aql llxa ot uoBdg rql aneq no readde 1|m
ratsn4 ro, olo^ o] noA Sugduord uaalJs e Jgl^u olul 3ol noi re uoos rV


'aalsnlr loJ alo^lnod lsE ol elqe aq llfl no^ 'Btol uo[e]lsllil rql pOIEldooj
a^eq no,{ a}uo rsurol lqSJr raddn oql ul lul ra}slBa, aqt l)ltl pu€ 3ro
jraspllep aM ol 03 J!1,{u Jo rasn pa€}srgar E lou are noi lt -aelsnr.L ro}
alo^ ot stdword ;qt ilo[s] pu? ur 3ol !U:iu ]o lasn peja]srBar e are no.rl l


pue rarn p sp !.rqgii itpu punj ?r.{r or arnq,rr;".:Ti[ 
=:t^:',*:t;.,jT;


7yo 1 e8e6


sanssJ lsEd ^ atgllsaqucsqns







9TOT,ILIII6AZ6OZZqOS:p1?06 IJ epzgz6 Ee LIJ; gJn7Jqzpr:niluoc' I ellqcr?-u3red;,l;el p 1sn1 
: dpq


pue E.ro yesellep r*rrv"t o1 oE 3g3duu Jo Jesn palalsl8al e lou oJe nor{;1 'ee1sru1


lol etol ol sldruo.rd arlt /v\olloJ pup u! Eo1 '393,(ru ]o rasn pelelstEal e a.re no[,t;


uollfala aalsnJl eql


ul elol pue rasn p se ralsrEar Aetu punl eql ol atnquluos oqm saaloldtua (1t1 11y


r3Isnur uoj SroA unoA rsvf or Jul^ur 3sn


y r.uoou arua;e;uo3 '513;,1


PlirrPW 0Og [ 'llPH ftr3 se11e6


wdzr-wv0l
gtoz 'Lz raqolro


:slrpto6 Eulleew


'6urleau s,/v\oJJor.lrol puelle
aseald ';, uorlrsodord pue Jo/v\oJg eUeJ ]noqe ororu u.tpal


oI'7LOZ'g reque,roll uo pessed ;r saa[olduta Mau pup pun]


uorsuad aql ol pedurr sll pue ;. uorlrsodold lnoqe snounl aJp


saa[o'1dua r(ueyy 'suotlsanb uorsued ,see[olduta ssarppp IltM
EUeJ 'suorlerr;11enb roq ]noqe aJour uJeai pue JaMaJg eppl
laau ol [lrunyoddo up no( err6 11u* trtnJol e]pprpueJ aqf


? Jaqwa^oN - t.Z )aqopo pouad uoq)ala aalsnJl


.r3r!,\?Jg EIJB]


SIVOIONVf ]]ISNUI ]HI I]]W ONV SWOf


godau.IseJsnr$ry


sl l}tn$ra&D:rs,1l
,tr nj lrruF{rrt ,!lr&Ii{€


t!v...#
ataa
a.,' i*
I.k-


*


SSUr glelsuEJ|


7go 1 e8e6


sonssl lsedr ale!$oqucsqns







9r0ztLfit60Z60ZZq0g:pl?06IJepZqZ6EeLUggJr7JqzpV:nlprox.lolrr{cre_u8redruec.71sn77:dsq


,oz9LxL 'selle0 ' 09tz allns . laorls pead i-l}]oN 009 . sEllec,o &re slillo punl ]ueu]e}leH ,saa[olduj3
@ IEti--1fl-Lu6Eeqr5EfrEun idit@ETFle@


<?ESE:ppV-]EEE!5 ol luas seM treura srq1.


'oJotu
pue (selepdn plpp 's8urraau Jequau arrl (smeu 


lselpl eLlr q}!it arep ot dn deay


W EI uosnpUIJ


'ygy reldeq3 o1 sa8ueq: pasodo.rd Eutureldxa
oq] uo surluor uL1o[ oo]snJl JUI Jo oeptlr aos ot @


S/y\lN IHI Nl lul


'se8ueqr lr;auaq aql 
^q 


pelredurr
aq lou plnoM seajrlal pup sJequeul palsa^ paJjerap ,saa{o1due lueJlnf .91,02


';,g ;egue:ac Jolje pa;rq sae,{oldrua 1:edr.ur (1uo 11urr VOr ,reldeql o1 se8ueqr
pesodo.rd aqf 'uorllrq EL'zS punJ uorsuad aqt a^es [ptu ll ,sassed 


1 uorlrsodo,r6,t;


alrs su.ll uo L uol]rsodol6 lnoqe suorlsanb pe>lse [lluenber;. euos palsod seLI JU]


3J-lssl/v\ JUr lHl No tNo NotJsodoud tnogv luow Nuvl'l


'gtLL-1gg-V !Z 1e Isep dleq :Ul alll llel 
,Eurto,r.ro EuualsrBa.t


elqnoJl a,req no,( Jl 'elo^ rnor 1se: ol wd E lp t Jaquo^op ,[epu; lr]un e^eq no,\


'a6ed 393{ur
aql a^pal no[ ero;eq a]o^ ol 1q8r.r aq1 uo rurl eqt esn uBr no[ uorldo ]eql asor.ll


no{ ru '[ervre lq8r.r a]on lou pue uaeJls euJl ]rxa ol uor]do aq] alpq no1 ..readde


Ilffi aolsnJl Jo, elo^ ol no{ Eurldruo-rd ueeJts e ,3g3[ru olur Eo1 no{ sB uoos sv


'ealsrul loj alol lnoA ]ser ol alqe aq ll1t* noI uu.ro; uorlellsrEa.l
eq1 palalduof e^eLl no.( arug 'reuJof lqEr: .raddn aql ul4url ;e1sr8er aL{t rfrlf,


7p 7eBe4







Trustee Election


Sent
Fri, Oct 21, 2016 9:00 am 


Page 1 of 7Trustee Election


11/7/2016https://us14.admin.mailchimp.com/reports/print-report?id=62355







Sent 10/21/16 9:00AM Trustee Election


1


2


4


5


6


Table of contents


Overview 


Opens by location 


Click performance 


Social stats 


Advanced reports 


Page 2 of 7Trustee Election


11/7/2016https://us14.admin.mailchimp.com/reports/print-report?id=62355







Sent 10/21/16 9:00AM Trustee Election


List: Employees' Retirement Fund Of The 
City Of Dallas Announcements 


Subject: [Dallas ERF] Trustee Election - 
Voting Starts Friday 10/21  


0 
Orders


$0.00 
Average order revenue


Open rate


16.5%


(Select your industry)


21.2% 


List average


Industry average 


Click rate


2.8%


(Select your industry)


1,437 
Opened


417 
Clicked


1,712 
Bounced


6,794 79.9%


2,892


11/7/16 7:11AM


0 


Successful deliveries


Total opens


Last opened


Forwarded


29.0% 


547 


11/4/16 12:46PM


0 


Overview


8,506 Recipients 


Delivered: Fri, Oct 21, 2016 9:00 am 


$0.00 
Total revenue


6.1% 


List average


Industry average 


7 
Unsubscribed


Clicks per unique opens


Total clicks


Last clicked


Abuse reports


Page 3 of 7Trustee Election


11/7/2016https://us14.admin.mailchimp.com/reports/print-report?id=62355







Sent 10/21/16 9:00AM Trustee Election


Country Opens Percent


 USA 2,765 97.3%


 Canada 71 2.5%


6 0.2%


 Germany 1 0.0%


Opens by location


Page 4 of 7Trustee Election


11/7/2016https://us14.admin.mailchimp.com/reports/print-report?id=62355







Sent 10/21/16 9:00AM Trustee Election


Click performance


URL Total Unique


https://www.dallaserf.org/user/login 529 (97%) 410 (96%)


http://www.facebook.com/dallaserf 12 (2%) 10 (2%)


http://www.twitter.com/dallaserf 6 (1%) 5 (1%)


Page 5 of 7Trustee Election


11/7/2016https://us14.admin.mailchimp.com/reports/print-report?id=62355







Sent 10/21/16 9:00AM Trustee Election


Social stats


No Facebook activity yet
Learn how to add a like button to your next campaign


EepUrl activity - 1 clicks


No geographic clicks have been registered for this campaign yet.


No EepUrl activity to report yet.


Page 6 of 7Trustee Election


11/7/2016https://us14.admin.mailchimp.com/reports/print-report?id=62355







Sent 10/21/16 9:00AM Trustee Election


Advanced reports


Email domain performance


Domain Email Bounces Opens Clicks Unsubs


dallascity… 5718 
(67%)


1374 
(24%)


744 (17%) 334 (8%) 1 (0%)


gmail.com 654 (8%) 2 (0%) 205 (31%) 15 (2%) 3 (0%)


yahoo.co… 622 (7%) 1 (0%) 178 (29%) 15 (2%) 3 (0%)


dpd.dalla… 228 (3%) 25 (11%) 33 (16%) 15 (7%) 0 (0%)


dallaslibr… 152 (2%) 19 (13%) 14 (11%) 9 (7%) 0 (0%)


Other 1132 
(13%)


291 (26%) 263 (31%) 29 (3%) 0 (0%)


Page 7 of 7Trustee Election


11/7/2016https://us14.admin.mailchimp.com/reports/print-report?id=62355







10/27 Trustee 
Candidate Meeting


Sent
Wed, Oct 26, 2016 12:26 pm 


Page 1 of 910/27 Trustee Candidate Meeting


11/7/2016https://us14.admin.mailchimp.com/reports/print-report?id=67275







Sent 10/26/16 12:26PM 10/27 Trustee Candidate Meeting


1


2


3


4


5


6


Table of contents


Overview 


Opens by location 


Subscriber activity 


Click performance 


Social stats 


Advanced reports 


Page 2 of 910/27 Trustee Candidate Meeting


11/7/2016https://us14.admin.mailchimp.com/reports/print-report?id=67275







Sent 10/26/16 12:26PM 10/27 Trustee Candidate Meeting


List: Employees' Retirement Fund Of The 
City Of Dallas Announcements 


Subject:  Come and Meet the ERF Trustee 
Candidate - 10/27 @ City Hall 


0 
Orders


$0.00 
Average order revenue


Open rate


16.5%


(Select your industry)


14.0% 


List average


Industry average 


Click rate


2.8%


(Select your industry)


1,101 
Opened


127 
Clicked


277 
Bounced


7,838 96.6%


2,210


11/7/16 5:44AM


0 


Successful deliveries


Total opens


Last opened


Forwarded


11.5% 


162 


11/3/16 10:49AM


0 


Overview


8,115 Recipients 


Delivered: Wed, Oct 26, 2016 12:26 pm 


$0.00 
Total revenue


1.6% 


List average


Industry average 


1 
Unsubscribed


Clicks per unique opens


Total clicks


Last clicked


Abuse reports


Page 3 of 910/27 Trustee Candidate Meeting


11/7/2016https://us14.admin.mailchimp.com/reports/print-report?id=67275







Sent 10/26/16 12:26PM 10/27 Trustee Candidate Meeting


Country Opens Percent


 USA 2,132 97.7%


 Canada 47 2.2%


3 0.1%


 Germany 1 0.0%


Opens by location


Page 4 of 910/27 Trustee Candidate Meeting


11/7/2016https://us14.admin.mailchimp.com/reports/print-report?id=67275







Sent 10/26/16 12:26PM 10/27 Trustee Candidate Meeting


24-hour performance Opens Clicks


86https://www.dallaserf.org/proposed-changes-to-chapter-40A.


64http://www.dallaserf.org


10http://www.facebook.com/dallaserf


2http://www.twitter.com/dallaserf


22lisa.penney@dallascityhall.com


62sea56789@aol.com


Subscriber activity


Top links clicked


Subscribers with most opens


12:00PM 4:00PM 8:00PM 12:00AM 4:00AM 8:00AM


0


50


100


150


200


250


300


Page 5 of 910/27 Trustee Candidate Meeting


11/7/2016https://us14.admin.mailchimp.com/reports/print-report?id=67275







21maximiano.castillo@dallascityhall.com


28Margie.Saabedra@dallascityhall.com


29steven.flores@dallascityhall.com


Page 6 of 910/27 Trustee Candidate Meeting


11/7/2016https://us14.admin.mailchimp.com/reports/print-report?id=67275







Sent 10/26/16 12:26PM 10/27 Trustee Candidate Meeting


Click performance


URL Total Unique


https://www.dallaserf.org/proposed-changes-t… 86 (53%) 70 (52%)


http://www.dallaserf.org 64 (40%) 53 (39%)


http://www.facebook.com/dallaserf 10 (6%) 10 (7%)


http://www.twitter.com/dallaserf 2 (1%) 2 (1%)


Page 7 of 910/27 Trustee Candidate Meeting


11/7/2016https://us14.admin.mailchimp.com/reports/print-report?id=67275







Sent 10/26/16 12:26PM 10/27 Trustee Candidate Meeting


Social stats


No Facebook activity yet
Learn how to add a like button to your next campaign


EepUrl activity - 1 clicks


No geographic clicks have been registered for this campaign yet.


No EepUrl activity to report yet.


Page 8 of 910/27 Trustee Candidate Meeting


11/7/2016https://us14.admin.mailchimp.com/reports/print-report?id=67275







Sent 10/26/16 12:26PM 10/27 Trustee Candidate Meeting


Advanced reports


Email domain performance


Domain Email Bounces Opens Clicks Unsubs


dallascity… 5561 
(69%)


2 (0%) 530 (10%) 101 (2%) 1 (0%)


gmail.com 585 (7%) 0 (0%) 162 (28%) 4 (1%) 0 (0%)


yahoo.co… 543 (7%) 0 (0%) 165 (30%) 6 (1%) 0 (0%)


dpd.dalla… 227 (3%) 0 (0%) 17 (7%) 1 (0%) 0 (0%)


dallaslibr… 152 (2%) 0 (0%) 12 (8%) 6 (4%) 0 (0%)


Other 1047 
(13%)


275 (26%) 215 (28%) 9 (1%) 0 (0%)


Page 9 of 910/27 Trustee Candidate Meeting


11/7/2016https://us14.admin.mailchimp.com/reports/print-report?id=67275







COME AND MEET THE TRUSTEE CANDIDATE


Trustee election period October 21 - November 4


The Candidate Forum will give you an opportunity to meet 
Carla Brewer and learn more about her qualifications. Carla 
will address employees' pension questions. Many employees 
are curious about Proposition 1 and its impact to the pension 
fund and new employees if passed on November 8, 2016. To 
learn more about Carla Brewer and Proposition 1, please 
attend tomorrow's meeting.


Meeting Details: 
October 27, 2016
10 AM - 12 PM
Dallas City Hall, 1500 Marilla
L1FN, Conference Room A


Subscribe Share Past IssuesSubscribe Share Past IssuesSubscribe Share Past Issues TransTransTrans


Page 1 of 3


11/7/2016http://us14.campaign-archive1.com/?u=4d2bf44f55f17e392b2def190&id=80b2209209







USE myERF TO CAST YOUR VOTE FOR TRUSTEE


All City employees who contribute to the Fund may register as a user and vote in 
the Trustee election.


If you are a registered user of myERF, log in and follow the prompts to vote for 
Trustee. If you are not a registered user of myERF go to www.dallaserf.org and 
click the register link in the upper right corner. Once you have completed the 
registration form you will be able to cast your vote for trustee.


As soon as you log into myERF, a screen prompting you to vote for Trustee will 
appear. You have the option to exit the screen and not vote right away, if you 
chose that option you can use the link on the right to vote before you leave the 
myERF page.


You have until Friday, November 4 at 5 PM to cast your vote. If you have trouble 
registering or voting, call the ERF help desk at 214-580-7738.


LEARN MORE ABOUT PROPOSITION ONE ON THE ERF WEBSITE


ERF has posted some frequently asked questions about Proposition 1 on this site 
https://www.dallaserf.org/proposed-changes-to-chapter-40A.


If Proposition 1 passes, it may save the pension fund $2.15 billion. The proposed 
changes to Chapter 40A will only impact employees hired after December 31, 
2016. Current employees, deferred vested members and retirees would not be 
impacted by the benefit changes.


ERF IN THE NEWS


Visit our Facebook page to see video of ERF Trustee John Jenkins on the news 
explaining proposed changes to Chapter 40A.


Keep up to date with the latest news, like member meetings, data updates, and 
more.


Page 2 of 3


11/7/2016http://us14.campaign-archive1.com/?u=4d2bf44f55f17e392b2def190&id=80b2209209







This email was sent to <<Email Address>>
why did I get this? unsubscribe from this list update subscription preferences


Employees' Retirement Fund of the City of Dallas · 600 North Pearl Street · Suite 2450 · Dallas, Tx 75201 · USA 


Page 3 of 3


11/7/2016http://us14.campaign-archive1.com/?u=4d2bf44f55f17e392b2def190&id=80b2209209







®® 


November 2016


Page 2
Condolences  
to our Recently 
Deceased 
Pensioners


Page 3
What it Means 
to be an ERF 
Trustee


Page 3
Congratulations  
to Our Recent 
Retirees


4


Page 2
Help Your 
Teenager take 
care of Their 
First Car


Page 4
2016 Trustee 
Election


“It is our mission to provide retirement benefits and superior service to advance the financial security of our members.”


City of Dallas Proposition 1 to Save $2 Billion
From the desk of ERF’s Executive Director - Cheryl D. Alston


Recent studies find that people are living longer. To account for the additional costs associated with longer life spans, the 
Employees’ Retirement Fund (ERF) has recommended changes to the pension plan for new employees. These changes will 
not impact your pension benefits. The changes to the plan would only impact employees who are hired after December 
31, 2016. 
Who Will the Proposed Changes to Chapter 40A Impact?
The proposed changes to Chapter 40A will only impact employees hired after December 31, 2016. Current employees, 
deferred vested members and retirees would not be impacted by the benefit changes.
When Will the Changes Be Effective?
At this point, these changes have been approved by the Dallas ERF Board and the Dallas City Council. The next step is for the 
voters of the City of Dallas to approve Proposition 1 in the November election. If Proposition 1 is approved, it will save $2 
billion in future funding costs by establishing a new tier of benefits. Employees hired after December 31, 2016 will be in Tier 
B, with monthly benefits that take into account the expected increased lifespan and years in retirement. 
How are Benefits for Tier B Members (those hired after December 31, 2016) different from your Pension Benefit?


• The benefit multiplier would be reduced from 2.75% to 2.5%.
• Normal retirement age would increase from 60 to 65 with at least five years of credited pension service.
• The Rule of 78 would change to the Rule of 80 for the new employees and retirement benefits for anyone retiring 


before age 65 would be reduced.
• Service retirement for new members would be increased from 30 years to 40 years.
• The Health Benefit Supplement would not be available to new members.


What Will Happen If I Leave City Employment and Later Return?
That depends on how much pension service you have when you leave. If you leave your contributions in the pension fund 
and how long you are gone. You will not be impacted by the benefit changes if one of the following apply: 


• You have at least five years of pension service when you leave, and you do not withdraw your contributions.
• You have less than five years of pension service, do not withdraw your contributions and return to work for the city 


within six years of  your termination.
• You withdraw your contributions, return to work for the city within six years of your termination, and repurchase 


your service within three years of your return.
If you have additional questions, visit our website at www.dallaserf.org /proposed-changes-to-chapter-40A or call Melissa 
Harris, Communications Manager, at 214-580-7719.







2
A Guide to Help Your Teenager Take Care of Their First Car
Source: carcare.org


Buying a car for your teenage driver can require extensive planning.  First, 
you must either teach them to drive or hire someone to teach them and then 
they’ll need to get a license. Usually, at some point, your teenager will want 
you to buy them a car. Purchasing a car for your teenager is not a simple 
process. You will need to ensure that the car is safe and reliable and find 
adequate insurance. Before you hand those keys over to your teen driver like 
most parents, you should have a talk about the rules of the road. You also 
need to determine who will be responsible for the maintenance of the car.


The Car Care Council’s online custom service schedule and e-mail reminder service at www.carcare.org can help 
young car owners like your teenager be more responsible. This easy-to-use resource is free and can be personalized 
to help make auto care more convenient and economical. 


All your new young driver has to do is go to www.carcare.org and click on the “Build Your Service Schedule Now,” 
link.  They will need to provide the car’s make, model and mileage information.  When a profile is established on the 
site, the system will send your teenager reminders about oil changes, tune ups, tire maintenance and even any recalls 
associated with their vehicle.


You can also order a free copy of the council’s Car Care Guide 
at www.carcare.org/car-care-guide. Available in English and 
Spanish, the popular guide uses easy-to-understand language. 
The guide includes descriptions of major car systems and lists 
questions to ask the mechanic. The Car Care Council is the 
source of information for the “Be Car Care Aware” consumer 
education campaign promoting the benefits of regular car 
care, maintenance and repair. For more information, log on 
to www.carcare.org.


Our Sincere Sympathy To The Families Of Our Deceased Members
May 2016 - August 2016


DEPARTMENT AGE
Aviation
Thomas H. Smith 69


Building Services
Glenn R. Pearson 59


Communication & Information Services
Francis N. Brooke 65


Fire
Rita J. Johnson 95


General Services
Billy W. Robinson 83


Library
Brenda Green 57


DEPARTMENT AGE
Park & Recreation
H. Merwyn Carnahan 81
Manuel Mijares 63
Andrew W. Bullock, Jr. 62


Police
Wayne K. Butts 86
Connie Alexander 71
Rodney Marshall 65
Andrea Carey 34


Public Works & Transportation
Mary E. Anderson 78


Sanitation Services
Kenneth R. Luckey 63


Strategic Customer Services
Darlene Green 51


DEPARTMENT AGE
Street Services
Mack J. Ortiz 64


Street, Sanitation & Code Enforcement
Dolores G. Ramirez 72


Trinity Watershed Management
Eddie B. Day 61


Water Utilities
Luis C. Flores 96
Marie G. Dunne 95
Raymond C. Williams 87
Lewis Hinton 86
Bobby R. Sims 81
Leroy Shackelford 80
Rudy N. Watson 69
Gregory T. Graham 66
Jimmy L. Cavet 63







3


Congratulations To Some Of Our Newest Retirees!
Employees who retired in the months of May 2016 - August 2016 and agreed to let us share the news 


are listed by their department and years of City service.


DEPARTMENT SERVICE
Aviation
Robert L. Robinson, Jr. 8


City Attorney’s Office
Ileana N. Fernandez 16
Warren M. Ernst 12


Code Compliance Services
Pamela D. Anderson 24
Bennie S. Gaston 15
John S. Taylor 7


Convention & Event Services
Rickey Burns 17
Bernadine Hill 17


Court & Detention Services
Pamela L. Bowman 18


Environment & Health Services
Norma J. Piel-Brown 11


Equipment & Building Services
Arnold A. Castillo 32
Clifford D. Delley 32


Fire-Rescue
Brenda J. Simpson 36
Brian K. Roberts 25


Housing & Community Services
Sonia D. Haynes-Day 24
Thelma M. Tun-Thein 6


Judiciary
Phyllis P. Hillery 12


Library
Charlotte E. Bagh 26


DEPARTMENT SERVICE
Library, cont.
Gary W. Turner 25
Lela F. Fletcher 19
Leslie E. Reed 6


Park & Recreation
Carlos L. Strickland 28
Margaret A. Peters 24
Mark N. Bauman 9
Margaret L. Hanson 5
Andrew C. MacFarlane 5
Jerry D. Harrison 2


Planning & Development
Russell W. Wyman 11


Police
Patricia L. Page 34
Anita J. Bassinger 30
Angela B. Howard 30
Melissa G. Schimka 30
Linda L. Smith 27
Catherine F. Thomas 23
Diana L. Multop 19
Irma Huerta 18
Belinda H. Smith 10


Public Works
Mary L. Nix 15


Sanitation Services
Pablo E. Nino 19
Dwain L. Bowie 17
Angel Camarena 9
L.B. Davis 9


Street Services
Francisco Flores 31
Jesus Carrillo 30


DEPARTMENT SERVICE
Street Services, cont.
Russell A. Beals 22
Rose M. Miller 22
Mario H. Ramirez 12


Sustainable Development & Construction
Yemane Araya 31
Richard E Brown 25
Rhea C. Arterbury 8


Trinity Watershed Management
Harold W. Bishop 23


Water
George P. Campbell 40
Tina M. Williams 35
William D. Everly 32
Mashell A. Mallard 32
Terry L. Brown 31
Brian K. Cress, Sr. 30
Arturo A. Hernandez 30
James C. Ryan 30
Charles R. Garner 28
Aneydra S. Price 28
Francisco E. Picazo, Jr. 26
Rene A. Lee 25
James E. Taylor 21
Marvin A. Woods 21
Fredrick L. Bell 19
Sylvester A. Bemis 19
Samuel Hernandez 18
Evangelina Behzad 17
Dina J. Daulat 17
Gerald D. Murphy 17
Rita J. Eckles 15
Carlos L. Ortiz 13
Dwarkaprasad L. Acharya 11
James Mitchell 7
Terry M. Smith 5


What It Means to Be an ERF Trustee
ERF Trustees set policy and give the Fund its direction. Three of the seven Trustees that make up the ERF Board are 
elected by employees, three are appointed by the City Council and the seventh member is the City Auditor, ex officio.
As fiduciaries, Trustee decisions must be guided by the obligation to administer the Fund for the exclusive benefit of 
the members, retirees and beneficiaries. Trustees must become knowledgeable in areas of investment, management, 
actuarial policy and benefits administration.







®® 
PRESORTED
FIRST CLASS
U.S. POSTAGE
PAID
FT. WORTH, TX
PERMIT #711


4


ERF Trustee Election Choose your Representative
The  Employees’ Retirement Fund (ERF) is governed by a seven-member Board of Trustees, three of whom are elected 
by employees. This year ERF has one trustee position open for election to 
the Board. The open trustee employee position is currently held by Carla 
Brewer. 
There are several steps in the ERF Trustee election process.  First, 
employees from each department select co-workers to represent them 
at the Nominating Committee meeting.  At the Nominating Committee 
meeting, delegates vote to approve one or more employees who will run 
for the open Trustee position.  The employees who are nominated by the 
committee and who accept the nomination are then put on the ballot.  
A general election is then held, and employees choose which of the 
nominated candidates they would like to serve as their next ERF Trustee.


The 2016 ERF Trustee Nominating Committee met on Monday, October 
10th choosing only one employee to run in the Trustee election. Carla 
Brewer, who is Manager of Financial Services for the Equipment and 
Building Services Department and is the current Vice-Chair of the ERF 
Board of Trustees, is the sole nominee.  


Under current plan provisions, employees may only vote for individuals who are on the ballot and although only one 
individual is nominated, ERF is required to hold an election. Typically, elections cost the Fund over $10,000.  This year, 
to comply with the election requirement while reducing our costs, we will conduct the election on our website at 
www.dallaserf.org/myERF. You must be a registered user of myERF to vote. All City employees who contribute to the 
Fund may register as a user and vote in the Trustee election. Once you have registered for myERF, you will be able to 
view Carla’s 50-word statement and to cast your vote.


If you have trouble registering or voting, please call the ERF help desk at 214-580-7738. The election will begin on 
Friday, October 21 at 8 am and will end on Friday, November 4 at 5 pm.


2016 Candidate Forum
The Candidate Forum will give you an 
opportunity to meet the candidate and 
learn more about her qualifications.
October 27, 2016 - 10 am - 12 pm  
Dallas City Hall, 1500 Marilla 
L1FN, Conference Room A


Thank You
ERF would like to thank each of the 
Nominating Committee Delegates for 
their participation.


DallasERF         @DallasERF





		ElectionRptResults

		MailChmpOct21

		MailChmpOct27

		EmailMailchimp

		Active-October-2016










 
 
 
 


   
 
 


 


 
 
 


Employees’ Retirement Fund of the City of Dallas 
Executive Summary of Performance 


Third Quarter 2016 


 


 


 
 


Wilshire Associates Incorporated 
1299 Ocean Avenue, Suite 700 


Santa Monica, CA  90401 
Phone: 310-451-3051 


contactconsulting@wilshire.com 
 







  
 Wilshire Consulting 
 Executive Summary of Performance – September 30, 2016 
 Employees’ Retirement Fund of the City of Dallas 
 


Page 1 


 


Capital Market Overview 
U.S. Equity Market 
The U.S. stock market, represented by the Wilshire 5000 Total Market IndexSM, was up for the third quarter of 2016 by 4.29%.  This 
marks the fourth straight quarterly gain although most of the pricing activity occurred during roughly the first dozen trading days 
of the quarter.  The post-Bexit rebound resulted in a 3.7% gain in the U.S., with a modest net gain thereafter.  Interestingly, strong 
equity returns this year have coincided with a drop in corporate earnings.  However a major contributor to that decline is the 
Energy sector, which is suffering due to depressed oil prices.  It should be noted that reported earnings are historical in nature 
while equity prices are forward looking, so that earnings growth is not necessary for positive returns, at least in the short term.   


Large capitalization stocks underperformed smaller shares with the Wilshire Large-Cap IndexSM up 3.92% versus a gain of 7.67% 
for the Wilshire US Small-Cap IndexSM.  Small cap has performed better, generally, in 2016 with an index return in the double 
digits.  The Wilshire US Micro-Cap IndexSM was up 11.64% for the quarter and 8.16% year-to-date.  Growth stocks led value during 
the third quarter in both large- and small-cap spaces but trail for the calendar year.  


Sector performance was quite varied during the quarter.  The best performing sectors were Information Technology and 
Financials, up 12.6% and 4.7%, respectively, while the main laggards were Utilities (-5.7%) and Telecom (-4.4%).  


Real GDP growth during the first half of the year equaled 1.1% at an annualized rate.  The two main drivers of economic activity 
were personal consumption and private investment.  Solid jobs growth and a slow but upward trend in hourly earnings provided 
a boost as consumer spending contributed 2% to overall real growth.  Private investment, despite accounting for less than 20% of 
GDP, detracted -1%.  Businesses have been both spending less and drawing down their inventories.  Investments are down from a 
year ago for a total decline of      -1.5%.  Growth in inventories has been on the decline for more than a year now and shrank during 
the second quarter for the first time in five years.   
 
Fixed Income Market 
U.S. Treasury yields were on a slow and steady rise for most of the third quarter.  The bellwether 10-year Treasury yield reached a 
historic low of 1.37% in early July before reversing course and climbing to end the quarter at 1.60%.  The Federal Open Market 
Committee decided to leave the overnight rate unchanged at their September meeting, the sixth consecutive meeting with no 
interest rate increase.  Various market data and surveys express an expectation that the Committee will raise rates one more time 
in 2016, at their December meeting.  Credit spreads tightened during the quarter in both investment grade and high yield bonds.  
Sovereign bond yields fell across much of Europe but ticked higher in Japan.  
 
Non-U.S. Market 
Equity markets outside of the U.S. were in positive territory for both the third quarter and year-to-date, particularly within 
emerging countries.  The European Central Bank maintained their accommodative policies during the quarter while the Bank of 
England cut their bank rate to 0.25% in August and extended their existing quantitative easing program.  In Japan where the 
overnight rate is negative, the central bank announced a plan to target the 10-year bond yield near 0% in an effort to achieve their 
2% inflation goal.  Emerging market equities have benefitted throughout 2016 from strong economic growth within developing 
countries, asset inflows from investors seeking higher returns and economic resilience in China.   


 
Real Assets Market 
Real estate securities were down in the U.S. during the third quarter with better performance globally.  Commodities were down 
for the quarter as crude oil fell -0.2% to $48.24 per barrel after a strong run in prices during the first half of the year.  Natural gas 
prices were down, as well, with a loss of -0.6%, ending the quarter at $2.91 per million BTUs.  MLP returns were positive as the 
sector experienced a small recovery in drilling activity and rig counts.  Finally, gold prices were down, but with little movement 
during the quarter, and finished at approximately $1,317 per troy ounce, down -0.3% from last quarter.   







  
 Wilshire Consulting 
 Executive Summary of Performance – September 30, 2016 
 Employees’ Retirement Fund of the City of Dallas 
 


Page 2 


 


Summary of Index Returns 
For Periods Ended September 30, 2016 


 
  One Three Five Ten 


 Quarter Year Years Years Years 
Domestic Equity      


 Standard & Poor's 500     3.85%    15.43%     11.16%    16.37%      7.24% 
 Wilshire 5000       4.29 15.35     10.65     16.31   7.44 
 Wilshire 4500       7.08 14.79       8.29     16.61   8.49 
 Wilshire Large Cap      3.92 15.32     11.01     16.26   7.34 
 Wilshire Small Cap      7.67  15.99       7.81     16.86   8.72 
 Wilshire Micro Cap    11.64  12.40       5.59     16.12   5.82 


      Domestic Equity      
 Wilshire Large Value     1.79%     18.76%     10.71%    15.82%      6.16% 
 Wilshire Large Growth       6.23  11.25     11.20     16.67   8.44 
 Wilshire Mid Value       2.20  20.15     11.39     18.21   8.54 
 Wilshire Mid Growth       6.05    8.38       6.30     14.92   9.13 
 Wilshire Small Value       6.05  21.17     10.20     18.19   8.48 
 Wilshire Small Growth       9.35  10.54       5.23     15.38   8.88 


      International Equity      
 MSCI All World ex U.S. (USD)    6.91%      9.26%       0.18%      6.04%      2.16% 
 MSCI All World ex U.S. (local currency)      6.36   7.75       5.93 10.71   3.38 
 MSCI EAFE       6.43   6.52       0.48  7.39   1.82 
 MSCI Europe       5.40   2.49      -0.56  7.46   1.50 
 MSCI Pacific       8.46  14.74       2.31  7.31   2.50 
 MSCI Emerging Markets Index       9.03     16.78      -0.56  3.03   3.94 


      Domestic Fixed Income      
 Barclays Aggregate Bond      0.46%      5.19%      4.03%     3.08%      4.79% 
 Barclays Credit      1.23   8.30       5.44  4.83   5.77 
 Barclays Mortgage       0.60   3.61       3.61  2.65   4.65 
 Barclays Treasury      -0.28   4.09       3.38  2.18   4.46 
Citigroup High Yield Cash Pay      5.45     12.71       4.76  7.83   7.31 


 Barclays US TIPS      0.96   6.11       4.27  3.62   5.00 
 91-Day Treasury Bill      0.10   0.27       0.12  0.10   0.92 


      International Fixed Income      
 Citigroup Non-U.S. Gov. Bond    0.60%     12.61%      1.21%      0.24%      3.94% 
 Citigroup World Gov. Bond      0.30    9.71       1.78   0.77   4.10 
 Citigroup Hedged Non-U.S. Gov.       0.10    8.13       6.38   5.23   4.79 


      
Currency*      


 Euro vs. $     1.16%       0.68%     -6.01%     -3.48%     -1.19% 
 Yen vs. $       1.31  18.27      -1.04  -5.31   1.55 
 Pound vs. $      -2.83 -14.24      -7.09  -3.57  -3.57 


      Real Estate      
Wilshire REIT Index   -1.21%     17.94%     14.34%    15.82%      5.93% 
Wilshire RESI      -1.40  18.45     14.61     16.02   5.93 
NCREIFC Property Index      1.77    9.22     11.30     11.18   7.22 







  
 Wilshire Consulting 
 Executive Summary of Performance – September 30, 2016 
 Employees’ Retirement Fund of the City of Dallas 
 


Page 3 


 


Total Fund Overview 
 


Asset Class Performance 


 
Total Fund Asset Growth 


 
♦ At the end of the third quarter of 2016, the Fund’s market value was $3,357.2 million, which represented an 


increase of $79.9 million in total net asset value over the previous quarter. The change in the Fund’s value was 
driven by $32.9 million in net contributions and a $117.3 million investment gain. Meanwhile, $67.4 million in net 
distributions and $2.9 million in investment management fees flowed out of the Fund. 


($Mil) (%) QTR YTD 1-year 3-year 5-year 10-year
U.S. Equity 488.8     14.6 5.03 7.86 14.39 10.00 15.93 7.00
International Equity 482.9     14.4 7.51 5.01 9.58 1.35 8.02 3.23
Global Equity 158.8     4.7 5.69 4.61 10.07 3.85 -.- -.-
Global Low Volatil ity 339.4     10.1 0.24 10.92 15.68 -.- -.- -.-
Real Estate 367.6     10.9 0.36 6.66 11.12 12.30 13.00 5.15
Global Fixed Income 479.6     14.3 1.08 6.53 5.99 4.59 3.90 4.73
High Yield 421.9     12.6 4.64 12.35 10.39 4.91 7.61 6.89
Credit Opportunities 89.5       2.7 4.68 -.- -.- -.- -.- -.-
Public Real Assets 280.2     8.3 4.28 20.47 14.29 1.45 -.- -.-
Private Equity 166.6     5.0 2.14 2.47 4.88 10.46 9.84 -.-
Cash Equivalents 81.9       2.4 0.10 0.22 0.25 0.11 0.11 -0.55


Total Fund 3,357.2 100.0 3.45 8.50 10.80 6.12 10.25 5.91
   Asset Allocation Policy 2.94 10.00 11.22 5.95 9.92 5.97
      Value Added vs Policy 0.51 -1.50 -0.42 0.17 0.33 -0.06
   Actuarial Rate 1.94 5.94 8.00 8.10 8.16 8.21


Wilshire 5000 Index 4.29 8.44 15.35 10.65 16.31 7.44
S&P 500 Index 3.85 7.84 15.43 11.16 16.37 7.24
MSCI ACWI x-U.S. IMI Index 7.05 6.08 9.81 0.62 6.37 2.47
MSCI EAFE Index 6.43 1.73 6.52 0.48 7.39 1.82
Barclays Aggregate Bond Index 0.46 5.80 5.19 4.03 3.08 4.79
Citigroup High Yield Cash Pay 5.45 15.42 12.71 4.76 7.83 7.31
Wilshire RE Securities Index -1.40 10.04 18.45 14.61 16.02 5.93
91-Day Treasury Bil l 0.10 0.24 0.27 0.12 0.10 0.92


Assets Performance (%)


Total
($Millions) Return


1Q13 2,985.2    18.3         56.8         3.4            179.4       3,122.7    5.92%
2Q13 3,122.7    22.3         59.0         3.2            8.1            3,091.0    0.15%
3Q13 3,091.0    18.0         58.2         3.4            151.2       3,198.6    4.76%
4Q13 3,198.6    24.1         57.2         3.3            169.8       3,332.1    5.22%
1Q14 3,332.1    26.1         62.0         4.3            76.3         3,368.2    2.21%
2Q14 3,368.2    25.4         58.8         3.9            148.0       3,479.0    4.26%
3Q14 3,479.0    22.6         62.0         2.5            (39.5)        3,397.5    -1.21%
4Q14 3,397.5    30.7         62.8         3.3            40.4         3,402.5    1.16%
1Q15 3,402.5    36.1         73.5         3.5            85.2         3,446.8    2.40%
2Q15 3,446.8    44.4         83.3         3.7            6.5            3,410.6    0.08%
3Q15 3,410.6    29.6         69.6         3.4            (202.7)      3,164.5    -6.08%
4Q15 3,164.5    49.4         82.5         3.2            71.0         3,199.2    2.12%
1Q16 3,199.2    89.0         127.7       3.0            40.9         3,198.3    1.29%
2Q16 3,198.3    70.8         105.2       2.8            116.2       3,277.3    3.55%
3Q16 3,277.3    32.9         67.4         2.9            117.3       3,357.2    3.45%


Gain/Loss ValueValue Contrib. Distrib. Fees
End MktBeg. Mkt Net Net Investment Investment







  
 Wilshire Consulting 
 Executive Summary of Performance – September 30, 2016 
 Employees’ Retirement Fund of the City of Dallas 
 


Page 4 


 


Quarterly Total Fund Attribution vs. Policy 


 


 
The Total Fund attribution table, shown above, displays the return contribution of each asset class to the Total Fund’s 
overall return.  The attribution provides some insights as to whether tactical allocation and active management within 
asset classes helped or hurt performance during the quarter. 


♦ Strategic Policy: The contribution to total return from each asset class, calculated as the percentage allocated to 
each asset class multiplied by the benchmark for that asset class. 


♦ Actual Allocation: The return contribution during the quarter due to differences in the actual allocation from 
the policy allocation (i.e.: the actual allocation to U.S. equity was higher than the policy allocation). A positive 
number would indicate an overweight allocation benefited performance, and vice versa. 


♦ Active Management: The return contribution from active management.  This number would be positive if the 
asset class outperformed the designated policy index and vice versa (i.e.: the U.S. equity segment outperformed 
the policy index, the Wilshire 5000 Index, during the quarter and contributed positively to active management). 


♦ Interaction: Captures the interaction of managers’ performance and asset class weighting differences. 


♦ Actual Return: The actual return of the asset classes if allocations to them were static during the quarter.  These 
returns will not match exactly with the actual segment returns since asset class allocations change during the 
quarter due to market movement, cash flows, etc. 


 


U.S. Equity 15.0 5.03 15.0 4.29 0.0 0.74 0.00 0.00 0.11 0.10
International Equity 14.0 7.51 15.0 7.05 -1.0 0.46 -0.05 0.00 0.07 0.02
Global Equity 4.7 5.69 5.0 5.30 -0.3 0.39 -0.01 0.00 0.02 0.01
Global Low Volatil ity 10.3 0.24 10.0 -0.28 0.3 0.52 -0.01 0.00 0.05 0.05
Public REITs 5.8 -0.84 5.0 -1.40 0.8 0.56 -0.04 0.00 0.03 0.00
Direct Core Real Estate 6.0 1.38 5.0 1.42 1.0 -0.04 -0.02 0.00 0.00 -0.02
Global Fixed Income 14.4 1.08 15.0 0.46 -0.6 0.62 0.01 0.00 0.09 0.10
High Yield 12.8 4.64 12.5 5.45 0.3 -0.81 0.01 0.00 -0.10 -0.10
Credit Opportunities 2.6 4.68 2.5 4.21 0.1 0.47 0.00 0.00 0.01 0.01
Public Real Assets 8.2 4.28 10.0 1.07 -1.8 3.21 0.03 -0.06 0.32 0.30
Private Equity 4.9 2.14 5.0 0.80 -0.1 1.34 0.01 -0.01 0.06 0.06
Cash Equivalents 1.4 0.10 0.0 0.10 1.4 0.00 -0.05 0.00 0.00 -0.05
Monthly Linked Return 100.0 3.42 100.0 2.94 0.48 -0.11 -0.08 0.66 0.48
Trading/Hedging 0.03 0.00 0.03 0.03
Total 3.45 2.94 0.51 0.51


Asset Class
Assets (%) Policy (%) Difference (%) Total Fund Return Contribution (%)


Weight Return
Active 


Management
TotalWeight Return Weight Return


Actual 
Allocation


Interaction


2.94 Asset Allocation Policy
-0.11 Actual/Tactical Asset Allocation
0.66 Active Management
-0.08 Interaction
0.03 Trading
3.45 Total Fund Return


*Note: factors may not sum exactly 
to total return due to rounding. 







  
 Wilshire Consulting 
 Executive Summary of Performance – September 30, 2016 
 Employees’ Retirement Fund of the City of Dallas 
 


Page 5 


 


One-Year Total Fund Attribution vs. Policy 


 


   
The Total Fund attribution table, shown above, displays the return contribution of each asset class to the Total Fund’s 
overall return.  The attribution provides some insights as to whether tactical allocation and active management within 
asset classes helped or hurt performance during the quarter. 


♦ Strategic Policy: The contribution to total return from each asset class, calculated as the percentage allocated to 
each asset class multiplied by the benchmark for that asset class. 


♦ Actual Allocation: The return contribution during the quarter due to differences in the actual allocation from 
the policy allocation (i.e.: the actual allocation to U.S. equity was higher than the policy allocation). A positive 
number would indicate an overweight allocation benefited performance, and vice versa. 


♦ Active Management: The return contribution from active management.  This number would be positive if the 
asset class outperformed the designated policy index and vice versa (i.e.: the U.S. equity segment outperformed 
the policy index, the Wilshire 5000 Index, during the quarter and contributed positively to active management). 


♦ Interaction: Captures the interaction of managers’ performance and asset class weighting differences. 


♦ Actual Return: The actual return of the asset classes if allocations to them were static during the quarter.  These 
returns will not match exactly with the actual segment returns since asset class allocations change during the 
quarter due to market movement, cash flows, etc. 


U.S. Equity 15.0 14.39 15.0 15.35 0.0 -0.97 -0.05 -0.01 -0.13 -0.19
International Equity 14.0 9.58 15.0 9.81 -1.0 -0.23 -0.02 0.01 -0.03 -0.05
Global Equity 4.6 10.07 5.0 11.97 -0.4 -1.90 -0.01 0.01 -0.09 -0.10
Global Low Volatil ity 10.4 15.68 10.0 16.30 0.4 -0.62 0.02 0.00 -0.06 -0.05
Public REITs 5.6 14.85 5.0 18.45 0.6 -3.59 0.02 -0.02 -0.18 -0.17
Direct Core Real Estate 7.8 8.00 5.0 6.97 2.8 1.03 -0.06 0.03 0.05 0.02
Global Fixed Income 14.3 5.99 15.0 5.19 -0.7 0.80 -0.01 0.00 0.12 0.11
High Yield 13.4 10.39 13.8 12.71 -0.4 -2.32 0.00 0.02 -0.29 -0.26
Credit Opportunities 1.7 11.93 1.3 12.58 0.5 -0.65 -0.03 -0.02 -0.02 -0.07
Public Real Assets 7.5 14.29 10.0 12.74 -2.5 1.55 -0.17 -0.04 0.19 -0.02
Private Equity 4.7 4.88 5.0 -9.42 -0.3 14.29 0.06 -0.06 0.47 0.47
Cash 1.0 0.25 0.0 0.25 1.0 0.00 -0.16 0.00 0.00 -0.16
Monthly Linked Return 100.00 10.76 100.00 11.22 -0.46 -0.42 -0.08 0.03 -0.46
Trading 0.04 0.00 0.04 0.04
Total 10.80 11.22 -0.42 -0.42


Weight Return Weight Return
Actual 


Allocation
Interaction


Asset Class
Assets (%) Policy (%) Difference (%) Total Fund Return Contribution (%)


Weight Return
Active 


Management
Total


11.22 Strategic Policy Allocation
-0.42 Actual/Tactical Asset Allocation
0.03 Active Management
-0.08 Interaction
0.04 Trading


10.80 Total Return


*Note: factors may not sum exactly 
to total return due to rounding. 







  
 Wilshire Consulting 
 Executive Summary of Performance – September 30, 2016 
 Employees’ Retirement Fund of the City of Dallas 
 


Page 6 


 


Domestic Equity Overview 1 


 
Composite 


 
Domestic Equity Managers 


 


                                                 
1 Domestic Equity Custom Benchmark: Wilshire 5000 Index (3q99 – Present); S&P 500 Index (1q90 – 2q99). 


QTR YTD 1-year 3-year 5-year 10-year
Total U.S. Equity (Gross) 488.8$  5.12 8.17 14.82 10.40 16.33 7.37
Total U.S. Equity (Net) 5.03 7.86 14.39 10.00 15.93 7.00
    Custom Benchmark 1 4.29 8.44 15.35 10.65 16.31 7.44
      Net of Fee Value Added vs Benchmark 0.74 -0.58 -0.96 -0.65 -0.38 -0.44


Enhanced Composite 138.4$  2.66 5.74 13.19 10.30 15.84 6.88
Small Cap Composite 139.3$  8.45 10.60 15.37 8.01 16.18 7.07


Wilshire 5000 Index 4.29 8.44 15.35 10.65 16.31 7.44
S&P 500 Index 3.85 7.84 15.43 11.16 16.37 7.24
Russell  2000 Index 9.05 11.46 15.47 6.71 15.82 7.07


Assets
(Millions)


Performance


Assets Since
(Millions) QTR YTD 1-year 3-year 5-year Inception


Large Core - Passive
    Northern Trust S&P 500 (Gross) 211.2$  3.83 7.86 15.48 11.23 16.45 9.55 Dec-94
    Northern Trust S&P 500 (Net) 3.83 7.86 15.48 11.22 16.43 9.52 Dec-94


   S&P 500 Index 3.85 7.84 15.43 11.16 16.37 9.47 Dec-94
      Net of Fee Value Added vs Benchmark -0.02 0.02 0.05 0.06 0.06 0.05


Enhanced Index
T. Rowe Price (Gross) 138.2$  4.48 7.47 15.95 11.62 16.97 8.10 Mar-06
T. Rowe Price (Net) 4.41 7.20 15.57 11.25 16.62 7.79 Mar-06
   S&P 500 Index + 1% 4.10 8.59 16.43 12.16 17.37 8.30 Mar-06
      Net of Fee Value Added vs Objective 0.31 -1.39 -0.86 -0.91 -0.75 -0.51


   S&P 500 Index 3.85 7.84 15.43 11.16 16.37 7.30 Mar-06
      Net of Fee Value Added vs Benchmark 0.56 -0.64 0.14 0.09 0.25 0.49
   Information Ratio 0.08 0.08 0.21
   Sharpe Ratio 1.16 1.00 1.44


Date
Performance (%) Inception







  
 Wilshire Consulting 
 Executive Summary of Performance – September 30, 2016 
 Employees’ Retirement Fund of the City of Dallas 
 


Page 7 


 


Domestic Equity Overview (Continued) 
 


Domestic Equity Managers 


 
♦ The Fund’s domestic equity composite generated a return of 5.03% (net of fees) during the third quarter of 2016, 


outperforming the Wilshire 5000 Total Market Index which returned 4.29%. This quarter’s outperformance was 
driven by the T. Rowe Price (enhanced equity index) which outpaced its benchmark (S&P 500 Index). In absolute 
terms, the composite benefitted from the Fund’s small cap exposures in a period where small cap stocks 
outperformed their large cap counterparts. Meanwhile, the passively-managed index fund strategies both managed 
by Northern Trust (Large Core and Small Growth), continued to perform in line with expectations tracking the 
risk/return profile of their benchmarks. The domestic equity composite is currently underperforming against its 
benchmark over one-year (-96 bps), three-year (-65 bps periods), five-year (-38 bps) and ten-year (-44 bps) periods. 


 
Northern Trust (Passive) 
♦ Northern Trust manages a passive large-cap core equity portfolio for the Fund, which is designed to track the S&P 


500 Index and replicate the performance of overall market. To date, the passive large-cap core portfolio is 
performing in line with expectations, matching the risk and return profile of the benchmark index and exhibiting 
very low tracking error over all time periods. 
 


♦ Northern Trust also manages a passive small-cap growth portfolio for the Fund which was wound down in 
September. Benchmarked against the Russell 2000 Growth Index, this portfolio gives the Fund exposure to the 
smaller-capitalization stocks whose earnings are expected to grow at an above-average rate relative to the market. 
As a passive investment, this portfolio seeks to replicate the performance of the overall small-cap growth universe 
of companies rather than relying on security selection to add value. Through its inception, the small-cap growth 
portfolio was outperforming its benchmark index by 19 bps. 


 
 


Assets Since
(Millions) QTR YTD 1-year 3-year 5-year Inception


Small Core - Active
Systematic Financial (Gross) 67.1$    7.93 12.68 18.94 10.91 19.24 11.45 Jun-03
Systematic Financial (Net) 7.71 11.98 17.95 9.97 18.32 10.68 Jun-03
   Russell  2000 Index + 1.25% 9.36 12.40 16.72 7.96 17.07 10.30 Jun-03
      Net of Fee Value Added vs Objective -1.65 -0.42 1.23 2.01 1.25 0.38


   Russell  2000 Index 9.05 11.46 15.47 6.71 15.82 9.05 Jun-03
      Net of Fee Value Added vs Benchmark -1.34 0.52 2.48 3.26 2.50 1.63
   Information Ratio 0.54 0.80 0.62
   Sharpe Ratio 1.22 0.73 1.25


Small Value - Active
Channing Capital Management (Gross) 37.2$    6.73 12.36 14.87 -.- -.- 5.30 Oct-13
Channing Capital Management (Net) 6.49 11.56 13.79 -.- -.- 4.37 Oct-13
   Russell  2000 Value Index + 1.25% 9.18 16.42 20.06 -.- -.- 5.81 Oct-13
      Net of Fee Value Added vs Objective -2.69 -4.86 -6.27 -1.44


   Russell  2000 Value Index 8.87 15.49 18.81 -.- -.- 4.56 Oct-13
      Net of Fee Value Added vs Benchmark -2.38 -3.93 -5.02 -0.19
   Information Ratio -1.08 -.- -.-
   Sharpe Ratio 0.77 -.- -.-


Performance (%) Inception
Date







  
 Wilshire Consulting 
 Executive Summary of Performance – September 30, 2016 
 Employees’ Retirement Fund of the City of Dallas 
 


Page 8 


 


Domestic Equity Overview (Continued) 
 
T. Rowe Price (Enhanced) 
♦ T. Rowe Price manages the Fund’s enhanced equity index portfolio. The T. Rowe Price portfolio returned 4.41% (net 


of fees) during the third quarter, outperforming its benchmark index (S&P 500) which returned 3.85%. Overall, this 
quarter’s performance was driven by above average stock selection coupled with strong sector positioning. Stock 
selection was strongest within the financials segment of the market, where the portfolio’s holdings returned 6.81% 
compared to 5.26% in the benchmark index. Outperformance in the financials segment was largely aided by strong 
individual stock selection decisions in the industrials, consumer staples and information technology segments where 
the portfolio’s holdings returned well above that of the respective benchmark holdings. In total, stock selection was 
positive in six of the ten economic sectors (the only sectors for which it was meaningfully negative were: energy and 
health care). The portfolio’s tactical overweight allocation to the information technology sector which experienced 
positive returns over the period also served as a modest driver of outperformance from a sector positioning 
standpoint. Historically, the portfolio’s overall sector allocation does not deviate too broadly from the Standard & 
Poor’s 500 (approximately +/- 1%) which means the bulk of the value-added will come from stock selection. The T. 
Rowe portfolio remains highly concentrated in large-capitalization stocks (with an average market cap of $139,770 
million). The portfolio is currently outperforming against its benchmark over the one-year (+14 bps), three-year (+9 
bps), five-year (+25 bps), and since inception periods (+49 bps) (3/06). 
 


Systematic Financial (Small-Cap Core) 
♦ Systematic Financial manages the Fund’s small-cap core portfolio. The Systematic portfolio returned 7.71% (net of 


fees) during the third quarter, significantly underperforming its benchmark (Russell 2000) which returned 9.05%; 
During the period small cap stocks as represented by the Russell 2000 Index, vastly outperformed large caps ending 
with a total return of 9.05%. Despite these strong returns the Systematic portfolio was unable to keep pace with its 
benchmark as a result of poor stock selection decisions. The bulk of this period’s underperformance can be pinned 
to stock selection decisions within the Industrials segment.  The portfolio’s holdings in this segment gained 4.47% 
compared to 8.18% for the benchmark. Below average selection was not limited to this segment alone, individual 
stock picking was also weak amongst the health care, financials, information technology and materials sectors. In all, 
the cumulative effect of stock selection alone detracted a nominal -163 basis points against the benchmark. Stock 
selection in the consumer discretionary and energy segments served as a lone bright spot for the quarter in which 
the portfolio’s holdings outperformed those of the benchmark significantly. Sector weighting decisions were net 
positive for the period and helped mitigate some of the losses experienced elsewhere in the portfolio. Much of this 
stems from the portfolio’s tactical underweight allocation to the utilities sector, which was among the market’s 
weakest performing sectors during the period posting a -5.15% return. The Systematic portfolio continues to hold  
relatively cheaper (or undervalued) stocks when compared to benchmark, with a current average P/E ratio of 24.12 
(Russell 2000 P/E ratio is 53.53). The portfolio also continues to exhibit a large historical overweight allocation to 
financials, albeit smaller in the most recent period, which accounts for around 29% of the portfolio’s total net asset 
value compared to approximately 23% for the benchmark. Despite the most recent underperformance the 
Systematic portfolio is outperforming against its benchmark over the five-year period as well as since inception 
(+163 bps) (9/03). 


 
Channing Capital Management (Small-Cap Value) 
♦ Channing Capital manages the Fund’s small-cap value portfolio. The Channing portfolio returned 6.49% (net of fees) 


during the third quarter, underperforming its benchmark (Russell 2000 Value) which returned 8.87%. Unfavorable 
stock selection throughout several segments prevented the portfolio from keeping pace with the benchmark during 
the period. Overall, eight of the ten sectors experienced net negative stock selection during the quarter. Particularly  


 







  
 Wilshire Consulting 
 Executive Summary of Performance – September 30, 2016 
 Employees’ Retirement Fund of the City of Dallas 
 


Page 9 


 


Domestic Equity Overview (Continued) 
 


large losses were incurred within the industrials, consumer discretionary, and health sectors. The portfolio’s 
industrial holdings posted a gain of 7.54%, whereas the benchmark experienced a more notable gain of 10.86%. 
Several positions within the portfolio (very concentrated), posted negative returns during a period of absolute 
strength in the small cap space. Most notably, “Spire Inc.”, which return -9.36% for the period, was the single worst 
in the portfolio. Overall sector weighting decisions contributed positively over the period, in total, adding around 89 
bps in value. To date, the Channing portfolio is consistently positioned with an underweight allocation to consumer 
discretionary (6% portfolio weight vs. 11% benchmark weight) with significant overweight allocation to industrials 
(22% portfolio weight vs 12% benchmark weight). The Channing portfolio is currently underperforming against its 
benchmark for the one-year (-502 bps) period as well as since inception (-19 bps) (12/13). 
 


Redwood Investments (Small-Cap Growth) 
♦ Redwood Investments manages the Fund’s small-cap growth portfolio which was funded in September 2016. The 


small cap growth strategy typically holds between 50-60 common stocks and is benchmarked against the Russell 
2000 Growth Index with an expected excess return target of 250 bps over a full market cycle. Further detail will be 
provided for the portfolio following its first full quarter of performance in the fourth quarter of 2016.







  
 Wilshire Consulting 
 Executive Summary of Performance – September 30, 2016 
 Employees’ Retirement Fund of the City of Dallas 
 


Page 10 


 


International Equity Overview 23 


 
International Equity Composite 


 
International Equity Managers 


 
 
 
 


 


                                                 
2 International Equity Custom Benchmark: MSCI ACWI x-US IMI (2q10 – Present); MSCI ACWI x-US (1q99 – 1q10); Wilshire Non-US/Non-SA (2q96 – 4q98); MSCI EAFE 


(4q89 – 1q96) 
3Acadian Custom Benchmark: MSCI ACWI x-US Small Cap (3q09 – Present); MSCI EAFE Small Cap (4q99 – 2q09); S&P/Citigroup Eur/Pac EMI Index (2q96 – 3q99); MSCI 
EAFE (2q89 – 1q96). Performance Objective: Custom Benchmark +2% (1q05 – Present); +1% (2q89 – 4q04). 


QTR YTD 1-year 3-year 5-year 10-year
Total International Equity (Gross) 482.9$  7.61 5.28 9.96 1.73 8.44 3.65
Total International Equity (Net) 7.51 5.01 9.58 1.35 8.02 3.23
    Custom Benchmark 1 7.05 6.08 9.81 0.62 6.37 2.40
      Net of Fee Value Added vs Benchmark 0.46 -1.07 -0.23 0.73 1.65 0.83


MSCI ACWI x-US IMI (Net) 7.05 6.08 9.81 0.62 6.37 2.47
MSCI ACWI x-US (Net) 6.91 5.82 9.26 0.18 6.04 2.16
MSCI EAFE (Net) 6.43 1.73 6.52 0.48 7.39 1.82
MSCI Emerging Markets 9.03 16.02 16.78 -0.56 3.03 3.94


Assets Performance
(Millions)


Assets Since
(Millions) QTR YTD 1-year 3-year 5-year Inception


Int'l Small Cap - Active
Acadian International (Gross) 103.0$  8.26 9.55 15.55 4.06 11.38 9.93 Mar-89
Acadian International (Net) 8.12 9.08 14.91 3.55 10.80 8.27 Mar-89
   Custom Benchmark + 2% 8.41 9.20 15.38 5.52 10.60 7.80 Mar-89
      Net of Fee Value Added vs Objective -0.29 -0.12 -0.47 -1.97 0.20 0.47


   Custom Benchmark 7.91 7.70 13.38 3.52 8.60 5.80 Mar-89
      Net of Fee Value Added vs Benchmark 0.21 1.38 1.53 0.03 2.20 2.47
   Information Ratio 0.39 0.01 0.60
   Sharpe Ratio 0.95 0.28 0.73


Date
Performance (%) Inception







  
 Wilshire Consulting 
 Executive Summary of Performance – September 30, 2016 
 Employees’ Retirement Fund of the City of Dallas 
 


Page 11 


 


International Equity Overview (Continued) 45 
 


International Equity Managers 


 
♦ The Fund’s international equity composite returned 7.51% (net of fees) during the third quarter of 2016, 


outperforming the MSCI ACWI x-US Investable Market Index (IMI) which returned 7.05%. All three of the segment’s 
non-U.S. strategies managed to outperform against their respective benchmarks in what was generally a positive 
market environment for international stocks (most major indexes led U.S. Large-caps). The Fund’s international 
small cap equity index manager Acadian International provided the largest absolute return during the period. 
Meanwhile, the AQR portfolio along with the active/passive Baring International portfolio also outperformed their 
respective benchmarks, in turn, lifting the total return of the international equity composite as a whole. The 
international equity composite is outperforming against its benchmark for the three-year (+73 bps), five-year (+165 
bps), and ten-year (+83 bps) periods, as well as since inception (+96 bps) (12/89). 


 
Acadian (International Small-Cap) 
♦ Acadian International manages the Fund’s active small-cap international equity portfolio. During the third quarter 


the Acadian portfolio returned 8.12% (net of fees), outperforming against its benchmark (MSCI ACWI x-US Small 
Cap) which returned 7.91% for the period. Favorable stock selection decisions provided the bulk of this periods value 
added. Of note, the stock selection decisions were most impactful in the markets of Thailand, Canada and South 
Korea where the portfolio holdings outperformed the respective benchmark holdings. The portfolio was also aided 
by sector weighting decisions within the markets of Canada, Brazil and Switzerland. Although the portfolio’s stock 
selection decisions benefitted the portfolio overall, poor stock selection decisions in the markets of Japan and the 
United Kingdom mitigated these gains. For example, the portfolio’s Japanese holdings returned 4.45% versus 7.12% 
for that of the benchmark which ended up serving as the largest detractor to relative performance over the period. 
The portfolio incurred similar issues related broadly to its stock selection in the U.K. market.  Top-down country 


                                                 
4 Baring Custom Benchmark: MSCI ACWI x-US (2q02 – Present); PMSCI ACWI  x-US (G) (3q01 – 1q02); MSCI ACWI x-US (2q99 – 2q01); Wilshire Non-US/Non-SA (2q96 


– 1q99); MSCI EAFE (2q88 – 1q96) . Performance objective: Custom Benchmark + 2%. 
5 AQR Custom Benchmark: MSCI ACWI x-US (2q10 – Present); MSCI EAFE (1q06 – 1q10); Performance Objective: Custom Benchmark + 1.5%. 


Assets Since
(Millions) QTR YTD 1-year 3-year 5-year Inception


Int'l Enhanced Index
AQR Capital Management (Gross) 191.4$  7.61 5.46 10.01 2.00 9.18 2.78 Mar-06
AQR Capital Management (Net) 7.45 5.00 9.38 1.41 8.53 2.28 Mar-06
   Custom Benchmark + 1.5% 7.28 6.95 10.76 1.68 7.54 3.08 Mar-06
      Net of Fee Value Added vs Objective 0.17 -1.95 -1.38 -0.27 0.99 -0.80


   Custom Benchmark 6.91 5.82 9.26 0.18 6.04 1.58 Mar-06
      Net of Fee Value Added vs Benchmark 0.54 -0.82 0.12 1.23 2.49 0.70
   Information Ratio 0.05 0.56 1.02
   Sharpe Ratio 0.65 0.11 0.59


Int'l Active/Passive
Baring International (Gross) 188.5$  7.25 2.97 7.13 0.26 6.01 6.56 Mar-88
Baring International (Net) 7.25 2.97 7.13 0.13 5.83 6.41 Mar-88
   Custom Benchmark + 1.25% 7.22 6.76 10.51 1.43 7.29 6.13 Mar-88
      Net of Fee Value Added vs Objective 0.03 -3.79 -3.38 -1.30 -1.46 0.28


   Custom Benchmark 6.91 5.82 9.26 0.18 6.04 4.88 Mar-88
      Net of Fee Value Added vs Benchmark 0.34 -2.85 -2.13 -0.05 -0.21 1.53
   Information Ratio -1.12 -0.03 -0.13
   Sharpe Ratio 0.44 0.01 0.40


Performance (%) Inception
Date







  
 Wilshire Consulting 
 Executive Summary of Performance – September 30, 2016 
 Employees’ Retirement Fund of the City of Dallas 
 


Page 12 


 


weighting decisions were slightly detractive during the period overall although these losses were not strong enough 
to overcome the value added from strong sector weighting and stock selection decisions. As of quarter-end, the 
Acadian portfolio is outperforming against its benchmark for the one-year (+153 bps), three-year (+3 bps) and five-
year (+220 bps) as well as since inception (+247 bps) (3/89). 
 


AQR Capital Management (International Enhanced) 
♦ AQR Capital manages the Fund’s enhanced international equity portfolio. The AQR portfolio returned 7.45% (net of 


fees) during the third quarter, outperforming its benchmark (MSCI ACWI x-US) which returned 6.91%. In a reversal 
from last period, both country and sector weighting decisions within the portfolio proved beneficial and lifted the 
portfolios return in excess of its benchmark. County and sector weighting decisions benefitted most notably within 
the markets of the Denmark, Canada, and the United Kingdom. In these cases the portfolio ended up on the right 
side of the trade either underweight an underperforming market or overweight an outperforming market. Strategic 
underweighting to the Denmark and U.K. markets proved beneficial in a continuation from the previous periods. 
This combined with the aforementioned sector weighting decisions during the period resulted in a positive quarter 
for the portfolio.  Stock selection on the other hand was slightly detractive and suffered most in the markets of the 
Germany, Japan and Hong Kong.  For example, the portfolios German holdings returned 5.86% for the period versus 
9.94% for the benchmark. Similar stock selection struggles in the Japanese and Hong Kong markets further detracted 
value relative to the benchmark albeit on a lesser scale. The AQR portfolio is outperforming against its benchmark 
for one-year (+12 bps), three-year (+123 bps) and five-year (+249 bps) periods, as well as since inception (+67 bps) 
(03/06). 


 
Baring (International Active/Passive) 
♦ Baring International, the Fund’s international equity large-cap manager, manages an active/passive portfolio. The 


objective is to actively manage the broad-based country and sector allocations, while passively managing security 
selection by investing in market indexes. During the third quarter, the Baring portfolio returned 7.25% (net of fees), 
outperforming its benchmark (MSCI ACWI x-US) which returned 6.91%. Overall, this quarter’s results were driven by 
positive country and sector weighting decisions coupled with positive individual stock selection decisions, all of 
which provided a mild source of value add during the period. From a sector weighting standpoint the portfolios 
overweight to the financial sector provided the largest contribution to total return followed by overweight 
allocations to the consumer discretionary and information technology holdings. From an individual stock selection 
point of view the portfolios Japanese and French holdings managed to outperform their respective benchmark 
holdings, in turn, providing a mild source of value add relative to the benchmark. A small overweight exposure to 
emerging markets also proved beneficial as emerging markets generally outperformed developed markets in the 
current period posting sizable gains in excess of 9%. The Baring portfolio is currently underperforming against its 
benchmark over the one-year (-213 bps), three-year (-5 bps), and five-year periods (-21 bps); but continues to 
outperform against its custom benchmark since inception (+153 bps) (03/88).  


 







  
 Wilshire Consulting 
 Executive Summary of Performance – September 30, 2016 
 Employees’ Retirement Fund of the City of Dallas 
 


Page 13 


 


Global Equity Overview 


 
Global Equity Composite 


 
Global Equity Managers 


 
 


 
 


 


QTR YTD 1-year 3-year 5-year 10-year
Total Global Equity (Gross) 158.8$  5.77 4.86 10.42 4.49 -.- -.-
Total Global Equity (Net) 5.69 4.61 10.07 3.85 -.- -.-
    MSCI ACWI (Net) 5.30 6.59 11.96 5.17 -.- -.-
      Net of Fee Value Added vs Index 0.39 -1.98 -1.89 -1.32


MSCI ACWI IMI (Net) 5.57 7.00 12.25 5.24 10.87 4.63
MSCI ACWI (Net) 5.30 6.59 11.96 5.17 10.63 4.34
MSCI World (Net) 4.86 5.55 11.36 5.84 11.63 4.47


Assets Performance
(Millions)


Assets Since
(Millions) QTR YTD 1-year 3-year 5-year Inception


Global Equity - Active
Wellington (Gross) 80.7$    5.87 2.52 8.24 7.66 -.- 13.21 Aug-12
Wellington (Net) 5.71 2.04 7.57 7.07 -.- 12.61 Aug-12
   MSCI ACWI (Net) + 2% 5.80 8.09 13.96 7.17 -.- 10.83 Aug-12
      Net of Fee Value Added vs Objective -0.09 -6.05 -6.39 -0.10 1.78


   MSCI ACWI (Net) 5.30 6.59 11.96 5.17 -.- 8.83 Aug-12
      Net of Fee Value Added vs Benchmark 0.41 -4.55 -4.39 1.90 3.78
   Information Ratio -1.21 0.52 -.-
   Sharpe Ratio 0.48 0.58 -.-


Global Equity - Passive
   Northern Trust (Gross) 78.1$    5.68 7.39 12.79 -.- -.- 12.79 Oct-15
   Northern Trust (Net) 5.68 7.39 12.79 -.- -.- 12.79 Oct-15


   MSCI ACWI (Net) 5.57 7.00 12.25 -.- -.- 12.25 Oct-15
      Net of Fee Value Added vs Benchmark 0.11 0.39 0.54 0.54


Date
Performance (%) Inception







  
 Wilshire Consulting 
 Executive Summary of Performance – September 30, 2016 
 Employees’ Retirement Fund of the City of Dallas 
 


Page 14 


 


Global Equity Overview (Continued) 
 


Towards the end of the 2015 the Fund liquidated its investment in the Aberdeen Global Equity portfolio and moved 
the assets over to Northern Trust. Today, the global equity composite is comprised of an actively-managed strategy 
(with a U.S. bias relative to the benchmark) managed by Wellington. This strategy is complemented by a passively-
managed strategy provided by Northern Trust. As of quarter-end, each strategy is allotted roughly half of the 
segment’s total value (currently approaching $159 million). The Wellington portfolio fared well during the second 
quarter, outperforming against its benchmark index (MSCI ACWI Index) by a modest margin largely due to strong 
individual stock selection decisions. The passively-managed Northern Trust strategy is performing in line with 
expectations, closely tracking the risk/return profile of the benchmark. The global equity composite is currently 
underperforming over all measured periods greater than the current quarter, including since inception (9/12). 


 
Wellington (Active) 
♦ Wellington manages the Fund’s active global equity portfolio. During the third quarter, the Wellington portfolio 


returned 5.71% (net of fees), outperforming its benchmark (MSCI ACWI) which returned 5.30%. The Wellington 
portfolio is structured with a consistent overweight bias towards the home country market (U.S.). As a result, 
whatever happens domestically quarter-to-quarter is a powerful determinant of how the overall portfolio will fare in 
relation to the benchmark. To begin the period, the U.S. market comprised around 66% of the portfolio’s total asset 
value, compared to 58% of the benchmark.  In the current period International stocks as a whole delivered better 
performance than U.S. equities producing a slight drag on relative performance. Nevertheless, stock selection 
decisions elsewhere in the portfolio were able overcome these losses. Specifically, the portfolio was aided by strong 
individual stock selection decisions within the Japanese market which returned 12.54% versus 8.71% for the 
benchmark. Similar drivers of outperformance could be seen in the Swiss and Dutch markets where the portfolio 
holdings outpaced the benchmark holdings by sizable margins. Collectively country and sector weighting decisions 
ended the period flat.  Despite the portfolios recent underperformance, the Wellington portfolio is outperforming 
for the three-year (+190 bps) period as well as since inception (+378 bps) (09/12). 


 
Northern Trust (Passive) 
♦ In early September (2015) the Fund added a new global equity manager to the segment. Managed by Northern 


Trust, this strategy gives the Fund broadly diversified exposure to global stocks via a passively managed investment 
vehicle, which will result in lower turnover and costs incurred. The Northern Trust global equity portfolio was funded 
with proceeds from the liquidated Aberdeen Global Equity portfolio. The new funded strategy has been quickly built 
up to size and by quarter-end represented nearly 50% of the segment’s total value. After its first full year of 
performance, the Northern Trust portfolio continues to closely track the risk profile while modestly outperforming 
its benchmark index MSCI ACWI (+54) basis points since inception. 







  
 Wilshire Consulting 
 Executive Summary of Performance – September 30, 2016 
 Employees’ Retirement Fund of the City of Dallas 
 


Page 15 


 


Global Low Volatility Equity Overview 


 
Global Low Volatility Composite 


 
Global Equity Managers 


 
*Acadian Info Ratio statistic is based on MSCI ACWI Min Vol benchmark. 


 


QTR YTD 1-year 3-year 5-year 10-year
Total Global Low Volatility (Gross) 339.4$  0.29 11.06 15.88 -.- -.- -.-
Total Global Low Volatility (Net) 0.24 10.92 15.68 -.- -.- -.-
    MSCI ACWI Minimum Volatil ity (Net) -0.28 10.65 16.31 -.- -.- -.-
      Net of Fee Value Added vs Index 0.52 0.27 -0.63


MSCI ACWI Minimum Volatil ity (Net) -0.28 10.65 16.31 9.33 11.38 7.16
MSCI World x-US Minimum Volatil ity (Net) 2.03 7.53 12.34 6.74 8.71 5.54
MSCI ACWI (Net) 5.30 6.59 11.96 5.17 10.63 4.34


Assets Performance
(Millions)


Assets Since
(Millions) QTR YTD 1-year 3-year 5-year Inception


Global Low Volatility - Active
Acadian Global Low Vol (Gross) 168.9$  0.78 11.01 14.80 -.- -.- 8.41 Jun-15
Acadian Global Low Vol (Net) 0.69 10.72 14.41 -.- -.- 8.09 Jun-15
   MSCI ACWI (Net) + 2% 5.80 8.09 13.96 -.- -.- 3.10 Jun-15
      Net of Fee Value Added vs Objective -5.11 2.63 0.45 4.99


   MSCI ACWI (Net) 5.30 6.59 11.96 -.- -.- 1.10 Jun-15
      Net of Fee Value Added vs Benchmark -4.61 4.13 2.45 6.99
   MSCI ACWI Min Vol (Net) -0.28 10.65 16.31 -.- -.- 8.89 Jun-15
   Information Ratio -0.55 -.- -.-
   Sharpe Ratio 1.36 -.- -.-


Global Low Volatility - Passive
BlackRock Global Low Vol (Gross) 170.5$  -0.19 11.10 16.93 -.- -.- 9.46 Jun-15
BlackRock Global Low Vol (Net) -0.19 11.10 16.93 -.- -.- 9.46 Jun-15
   MSCI ACWI Min Vol (Net) -0.28 10.65 16.31 -.- -.- 8.89 Jun-15
      Net of Fee Value Added vs Benchmark 0.09 0.45 0.62 0.57


Date
Performance (%) Inception







  
 Wilshire Consulting 
 Executive Summary of Performance – September 30, 2016 
 Employees’ Retirement Fund of the City of Dallas 
 


Page 16 


 


Global Low Volatility Equity Overview (Continued) 
 
♦ In June of 2015, the Board elected to transfer assets from existing strategies elsewhere in the Fund into two new 


global low volatility equity portfolios. The first portfolio is actively-managed and run by Acadian. Its primary 
mandate is to provide the Fund with a better risk/return profile relative to the broad MSCI ACWI, its primary 
benchmark (the Acadian portfolio’s performance is also measured against the MSCI ACWI Minimum Volatility as a 
secondary benchmark). The second portfolio is a passively-managed index fund provided through BlackRock. Taken 
together, both funds will add diversification benefits to the existing suite of public equity managers. After its first full 
year of performance within the Fund, the global low volatility equity composite is currently underperforming the 
MSCI ACWI Minimum Volatility Index. 


 
Acadian (Global Low Volatility – Active) 
♦ Acadian manages the Fund’s active global low volatility equity portfolio. The strategy was funded during June of 


2015 and has just completed its first full year of performance within the Fund. During the third quarter, the Acadian 
portfolio returned 0.69% (net of fees). The portfolio’s primary benchmark is the traditional cap-weighted MSCI All-
Country World Index (ACWI). In addition, the portfolio is viewed in comparison to its secondary benchmark, the 
MSCI ACWI Minimum Volatility. During the quarter, the Acadian portfolio underperformed the primary cap-
weighted benchmark (5.30% return) but was able to outpace its reweighted minimum volatility benchmark (-0.28% 
return). Relative to the primary cap-weighted benchmark, the portfolio had much greater exposure to the lowest-
volatility securities from within the opportunity set, which had a negative impact on the overall portfolio’s 
performance. The portfolio also had underweight exposure (compared against the primary benchmark) to highest 
volatility securities, which was also a detractor during the period. Despite the portfolios relative underperformance 
against its primary benchmark it was able to keep pace with its secondary benchmark as a result of both country and 
sector weighting decisions. This outperformance can be largely attributed to country and sector weighting decisions 
in the South Korean, German and Canadian markets where the portfolio ended up on the right side of the trade, 
either underweight an underperforming market or overweight an outperforming market (ex. South Korea). Security 
selection ended the period slightly negative. Additionally, the Acadian portfolio has wide dispersion in its economic 
sector allocations as compared to the cap-weighted index, potentially leading to a higher degree of tracking error 
(this difference is reduced when comparing against the secondary minimum volatility benchmark).  The Acadian 
portfolio is currently outperforming its primary benchmark since inception (+699 bps) (07/15). The portfolio has 
trailed its secondary minimum volatility benchmark since inception (-80 bps).  


 
BlackRock (Global Low Volatility – Passive) 
♦ BlackRock manages the Fund’s passive global volatility equity strategy. Like Acadian above, this strategy is relatively 


new within the Fund having been funded at the end of June 2015. The BlackRock portfolio is intended to provide a 
low-cost, highly diversified global equity investment strategy focused on minimizing volatility. The BlackRock 
portfolio is benchmark against the MSCI ACWI Minimum Volatility. To date, the portfolio continues to perform in 
line with expectations, closely tracking the risk profile of the benchmark index while outperforming the benchmark 
(+57 bps) since inception. 


 
 







  
 Wilshire Consulting 
 Executive Summary of Performance – September 30, 2016 
 Employees’ Retirement Fund of the City of Dallas 
 


Page 17 


 


Real Estate Overview 6 


 
Real Estate Composite 


 
Real Estate Managers 


 
                                                 
6 Real Estate Custom Benchmark: 50% Wilshire RESI / 39% NCREIF ODCE NOF/11% Invesco Custom Benchmark (4q13 – Present); Wilshire RESI (4q89 – 4q10). 


QTR YTD 1-year 3-year 5-year 10-year
Total Real Estate (Gross) 367.6$  0.52 7.17 11.83 13.11 13.83 5.85
Total Real Estate (Net) 0.36 6.66 11.12 12.30 13.00 5.15
    Custom Benchmark 1 0.01 7.41 12.84 12.02 13.20 5.61
      Net of Fee Value Added vs Benchmark 0.35 -0.75 -1.72 0.28 -0.20 -0.46


REIT Strategies 164.9$  -0.85 7.59 14.85 13.94 15.19 5.23
Private Core Real Estate 202.7$  1.38 5.22 8.00 10.94 11.06 -.-


Wilshire Real Estate Securities Index -1.40 10.04 18.45 14.61 16.02 5.93
NCREIF Open Diversified Core Equity (Net) 1.83 5.80 9.09 11.42 11.34 5.05


Assets Performance
(Millions)


Assets Since
(Millions) QTR YTD 1-year 3-year 5-year Inception


Real Estate Securities - Public
   Adelante Capital Management (Gross) 82.6$    -0.80 7.04 13.39 14.53 16.15 11.40 Sep-01
   Adelante Capital Management (Net) -0.93 6.59 12.75 13.89 15.50 10.83 Sep-01


   Wilshire Real Estate Securities + 1% -1.15 10.79 19.45 15.61 17.02 12.40 Sep-01
      Net of Fee Value Added vs Objective 0.22 -4.20 -6.70 -1.72 -1.52 -1.57


   Wilshire Real Estate Securities -1.40 10.04 18.45 14.61 16.02 11.40 Sep-01
      Net of Fee Value Added vs Index 0.47 -3.45 -5.70 -0.72 -0.52 -0.57
   Information Ratio -2.44 -0.34 -0.25
   Sharpe Ratio 0.84 0.98 1.05


Security Capital (Gross) 82.2$    -0.61 9.10 17.71 14.70 15.63 11.80 Sep-01
Security Capital (Net) -0.76 8.57 16.96 13.96 14.87 11.13 Sep-01
   Wilshire Real Estate Securities + 1% -1.15 10.79 19.45 15.61 17.02 12.40 Sep-01
      Net of Fee Value Added vs Objective 0.39 -2.22 -2.49 -1.65 -2.15 -1.27


   Wilshire Real Estate Securities -1.40 10.04 18.45 14.61 16.02 11.40 Sep-01
      Net of Fee Value Added vs Index 0.64 -1.47 -1.49 -0.65 -1.15 -0.27
   Information Ratio -0.79 -0.47 -0.88
   Sharpe Ratio 1.06 0.91 0.94


Date
Performance (%) Inception







  
 Wilshire Consulting 
 Executive Summary of Performance – September 30, 2016 
 Employees’ Retirement Fund of the City of Dallas 
 


Page 18 


 


Real Estate Overview (Continued) 
 


Real Estate Managers 


 
♦ The Fund’s total real estate composite is comprised of both public market real estate securities (REITs) and private 


investment in direct core real estate. The total segment returned 0.36% (net of fees) during the third quarter, 
outperforming its benchmark (split 50% Wilshire Real Estate Securities Index, 39% NCREIF Open-End Diversified Core  
Index and 11% Invesco II Custom Benchmark) which returned 0.01%. On the public side, the Adelante portfolio 
outpaced the Wilshire RESI mostly as a result of stock selection (confined largely to the “other” segment of the 
market). Likewise, the companion strategy managed by Security Capital also outperformed the benchmark largely 
due to superior stock selection in the apartment and “other” segments. During the third quarter, the Heitman 
portfolio outperformed relative to the NCREIF Open-End Diversified Core Index while the Invesco U.S. Core Real 
Estate fund was unable to keep pace with the benchmark. Currently, the Fund’s total real estate composite is 
outperforming its benchmark over the three-year period (+28 bps), but continues to trail the benchmark since 
inception (12/89). 


 
Adelante Capital Management (REITs) 
♦ Adelante Capital manages one of the Fund’s two marketable real estate securities (REIT) portfolios. Real Estate 


Investments Trust (REITs) were little changed in the period, as interest rates, although still relatively low, trended 
higher during the quarter. During the third quarter, the Adelante portfolio returned -0.93% (net of fees), 
outperforming its benchmark index (Wilshire Real Estate Securities) which returned -1.40%. Both individual stock 
selection and sector positioning served as the predominant drivers of this quarter’s outperformance. Sector 
positioning was most additive within the “other” and storage segments of the REIT market. In the “other” segment 
in particular, these holdings dwarf any other segment within the portfolio, comprising over 47% of total asset value 
(the next largest group of holdings in the portfolio, apartments, make up approximately 16% of assets). Therefore, 
as a result of it massive size, any return differential within this group of holdings will have a strong impact at the 
total portfolio level. Likewise, the stock selection exhibited among the portfolio’s “other” segment holdings was also 
additive during the period. The portfolio’s strongest-performing segment from an individual stock selection 
standpoint was the “apartment” segment where the portfolio holdings returned -0.19% versus -1.21% in that of the 
benchmark holdings. Similarly, individual stock selection in the portfolio’s office, industrial, and storage sectors were 
also positive during the period. Overall, small gains due to stock selection and sector positioning collectively pushed 
the portfolios return above that of the benchmark in what was a relatively stagnant real estate market during the 
quarter. The Adelante portfolio is currently underperforming its benchmark over the one-year (-570), three-year (-
72 bps) and five-year (-52 bps) periods as well as since inception (09/01). 


 
 


Assets Since
(Millions) QTR YTD 1-year 3-year 5-year Inception


Direct Core Real Estate - Private
      Heitman America Real Estate Trust (Gross) 86.8$    2.32 7.24 11.37 12.65 12.90 14.44 Aug-10
      Heitman America Real Estate Trust (Net) 2.10 6.53 10.40 11.67 11.90 13.35 Aug-10


   NCREIF Open-End Diversified Core (Net) 1.83 5.80 9.09 11.42 11.34 13.76 Aug-10
     Net of Fee Value Added vs Index 0.27 0.73 1.31 0.25 0.56 -0.41


      Invesco Core Real Estate USA (Gross) 69.0$    1.91 7.60 10.50 13.22 12.43 13.68 Aug-10
      Invesco Core Real Estate USA (Net) 1.68 6.90 9.57 12.22 11.43 12.68 Aug-10


   NCREIF Open-End Diversified Core (Net) 1.83 5.80 9.09 11.42 11.34 13.76 Aug-10
      Net of Fee Value Added vs Index -0.15 1.10 0.48 0.80 0.09 -1.08


Invesco II 46.9$    -0.38 -0.33 -0.30 -0.19 -.- -0.19 Oct-13


Date
Performance (%) Inception







  
 Wilshire Consulting 
 Executive Summary of Performance – September 30, 2016 
 Employees’ Retirement Fund of the City of Dallas 
 


Page 19 


 


Security Capital (REITs) 
♦ Security Capital manages the Fund’s other REIT portfolio. The Security portfolio delivered similar performance to its 


companion strategy managed by Adelante, returning -0.76% (net of fees) during the third quarter, outperforming its 
benchmark (Wilshire Real Estate Securities Index) which returned -1.40%. This quarter’s results were driven by 
strong stock selection, which was primarily spread across two of the main market segments: apartments and 
“other”. In each segment, the portfolio’s mix of holdings delivered returns above that of the benchmark. The 
greatest return differential came from within the “other” segment, where the portfolio’s holdings gained 1.22% 
compared to 0.09% for the benchmark. Collectively, these two segments provide around 65% of the portfolios total 
exposure. Of the previously mentioned sectors there were several positions that experienced positive returns 
amongst a relatively negative (from a returns standpoint) real estate market. Most notably, “Hudson Pac Properties 
Inc.” (+13.34%), “Senior Hsg Properties” (+10.98%), “Prologis Inc.” (+10.07%) experienced such returns. Top-down 
sector weighting decisions had a net positive impact during the period. Most of this was confined to the storage, 
local retail and “other” segments of the market. The portfolio was aided by underweight allocations to these 
segments which were the weakest performing sectors returning -5.03% and -12.25% respectively. The Security 
Capital portfolio is currently underperforming its benchmark over all measured periods greater than the current 
quarter, including since inception (-27 bps) (09/01). 
  


Heitman (Direct Core Real Estate) 
♦ Heitman manages one of the Fund’s three direct core real estate portfolios. The Heitman portfolio returned 2.10% 


(net of fees) during the third quarter, outperforming its benchmark (NCREIF Open End Diversified Core Index) which 
returned 1.83%. Valued added for the period was driven in large part by the Fund’s industrial and self -storage 
investments. The portfolio continues to remain well leased with an overall leasing level of 94% at quarter end. Year 
over year same-property net operating income through the third quarter increased 6.6% with the industrial and self-
storage sectors realizing the largest valuation increases. The Fund anticipates paying a dividend in October of around 
$13.56 per share, providing investors with additional yield.  At quarter end the portfolio’s allocation is well 
diversified across the apartment (26% allocation), office (23%), retail (22%), self-storage (17%) and industrial (12%) 
segments of the market. The portfolio is also well diversified across the U.S.  geographical landscape allocating 37% 
of the portfolio to the Western region of the U.S., 24% to the Southern region, 20% to the Midwest region and 19% 
to the Eastern region of the country. The portfolio completed one acquisition during the quarter: an industrial 
investment in San Bernadino, California. Meanwhile, the Fund sold three investments during the period resulting in 
net proceeds of approximately $241.7 million.  The Heitman portfolio is currently outperforming its benchmark over 
all measured periods greater than one-year including since inception (+69 bps) (08/10). 


 
Invesco Core Real Estate-USA (Direct Core Real Estate) 
♦ Invesco manages two of the Fund’s three direct core real estate portfolios. The Invesco Core Real Estate-USA 


portfolio returned 1.68% (net of fees) during the third quarter, underperforming its benchmark (NCREIF Open End 
Diversified Core Index) which returned 1.83%.  Historically, the portfolio maintains an overweight allocation to the 
apartment and retail segments of the market. At current levels, the portfolio sits underweight the industrials and 
office segments of the market while holding overweight exposures to the apartment and retail segments of the 
market. The portfolio holds 91 investments that are diversified across the United States with large allocation to the 
west coast region.  Three areas in California; the San Francisco Bay Area, Los Angeles and Orange County alone make 
up 34% of the portfolio’s total value. During the quarter the Fund closed on four acquisitions throughout the country 
for a total of $560.0 million. Going forward the Fund will continue to explore opportunities to take advantage of 
strong capital market conditions and will selectively sell assets that they believe may not perform as well during the 
next downturn to enhance the quality of the existing portfolio. The Invesco portfolio is currently outperforming its 
benchmark over all measured periods including since inception (+2 bps) (08/10).







  
 Wilshire Consulting 
 Executive Summary of Performance – September 30, 2016 
 Employees’ Retirement Fund of the City of Dallas 
 


Page 20 


 


Fixed Income Overview 7 


 
Fixed Income Composites 


 
Global Fixed Income Managers 


  
                                                 
7 High Yield Custom Benchmark: Citigroup High Yield Cash Pay (4q99 – Present); Citigroup High Yield Composite Index (1q97 – 3q99). 


QTR YTD 1-year 3-year 5-year 10-year
Global Fixed Income (Gross) 479.6$  1.13 6.70 6.22 4.77 4.08 4.94
Global Fixed Income (Net) 1.08 6.53 5.99 4.59 3.90 4.73
    Barclays Aggregate Bond Index 0.46 5.80 5.19 4.03 3.08 4.79
      Net of Fee Value Added vs Benchmark 0.62 0.73 0.80 0.56 0.82 -0.06


High Yield (Gross) 421.9$  4.76 12.77 10.94 5.41 8.12 7.39
High Yield (Net) 4.64 12.35 10.39 4.91 7.61 6.89
    Custom Benchmark 1 5.45 15.42 12.71 4.76 7.83 7.31
      Net of Fee Value Added vs Benchmark -0.81 -3.07 -2.32 0.15 -0.22 -0.42


Barclays Aggregate 0.46 5.80 5.19 4.03 3.08 4.79
Citigroup High Yield Cash Pay 5.45 15.42 12.71 4.76 7.83 7.31
BofA ML High Yield Master II 5.49 15.32 12.82 5.27 8.24 7.59


Assets Performance
(Millions)


Assets Since
(Millions) QTR YTD 1-year 3-year 5-year Inception


Global Fixed Income
  Advantus Capital Mgmt. (Gross) 201.5$  1.34 7.09 6.53 5.14 4.39 5.39 Apr-07
  Advantus Capital Mgmt. (Net) 1.30 6.95 6.34 4.97 4.22 5.21 Apr-07


   Barclays Aggregate + 0.5% 0.58 6.17 5.69 4.53 3.58 5.44 Apr-07
      Net of Fee Value Added vs Objective 0.72 0.78 0.65 0.44 0.64 -0.23


   Barclays Aggregate 0.46 5.80 5.19 4.03 3.08 4.94 Apr-07
      Net of Fee Value Added vs Benchmark 0.84 1.15 1.15 0.94 1.14 0.27
   Information Ratio 1.63 1.86 2.21
   Sharpe Ratio 2.72 1.89 1.52


   Aberdeen (Gross) 205.0$  1.22 6.63 6.11 4.26 3.96 5.63 Apr-07
   Aberdeen (Net) 1.16 6.44 5.86 4.12 3.52 5.42 Apr-07


   Barclays Aggregate + 0.5% 0.58 6.17 5.69 4.53 3.58 5.23 Apr-07
      Net of Fee Value Added vs Objective 0.58 0.27 0.17 -0.41 -0.06 0.19


   Barclays Aggregate 0.46 5.80 5.19 4.03 3.08 4.73 Apr-07
      Net of Fee Value Added vs Benchmark 0.70 0.64 0.67 0.09 0.44 0.69
   Information Ratio 0.49 0.11 0.37
   Sharpe Ratio 2.20 1.54 1.17


Date
InceptionPerformance (%)







  
 Wilshire Consulting 
 Executive Summary of Performance – September 30, 2016 
 Employees’ Retirement Fund of the City of Dallas 
 


Page 21 


 


Fixed Income Overview (Continued) 
 


Global Fixed Income Managers 


 
♦ The Fund’s global fixed income segment returned 1.08% (net of fees) during the third quarter of 2016, 


outperforming the Barclays Aggregate Bond Index, which returned 0.46%. The segment is comprised of three 
actively managed strategies: (1) Advantus Capital Management, (2) Aberdeen Asset Management, and (3) Garcia 
Hamilton. During the period, the Advantus and Aberdeen portfolio’s managed to outperform the Barclays Aggregate 
while the Garcia Hamilton portfolio struggled to keep pace with the benchmark. Advantus and Aberdeen (both with 
early 2007 inception dates) manage roughly the same level of assets for the Fund, the newer Garcia Hamilton 
portfolio (late 2013 inception) has a smaller mandate. Therefore, quarter to quarter performance is largely driven by 
the results of the Advantus and Aberdeen accounts while the Garcia Hamilton account  does not have the ability to 
move the needle as much, so to speak, on account of its smaller size. The global fixed income composite is 
outperforming against the Barclays Aggregate over the one-year (+80 bps), three-year (+56 bps), and five-year (+82 
bps) periods. 


 
Advantus Capital Management (Core Fixed Income) 
♦ Advantus Capital manages one of the Fund’s three global fixed income portfolios. During the third quarter, the 


Advantus portfolio returned 1.30% (net of fees), outperforming its benchmark (Barclays Aggregate) which returned 
0.46% for the quarter. The Advantus portfolio has a persistent and long-standing underweight allocation to 
government/agency securities (including Treasuries), which most recently made up only 22% of the portfolio 
compared to 41% for the benchmark. During the quarter U.S. Treasury securities fell -0.28% (as measured by the 
Barclays Capital U.S. Treasury Index), while the Corporate segment was able to manage a mild gain (as measured by 
the Barclays Corporate Index which returned 1.41%) during the period. With Treasury securities across all maturity 
buckets lagging the broader core fixed income market space, the portfolio’s tactical underweight exposure here 
proved beneficial. Additionally, the portfolio had a slightly lower weighted-average credit quality (rating of A for the 
portfolio vs. AA for the benchmark). In the current market environment, investors are continuing to seek out 
opportunities to increase the yield of their fixed income portfolios. One way to do this is by moving down the quality 
spectrum, incrementally further away from the safest investment-grade securities. This has in turn increased the 
demand among this segment of the bond market, pushing prices higher and producing higher overall returns for 
investors. The portfolio had slightly higher exposure to long-dated bonds (those maturing in twenty-years or more) 
which comprised 20% of the portfolio versus 12% of the benchmark. This slight mismatch was a contributor during 
the period as returns rose with increasing time of maturity in corporate debt. The Advantus portfolio is currently 
outperforming against its benchmark over the one-year (+115 bps), three-year (+94 bps), and five-year (+114 bps) 
periods as well as since inception (+27 bps) (06/07). 


 
 


Assets Since
(Millions) QTR YTD 1-year 3-year 5-year Inception


Global Fixed Income
Garcia Hamilton (Gross) 73.1$    0.31 5.86 5.68 -.- -.- 4.90 Oct-13
Garcia Hamilton (Net) 0.24 5.66 5.42 -.- -.- 4.66 Oct-13
   Barclays Aggregate + 0.5% 0.58 6.17 5.69 -.- -.- 4.36 Oct-13
      Net of Fee Value Added vs Objective -0.34 -0.51 -0.27 0.30


   Barclays Aggregate 0.46 5.80 5.19 -.- -.- 3.86 Oct-13
      Net of Fee Value Added vs Benchmark -0.22 -0.14 0.23 0.80
   Information Ratio 0.17 -.- -.-
   Sharpe Ratio 1.99 -.- -.-


Date
Performance (%) Inception







  
 Wilshire Consulting 
 Executive Summary of Performance – September 30, 2016 
 Employees’ Retirement Fund of the City of Dallas 
 


Page 22 


 


Fixed Income Overview (Continued) 
 
Aberdeen (Core Fixed Income) 
♦ Aberdeen (formerly Artio Global Investors) manages another of the Fund’s global fixed income portfolios. During the 


third quarter the Aberdeen portfolio returned 1.16% (net of fees), outperforming its benchmark the Barclays 
Aggregate Index which returned 0.46% during the period. The Aberdeen portfolio is similarly positioned as the 
Advantus portfolio in many respects, with a notable underweight exposure to government and agency bonds (35% 
portfolio weight vs. 41% benchmark weight). In the current market environment, U.S. Government debt (primarily 
Treasury securities) lagged corporate paper within the core fixed income opportunity set (the Barclays U.S. Treasury 
Index returned -0.28% while the Barclays U.S. Corporate Index returned 1.41%). This theme remained largely 
consistent as the time to maturity increased. So, holding all else equal, the portfolio’s greater relative exposure to 
corporate debt (conversely, less exposure to government debt) was a positive contributor during the period, not 
isolated to any one particular maturity bucket. The portfolio’s weighted-average credit quality (AA), sits in line with  
that of the benchmark (AA), such that this was not a meaningful source of added or detracted value. Relative to the 
benchmark, the portfolio also had a greater proportion of its debt characterized by long maturities: bonds maturing 
in ten years or more comprised over 28% of the portfolio’s total asset value, compared to just 16% for the 
benchmark. This structural composition was a contributor for the portfolio, as within the corporate segment of the 
market, longer-term securities generally outperformed their more intermediate counterparts on a total return basis. 
The Aberdeen portfolio is outperforming against its benchmark over the one-year (+67 bps), three-year (+9 bps) and 
five-year (+44 bps) period, as well as since inception (+69 bps) (06/07). 
 


Garcia Hamilton (Core Fixed Income) 
♦ Garcia Hamilton is the Fund’s third global fixed income manager. During the third quarter, the portfolio returned 


0.24% (net of fees), underperforming its benchmark index (Barclays Aggregate) which returned 0.46%. The Garcia 
Hamilton portfolio also underperformed its performance objective (Barclays Aggregate + 0.5%) which returned 
0.58%. Unlike the two other strategies in the Fund’s global fixed income segment (Advantus and Aberdeen), the 
Garcia Hamilton portfolio has typically maintained exposure to government and agency bonds (predominantly 
Treasuries) at a level that is greater than the benchmark. However, at the end of the quarter these holdings 
comprised 42% of the portfolio compared to 41% for the benchmark. This sector allocation variance had a net 
negative impact on the overall portfolio, as U.S. Treasury securities generally lagged the rest of the core fixed 
income market space (the Barclays U.S. Treasury Index returned -0.28% while the Barclays U.S. Corporate Index 
returned 1.41%). Additionally, the portfolio had a much higher percentage of its assets with long-dated maturities: 
those maturing in twenty years or more made up approximately 35% of the portfolio versus only just over 12% for 
the benchmark. While this structural composition proved to be a contributor during the period across the corporate 
segment of the market, total return decreased as time to maturity increased in treasury securities which were the 
most heavily weighted segment of the portfolio. The credit quality of the portfolio (AA) closely matched that of the 
Barclays Aggregate (also AA), such that this was not a meaningful source of added or detracted value. The Garcia 
Hamilton portfolio is currently outperforming against its benchmark since inception (+80 bps) (12/13). 
 
 







  
 Wilshire Consulting 
 Executive Summary of Performance – September 30, 2016 
 Employees’ Retirement Fund of the City of Dallas 
 


Page 23 


 


Fixed Income Overview (Continued) 8 
 


High Yield/Credit Opportunities Managers 


 
♦ The high yield composite returned 4.64% (net of fees) during the third quarter, underperforming against the 


Citigroup High Yield Cash Pay Index which returned 5.45%. The composite is currently split equally between the two 
actively-managed strategies. Underperformance this period can be attributed to both of the composites strategies 
which lagged the benchmark by a substantial margin. The high yield composite is currently outperforming over the 
three-year (+15 bps) as well as since inception period (03/97).   


 
Oaktree Capital Management (High Yield Fixed Income) 
♦ Oaktree Capital manages one of the Fund’s two high yield fixed income portfolios. The Oaktree portfolio returned -


4.74% (net of fees) during the third quarter, underperforming its benchmark (Citigroup High Yield Cash Pay) which 
returned 5.45%. The rally in the non-investment grade fixed income market continued in the third quarter of 2016, 
with metals & mining and energy leading the way.  However, the portfolio was unable to gain ground against the 
benchmark for the second quarter in a row. Despite, strong absolute returns for the period, the portfolio lost ground 
due to its underweight allocation to the energy sector coupled with an overweight allocation to the poorly 
performing utilities sector. A lower weighted-average credit quality (B) relative to the benchmark index (BB) served 
as a contributor during the period. Amidst a search for yield in the non-investment grade market space in the  


                                                 
8 Oaktree Capital Management Performance Objective: Citigroup High Yield Cash Pay + 1% (4q99 – Present); Citigroup High Yield Composite Index + 1% (2q97 – 


Present). 


Assets Since
(Millions) QTR YTD 1-year 3-year 5-year Inception


High Yield
  Oaktree Capital Management (Gross) 210.7$  4.87 14.13 11.82 4.79 7.75 7.51 Dec-96
  Oaktree Capital Management (Net) 4.74 13.68 11.24 4.27 7.21 7.00 Dec-96


   Performance Objective 5.70 16.17 13.71 5.76 8.83 8.06 Dec-96
      Net of Fee Value Added vs Objective -0.96 -2.49 -2.47 -1.49 -1.62 -1.06


   Custom Benchmark 5.45 15.42 12.71 4.76 7.83 7.06 Dec-96
      Net of Fee Value Added vs Benchmark -0.71 -1.74 -1.47 -0.49 -0.62 -0.06
   Information Ratio -1.37 -0.66 -0.61
   Sharpe Ratio 1.43 0.69 1.16


BlackRock High Yield (Gross) 211.3$  4.65 11.41 10.05 5.27 8.02 7.13 Sep-06
BlackRock High Yield (Net) 4.54 11.01 9.53 4.76 7.52 6.65 Sep-06
   Citigroup High Yield Cash Pay + 1% 5.70 16.17 13.71 5.76 8.83 8.31 Sep-06
      Net of Fee Value Added vs Objective -1.16 -5.16 -4.18 -1.00 -1.31 -1.66


   Citigroup High Yield Cash Pay 5.45 15.42 12.71 4.76 7.83 7.31 Sep-06
      Net of Fee Value Added vs Benchmark -0.91 -4.41 -3.18 0.00 -0.31 -0.66
   Information Ratio -1.35 0.00 -0.17
   Sharpe Ratio 1.42 0.86 1.33
Credit Opportunities


  Neuberger Berman (Gross) 89.5$    4.68 -.- -.- -.- -.- 11.93 Jan-16
  Neuberger Berman (Net) 4.68 -.- -.- -.- -.- 11.93 Jan-16


   Custom Benchmark + 1% 4.45 -.- -.- -.- -.- 14.17 Jan-16
      Net of Fee Value Added vs Objective 0.23 -2.24


   Custom Benchmark 4.20 -.- -.- -.- -.- 13.50 Jan-16
      Net of Fee Value Added vs Benchmark 0.48 -1.57
   Information Ratio -.- -.- -.-
   Sharpe Ratio -.- -.- -.-


Performance (%) Inception
Date







  
 Wilshire Consulting 
 Executive Summary of Performance – September 30, 2016 
 Employees’ Retirement Fund of the City of Dallas 
 


Page 24 


 


Fixed Income Overview (Continued) 
current period, securities further down along the quality spectrum relatively outperformed those with higher ratings 
(the CCC-rated component of the Citigroup High Yield index returned 8.00% while the BB-rated component returned 
4.21%). The portfolio is currently positioned with a slightly lower current yield, suggesting that the price 
performance of its bond holdings has been mildly more resilient to downwards pressures that the benchmark. 
Additionally, the portfolio maintains a slightly higher effective duration of its portfolio relative to the benchmark, as 
it has over the last couple of years; this indicates that the portfolio has greater price sensitivity to changes in interest 
rates. Given the prevailing low level or rates, it stands to reason that they are bound to head higher over some 
indeterminate period going forward. The Oaktree portfolio is currently underperforming over the one-year (-147 
bps), three-year (-49 bps) and five-year (-62 bps) periods, as well as since inception (-6 bps) (03/97). 


 
BlackRock (High Yield Fixed Income) 
♦ BlackRock manages the Fund’s other high yield fixed income portfolio. During the third quarter, the BlackRock 


portfolio returned 4.54%, underperforming its benchmark (Citigroup High Yield Cash Pay) which returned 5.45%. 
Despite a relatively strong quarter for the space overall, several of the portfolios holdings experienced modest gains 
which eroded the strong performance of positions elsewhere in the portfolio. The portfolios relative underweight 
exposure to the hard hit energy sector over the past year has benefited the portfolio’s performance on both an 
absolute and relative basis. In the current period however, energy related names continued to rally as oil stabilized, 
in turn, becoming a detracting force year to date. The weighted-average credit quality of the portfolio (B) is one-
notch below that of the benchmark (BB). This variance was a contributing force during the period, as investors bid 
up the prices of lower-rated securities in the non-investment-grade space ratings (the CCC-rated component of the 
Citigroup High Yield index returned 8.00% while the BB-rated component returned 4.21%). The portfolio is exhibiting 
a slightly lower current yield relative to the benchmark while the effective duration of the portfolio sits moderately 
above that of the benchmark, pointing to increase price sensitivity to sudden changes in the prevailing interest 
rates. The BlackRock portfolio is currently underperforming over the one-year (-318 bps), and five-year (-31 bps) 
periods as well as since inception period (-66 bps) (09/06). 
 


Neuberger Berman (Credit Opportunities) 
♦ Neuberger Berman manages the Fund’s credit opportunities portfolio. During January of 2016 the Neuberger 


Berman Credit Opportunities portfolio was funded to further diversify the plan’s fixed income basket. In its second 
full quarter of performance the portfolio returned 4.68% outperforming its custom benchmark (33% ML High Yield 
Master II Index/33% S&P LSTA Leveraged Loan Index/33% JPM EMBI Global Diversified Index) which returned 4.20%. 
The Neuberger Berman portfolio is also currently underperforming its custom benchmark since its inception (-157 
bps)(01/16).







  
 Wilshire Consulting 
 Executive Summary of Performance – September 30, 2016 
 Employees’ Retirement Fund of the City of Dallas 
 


Page 25 


 


Private Equity Overview  
 


Private Equity Composite 


 
 
 Multiple calculation = (market value + distributions) / capital called 
 Internal Rate of Return shown here is calculated by Wilshire based on cumulative cash flows and annualized 


since inception. 
 
* Formerly Credit Suisse  


Total 
Commitment


Cumulative 
Distributions


Capital 
Balance Multiple


Calculated 
IRR


Hamilton Lane Fund VII LP (Series A) 30,000,000      25,297,247      84.3% 8,430,690        25,283,214      1.33      10.4%
Hamilton Lane Fund VII LP (Series B) 20,000,000      17,695,467      88.5% 5,917,455        14,236,211      1.14      4.5%
Hamilton Lane Fund VII LP (Total) 50,000,000     42,992,714     86.0% 14,348,145     39,519,425     1.25      8.0%


Hamilton Lane Secondary Fund II LP 25,000,000      22,783,343      91.1% 25,203,014      3,596,981        1.26      9.9%


Hamilton Lane Secondary Fund III LP 30,000,000      17,732,318      59.1% 12,150,873      15,410,357      1.55      32.3%


Hamilton Lane Fund VIII LP (Global) 30,000,000      13,819,756      46.1% 1,341,061        14,606,178      1.15      8.6%


GCM-CFIG * 135,000,000    66,695,314      49.4% 1,016,325        86,655,348      1.31      10.6%


Fairview Capital III 40,000,000      4,556,865        11.4% 62,624             3,931,254        0.88      -28.2%


Total Private Equity Program 310,000,000    168,580,310    54.4% 54,122,042      166,616,581    1.31      11.8%


Cumulative Capital 
Called







  
 Wilshire Consulting 
 Executive Summary of Performance – September 30, 2016 
 Employees’ Retirement Fund of the City of Dallas 
 


Page 26 


 


Public Real Assets Overview  


 
Public Real Assets Composite 


 
Managers 


 


QTR YTD 1-year 3-year 5-year 10-year
Total Public Real Assets (Gross) 280.2$  4.44 21.05 15.05 2.10 -.- -.-
Total Public Real Assets (Net) 4.28 20.47 14.29 1.45 -.- -.-
    Alerian MLP Index 1.07 15.94 12.74 -4.82 -.- -.-
      Net of Fee Value Added vs Index 3.21 4.53 1.55 6.27


Alerian MLP Index 1.07 15.94 12.74 -4.82 4.96 9.01
S&P MLP Index 2.92 18.03 10.12 -4.38 5.50 8.64
Bloomberg Commodities Index -3.86 8.87 -2.58 -12.34 -9.36 -5.33


Assets Performance
(Millions)


Assets Since
(Millions) QTR YTD 1-year 3-year 5-year Inception


Public Real Assets
Harvest Fund Advisors (Gross) 138.2$  3.99 16.97 12.67 1.26 -.- 8.49
Harvest Fund Advisors (Net) 3.80 16.33 11.83 0.58 -.- 7.77 Dec-11
   Alerian MLP Index + 1.5% 1.45 17.06 14.24 -3.32 -.- 3.43 Dec-11
      Net of Fee Value Added vs Objective 2.35 -0.73 -2.41 3.90 4.34


   Alerian MLP Index 1.07 15.94 12.74 -4.82 -.- 1.93 Dec-11
      Net of Fee Value Added vs Benchmark 2.73 0.39 -0.91 5.40 5.84
   Information Ratio -0.24 1.13 -.-
   Sharpe Ratio 0.47 0.02 -.-


Atlantic Trust CIBC (Gross) 142.0$  4.89 25.31 17.46 1.74 -.- 10.23
Atlantic Trust CIBC (Net) 4.75 24.78 16.78 1.17 -.- 9.64 Dec-11
   Alerian MLP Index + 1.5% 1.45 17.06 14.24 -3.32 -.- 3.43 Dec-11
      Net of Fee Value Added vs Objective 3.30 7.72 2.54 4.49 6.21


   Alerian MLP Index 1.07 15.94 12.74 -4.82 -.- 1.93 Dec-11
      Net of Fee Value Added vs Benchmark 3.68 8.84 4.04 5.99 7.71
   Information Ratio 0.74 1.33 -.-
   Sharpe Ratio 0.62 0.05 -.-


Date
Performance (%) Inception







  
 Wilshire Consulting 
 Executive Summary of Performance – September 30, 2016 
 Employees’ Retirement Fund of the City of Dallas 
 


Page 27 


 


Public Real Assets Overview (Continued) 
♦ The Fund’s Master Limited Partnership (MLP) program is comprised of two individual managers, Harvest Fund 


Advisors and Atlantic Trust (formerly Invesco), with the mandates essentially split evenly between the two. After 
several quarters of underperformance – driven by weak stock selection and small measures of sector diversification 
– both the Harvest Fund Advisors and Atlantic Trust portfolios have bounced back and outperformed the broader 
market (as represented by the Alerian MLP Index) over the past two periods. By the end of the second quarter of 
2016, the MLP market looked to be making offensive gains. As Crude oil and natural gas prices, likewise, rebounded 
strongly off of the first quarter of 2016’s historic low levels. This resurgence, combined with a favorable outlook for 
energy commodity supply/demand balances, suggested at the end of the second quarter that we were on our way 
back to energy commodity price levels that could sustain new exploration and production activity and growth. 
During the third quarter of 2016, however, MLPs as a group failed to advance meaningfully. Rather than continuing a 
supportive march upward, crude oil and natural gas prices stagnated in a horizontal trading band and ultimately 
ending the period just above where they began. Against this environment, MLP performance remained relatively 
low compared to investor expectations. Total returns for the period were 1.08% for the capitalization-weighted 
Alerian MLP Index. Despite the challenging environment over the past several quarters, both strategies continue to 
add significant value over longer historical periods. The MLP composite is currently outperforming over the three-
year (+627 bps) periods, as well as since inception (09/12). 


 
Harvest Fund Advisors (MLPs) 
♦ Harvest Fund Advisors manages one of the Fund’s two MLP portfolios. During the third quarter the Harvest portfolio 


returned 3.80% (net of fees), outperforming its benchmark (Alerian MLP Index) which 1.07%. Since the Harvest 
portfolio typically has approximately anywhere from 96% to 100% of its value invested in energy sector MLPs, sector 
weighting has not historically been a meaningful source of added or detracted value. However, given the protracted 
depression in the energy market over the past few years coupled with high degrees of performance dispersion 
across different segments of the market, sector weighting is playing an increasingly important role. The portfolio 
was rewarded by its allocation or lack thereof to the utilities sector MLPs, which comprised 0% of the portfolio 
compared to 3.4% in the benchmark and returned -6.2% . Additionally, the portfolio maintained small out-of-
benchmark positions in the materials (less than 1% weight) and industrials (2.4% weight) segments of the MLP 
market space. Each of these segments outperformed the broader market and posted positive returns – materials 
sector equity holdings gained 16.0% while industrials sector equity holdings saw an increase of 14.2% for the 
portfolio during the period. The ongoing wide dispersion in performance among different midstream companies is at 
least partially driven by balance sheet strength – those carrying lest debt burden have been able to maintain 
dividend growth investors expect, which in turn helps to somewhat buoy the market price of the stock. Several of 
the portfolio’s positions experienced returns of over 30% during the period offsetting some of the losses incurred 
elsewhere in the portfolio. Notable gains during the most recent period include returns of 43.0% and 40.1% for 
Williams Cos and Archrock Inc. respectively. The portfolio has lower current yield, but with the expectation of higher 
dividend growth over the five-year period. The Harvest Fund Advisors MLP portfolio continues to outperform against 
its benchmark for the three-year (+540 bps) period, as well as since inception (+584bps) (12/11) but has fallen in the 
past few quarters, trailing over the one-year period (-91 bps). 


 
Atlantic Trust (MLPs) 
♦ Atlantic Trust CIBC (formerly Invesco) manages the Fund’s other MLP portfolio. During the third quarter, the Atlantic 


Trust portfolio returned 4.75% (net of fees), outperforming its benchmark (Alerian MLP Index) which returned -
1.07%. It is important to note that the Atlantic Trust portfolio (containing 32 stocks) is much more concentrated 
than the Harvest portfolio (47 stocks). As a result, many of its position sizes are relatively much larger and have a  
 
 







  
 Wilshire Consulting 
 Executive Summary of Performance – September 30, 2016 
 Employees’ Retirement Fund of the City of Dallas 
 


Page 28 


 


Public Real Assets Overview (Continued) 
greater impact on the overall return. The portfolio’s outperformance during the period was primarily as a result of 
superior stock selection, which was confined to the energy segment (this is of course the dominant segment in the 
market space, comprising over 97% of the benchmark’s total asset value). The portfolio’s energy-focused MLP stocks 
generated a 5.2% gain for the period. This was driven at least in part by the fact that one of the portfolio’s larger 
holdings was among its best performers during the period: “Plains All American Pipeline” (17.2% return, 4.9% 
weight). Several other of the portfolio’s holdings posted significant gains above 10%. Collectively, seven of the 
portfolio’s top ten holdings – comprising 64.7% of the total portfolio value –saw significant gains during the current 
quarter alone. These include: “Kinder Morgan Inc.” (24.3% gain), “Energy Transfer Equity” (18.9% gain), and 
“Enbridge Energy Partners” (12.3% gain). The portfolio also gained value from its relative underweighting to the 
utilities segment which underperformed the broader MLP market over the period. The portfolio continues to 
succeed in retaining a mix of higher quality names from within this segment which allowed it to recoup some of the 
losses it experienced elsewhere in the portfolio. The portfolio has lower current yield, but with the expectation of 
slightly higher dividend growth over the five-year period. The Atlantic Trust MLP portfolio is outperforming against 
its benchmark for the one- (+404 bps) and three-year (+599) periods, as well as since inception (+771) (12/11)  


 







 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Appendix: Risk Analysis







  
 Wilshire Consulting 
 Executive Summary of Performance – September 30, 2016 
 Employees’ Retirement Fund of the City of Dallas 
 


Page 30 


 


Expected Return and Risk  


 


 







  
 Wilshire Consulting 
 Executive Summary of Performance – September 30, 2016 
 Employees’ Retirement Fund of the City of Dallas 
 


Page 31 


 


Expected Return and Tracking Error based on Wilshire’s Asset Assumptions 


 
 
♦ The variance between the Fund’s actual asset allocation and the target allocation is a source of tracking error for the 


Fund. This “asset allocation tracking error” is currently forecasted to be 0.35% (for the one-year period) at quarter-
end. The Fund’s public real assets segment is the largest contributor to the overall tracking error. This is largely due 
to the fact that the public real assets composite currently sits around 1.7% underweight to its target allocation. The 
international and domestic equity segments also contributed towards tracking error. The global low volatility equity 
and private real estate segments each had a marginally diversifying impact, dampening the Fund’s overall tracking 
error. 


 







  
 Wilshire Consulting 
 Executive Summary of Performance – September 30, 2016 
 Employees’ Retirement Fund of the City of Dallas 
 


Page 32 


 


Manager Risk Statistics 


 


T. Rowe Price (Enhanced Index) 1 Yr 3 Yr 5 Yr 10 Yr Advantus Capital (Core Fixed Income) 1 Yr 3 Yr 5 Yr 10 Yr
Standard Deviation 13.16 11.09 11.45 15.37 Standard Deviation 2.23 2.56 2.71 n/a
Standard Deviation (Index) 12.46 10.83 11.12 15.25 Standard Deviation (Index) 2.34 2.61 2.66 n/a
Sharpe Ratio 1.16 1.00 1.44 0.44 Sharpe Ratio 2.72 1.89 1.52 n/a
Sharpe Ratio (Index) 1.21 1.02 1.46 0.41 Sharpe Ratio (Index) 2.09 1.50 1.12 n/a
Excess Risk 1.50 1.07 1.00 1.08 Excess Risk 0.67 0.49 0.50 n/a
Information Ratio 0.08 0.08 0.21 0.44 Information Ratio 1.63 1.86 2.21 n/a


Systematic (Small Core) 1 Yr 3 Yr 5 Yr 10 Yr Aberdeen (Core Fixed Income) 1 Yr 3 Yr 5 Yr 10 Yr
Standard Deviation 14.40 13.42 14.51 20.21 Standard Deviation 2.53 2.60 2.92 n/a
Standard Deviation (Index) 16.03 14.55 15.02 19.85 Standard Deviation (Index) 2.34 2.61 2.66 n/a
Sharpe Ratio 1.22 0.73 1.25 0.39 Sharpe Ratio 2.20 1.54 1.17 n/a
Sharpe Ratio (Index) 0.95 0.45 1.05 0.31 Sharpe Ratio (Index) 2.09 1.50 1.12 n/a
Excess Risk 3.96 3.84 3.48 3.78 Excess Risk 1.30 0.86 1.14 n/a
Information Ratio 0.54 0.80 0.62 0.42 Information Ratio 0.49 0.11 0.37 n/a


Channing Capital (Small Value) 1 Yr 3 Yr 5 Yr 10 Yr Garcia Hamilton (Core Fixed Income) 1 Yr 3 Yr 5 Yr 10 Yr
Standard Deviation 17.54 n/a n/a n/a Standard Deviation 2.57 n/a n/a n/a
Standard Deviation (Index) 14.67 n/a n/a n/a Standard Deviation (Index) 2.34 n/a n/a n/a
Sharpe Ratio 0.77 n/a n/a n/a Sharpe Ratio 1.99 n/a n/a n/a
Sharpe Ratio (Index) 1.26 n/a n/a n/a Sharpe Ratio (Index) 2.09 n/a n/a n/a
Excess Risk 3.92 n/a n/a n/a Excess Risk 1.23 n/a n/a n/a
Information Ratio -1.08 n/a n/a n/a Information Ratio 0.17 n/a n/a n/a


Acadian (Int'l Small Cap) 1 Yr 3 Yr 5 Yr 10 Yr BlackRock (High Yield) 1 Yr 3 Yr 5 Yr 10 Yr
Standard Deviation 15.31 12.33 14.58 21.11 Standard Deviation 6.51 5.41 5.56 8.69
Standard Deviation (Index) 15.07 12.15 13.98 19.84 Standard Deviation (Index) 8.35 6.45 6.32 10.55
Sharpe Ratio 0.95 0.28 0.73 0.25 Sharpe Ratio 1.42 0.86 1.33 0.65
Sharpe Ratio (Index) 0.87 0.28 0.61 0.13 Sharpe Ratio (Index) 1.49 0.72 1.22 0.60
Excess Risk 3.47 3.19 3.36 3.96 Excess Risk 2.08 2.15 1.73 2.88
Information Ratio 0.39 0.01 0.60 0.69 Information Ratio -1.35 0.00 -0.17 -0.21


AQR (Int'l Enhanced Index) 1 Yr 3 Yr 5 Yr 10 Yr Oaktree (High Yield) 1 Yr 3 Yr 5 Yr 10 Yr
Standard Deviation 14.06 11.71 14.32 19.33 Standard Deviation 7.63 6.05 6.15 9.00
Standard Deviation (Index) 15.04 12.69 14.23 18.52 Standard Deviation (Index) 8.35 6.45 6.32 10.55
Sharpe Ratio 0.65 0.11 0.59 0.05 Sharpe Ratio 1.43 0.69 1.16 0.67
Sharpe Ratio (Index) 0.60 0.01 0.42 0.02 Sharpe Ratio (Index) 1.49 0.72 1.22 0.60
Excess Risk 2.46 2.18 2.30 2.61 Excess Risk 0.95 0.71 0.94 2.76
Information Ratio 0.05 0.56 1.02 0.30 Information Ratio -1.37 -0.66 -0.61 -0.12


Baring (Int'l Enhanced Index) 1 Yr 3 Yr 5 Yr 10 Yr
Standard Deviation 15.65 12.64 14.27 19.31 Harvest (MLP) 1 Yr 3 Yr 5 Yr 10 Yr
Standard Deviation (Index) 15.04 12.69 14.23 19.19 Standard Deviation 24.61 20.21 n/a n/a
Sharpe Ratio 0.44 0.01 0.40 0.08 Standard Deviation (Index) 23.52 19.96 n/a n/a
Sharpe Ratio (Index) 0.60 0.01 0.42 0.06 Sharpe Ratio 0.47 0.02 n/a n/a
Excess Risk 1.74 1.69 1.54 1.73 Sharpe Ratio (Index) 0.53 -0.25 n/a n/a
Information Ratio -1.12 -0.03 -0.13 0.21 Excess Risk 3.38 5.03 n/a n/a


Information Ratio -0.24 1.13 n/a n/a


Wellington (Global Equity) 1 Yr 3 Yr 5 Yr 10 Yr Atlantic Trust CIBC (MLP) 1 Yr 3 Yr 5 Yr 10 Yr
Standard Deviation 15.02 12.05 n/a n/a Standard Deviation 26.44 21.03 n/a n/a
Standard Deviation (Index) 13.48 11.34 n/a n/a Standard Deviation (Index) 23.52 19.96 n/a n/a
Sharpe Ratio 0.48 0.58 n/a n/a Sharpe Ratio 0.62 0.05 n/a n/a
Sharpe Ratio (Index) 0.86 0.45 n/a n/a Sharpe Ratio (Index) 0.53 -0.25 n/a n/a
Excess Risk 3.23 3.47 n/a n/a Excess Risk 4.87 4.72 n/a n/a
Information Ratio -1.21 0.52 n/a n/a Information Ratio 0.74 1.33 n/a n/a


Acadian (Global Low Volatility) 1 Yr 3 Yr 5 Yr 10 Yr Real Estate Investment Trusts
Standard Deviation 10.40 n/a n/a n/a Adelante (REIT) 1 Yr 3 Yr 5 Yr 10 Yr
Standard Deviation (Index) 9.86 n/a n/a n/a Standard Deviation 14.73 14.08 14.63 25.18
Sharpe Ratio 1.36 n/a n/a n/a Standard Deviation (Index) 15.57 14.90 15.40 26.61
Sharpe Ratio (Index) 1.62 n/a n/a n/a Sharpe Ratio 0.84 0.98 1.05 0.16
Excess Risk 2.95 n/a n/a n/a Sharpe Ratio (Index) 1.16 0.97 1.03 0.19
Information Ratio -0.55 n/a n/a n/a Excess Risk 1.98 1.87 1.80 3.23


Information Ratio -2.44 -0.34 -0.25 -0.29


Security(REIT) 1 Yr 3 Yr 5 Yr 10 Yr
Standard Deviation 15.75 15.24 15.63 26.80
Standard Deviation (Index) 15.57 14.90 15.40 26.61
Sharpe Ratio 1.06 0.91 0.94 0.17
Sharpe Ratio (Index) 1.16 0.97 1.03 0.19
Excess Risk 1.59 1.19 1.13 2.22
Information Ratio -0.79 -0.47 -0.88 -0.21


Global Equity


Master Limited Partnerships


Fixed Income (Core)


High Yield Fixed Income


U.S. Equity


Non-U.S. Equity







  
 Wilshire Consulting 
 Executive Summary of Performance – September 30, 2016 
 Employees’ Retirement Fund of the City of Dallas 
 


Page 33 


 


♦ Below is a historical visualization of realized tracking error (“ex-post”) for Dallas ERF over the preceding ten years: 


 
 
 





		Asset Class Performance

		Total Fund Asset Growth

		Quarterly Total Fund Attribution vs. Policy

		One-Year Total Fund Attribution vs. Policy

		Composite

		Domestic Equity Managers

		Domestic Equity Managers

		International Equity Composite

		International Equity Managers

		International Equity Managers

		Global Equity Composite

		Global Equity Managers

		Global Low Volatility Composite

		Global Equity Managers

		Real Estate Composite

		Real Estate Managers

		Real Estate Managers

		Fixed Income Composites

		Global Fixed Income Managers

		Global Fixed Income Managers

		High Yield/Credit Opportunities Managers

		Private Equity Composite

		Public Real Assets Composite

		Managers

		Expected Return and Risk

		Expected Return and Tracking Error based on Wilshire’s Asset Assumptions

		Manager Risk Statistics






Numbers In Context 3Q16 







2 


Asset Class Performance 


Data sources:  Wilshire Compass 


Note:  Developed asset class is developed markets ex-U.S., ex-Canada. 


Annualized
5-Year


2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 YTD 2016 as of Sept 16'
REITs            
36.0%


Emrg Mrkts       
39.8%


Core Bond     
5.2%


Emrg Mrkts    
79.0%


MLPs          
35.9%


MLPs        
13.9%


Emrg Mrkts 
18.06


U.S. Equity 
33.1%


REITs        
31.8%


REITs         
4.2%   


Emrg Mrkts         
16.4%


U.S. Equity 
16.3%


Emrg Mrkts        
32.6%


Commodities      
16.2%


T-Bills            
2.1%


MLPs          
76.4%


REITs       
28.6%


U.S. TIPS 
13.6%


Developed 
17.9%


MLPs          
27.6%


U.S. Equity 
12.7%


U.S. Equity 
0.7%


MLPs        
15.9%


REITs           
15.8%


Developed          
26.9%


MLPs             
12.7%


U.S. TIPS             
-2.4%


High Yield     
58.2%


Emrg Mrkts          
19.2%


REITs           
9.2%


REITs         
17.6%


Developed 
23.3%


Core Bond        
6.0%


Core Bond        
0.6%


High Yield        
15.1%


High Yield 
8.3%


MLPs              
26.1%


U.S. TIPS             
11.6%


High Yield        
-26.2%


Developed   
32.5%


U.S. Equity 
17.2%


Core Bond 
7.8%


U.S. Equity 
16.1%


High Yield 
7.4%


MLPs        
4.8%


T-Bills         
0.1%


REITs         
9.7%   


Developed 
7.9%


U.S. Equity     
15.8%


Developed             
11.6%


Commodities       
-35.7%


REITs        
28.6%


Commodities   
16.8%


High Yield 
5.0%


High Yield 
15.8%


REITs        
1.9%


U.S. TIPS           
3.6%


Developed      
-0.4%


Commodities 
8.9%


MLPs               
5.0%


High Yield       
11.9%


Core Bond             
7.0%


MLPs                      
-36.9%


U.S. Equity   
28.3%


High Yield 
15.1%


U.S. Equity 
1.0%


U.S. TIPS     
7.0%


T-Bills         
0.1%


High Yield        
2.5%


U.S. TIPS           
-1.4%


U.S. Equity 
8.4%


Emrg Mrkts         
3.4%


T-Bills                          
4.8%


U.S. Equity     
5.6%


U.S. Equity         
-37.2%


Commodities   
18.9%


Developed   
8.2%


T-Bills         
0.1%


MLPs         
4.8%


Core Bond        
-2.0%


T-Bills         
0.0%


High Yield        
-4.5%


U.S. TIPS           
7.3%


Core Bond        
3.1%


Core Bond                
4.3%


T-Bills                    
5.0%


REITs                    
-39.2%


U.S. TIPS    
11.4%


Core Bond    
6.5%


Developed      
-11.7%


Core Bond 
4.2%


Emrg Mrkts       
-2.3%


Emrg Mrkts       
-1.8%


Emrg Mrkts       
-14.6%


Core Bond        
5.8%


U.S. TIPS           
1.9%


Commodities         
2.1%


High Yield           
1.9%


Developed               
-43.1%


Core Bond     
5.9%


U.S. TIPS      
6.3%


Commodities   
-13.3%


T-Bills          
0.1%


U.S. TIPS           
-8.6%


Developed      
-4.5%


Commodities 
-24.7%


Developed      
2.2%


T-Bills         
0.1%


U.S. TIPS        
0.4%


REITs                     
-17.6%


Emrg Mrkts         
-53.2%


T-Bills            
0.2%


T-Bills        
0.1%


Emrg Mrkts      
-18.2%


Commodities 
-1.0%


Commodities 
-9.5%


Commodities 
-17.0%


MLPs                      
-32.6%


T-Bills         
0.2%


Commodities 
-9.4%


Annual Asset Class Returns - Best to Worst







3 


September 2016 Asset Class Assumptions 


Risk (%)
Dec. Q3 Change Dec.
2015 2016 vs YE 2015


Investment Categories:
U.S. Stocks 6.50                 6.25                 (0.25)               17.00               
Dev ex-U.S. Stocks 6.50                 6.25                 (0.25)               18.00               
Emerging Mkt Stocks 6.50                 6.25                 (0.25)               26.00               
Global Stocks 6.70                 6.45                 (0.25)               17.10               
Private Markets 9.50                 8.85                 (0.65)               27.50               
Cash Equivalents 1.25                 1.25                 -                   1.25                 
Core Bonds 3.50                 2.85                 (0.65)               5.00                 
LT Core Bonds 4.30                 3.20                 (1.10)               10.00               
TIPS 3.25                 2.40                 (0.85)               6.00                 
High Yield Bonds 6.35                 5.15                 (1.20)               10.00               
EMD Local Currency (h) 5.60                 3.85                 (1.75)               5.00                 
U.S. RE Securities 5.00                 4.90                 (0.10)               17.00               
Private Real Estate 5.80                 6.10                 0.30                 14.00               
Commodities 3.55                 3.60                 0.05                 15.00               
MLPs 9.65                 8.45                 (1.20)               17.00               
Real Asset Basket 6.40                 5.95                 (0.45)               8.40                 


Inflation: 1.55                 1.60                 0.05                 1.75                 


Returns minus Inflation:
U.S. Stocks 4.95                 4.65                 (0.30)               
U.S. Bonds 1.95                 1.25                 (0.70)               
Cash Equivalents (0.30)               (0.35)               (0.05)               


Stocks minus Bonds: 3.00                 3.40                 0.40                 


Bonds minus Cash: 2.25                 1.60                 (0.65)               


Total Return (%)







4 


Economic Review 


Data sources:  Bureau of Economic Analysis, Bureau of Labor Statistics, Federal Reserve Bank of St. Louis, Barclays Capital 


September 30, 2016
CPI (all items)
Seasonally adjusted Sep-16 0.3 3-Month 0.5


Aug-16 0.2 12-Month 1.5
Jul-16 0.0 10-Yr Annual 1.7


Breakeven Inflation 10-Year 1.6


Consumer Sentiment Sep-16 91.2
Unv. of Michigan Survey Aug-16 89.8


1-Yr Ago 87.2 10-Yr Avg 77.9


Manufacturing Sep-16 51.5 Change in Manufacturing Sector
Inst. for Supply Mgmt Aug-16 49.4 >50 Expansion
Purchasing Mngrs' Idx 1-Yr Avg 50.3 <50 Contraction
Note:  Seasonally adjusted CPI data is utilized to better reflect short-term pricing activity.
          Sept/2016 CPI is based on Federal Reserve of Philadelphia Survey of Professional Forecasters


Monthly Change Cumulative Change
Key Economic Indicators


Real GDP


Consumer Spending


 $(18,000)


 $(15,000)


 $(12,000)


 $(9,000)


 $(6,000)


 $(3,000)


 $-


 $3,000


 $6,000


 $9,000


 $12,000


 $15,000


 $18,000


-10.00%


-8.00%


-6.00%


-4.00%


-2.00%


0.00%


2.00%


4.00%


6.00%


8.00%


10.00%


Q
u


ar
te


rl
y 


G
D


P
 (


$
b


il)


A
n


n
u


al
iz


ed
 G


ro
w


th


Changes in Real GDP (2009 base year)


Annualized Change in Real GDP Private Investment Series9 Government Spending


 (5.0)


 -


 5.0


 10.0


 15.0


 (200)


 (100)


 -


 100


 200


 300


 400


U
n


em
p


lo
ym


en
t 


R
at


e 
(%


)


Jo
b


 G
ro


w
th


/
Lo


ss
 (


th
ou


)


Unemployment Rate and Job Growth/Loss


Job Growth (Loss) Unemployment Rate







Debt:  Where are we now? 


• Eight years since the debt crisis hit in full 


• After a period where mortgage defaults dominated net borrowing, consumer 
credit is beginning to trend just below the historical average 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 
 


• Note:  Potential GDP (estimated GDP at full employment) is utilized as it is more stable than actual 
GDP, therefore changes are being driven by the debt figure (the numerator) 


5 
Source:  Federal Reserve, Congressional Budget Office 


-10%


-5%


0%


5%


10%


15%
Mortgage Defaults Effect on Household Debt


Change in Household Debt / Potential GDP
Residential Delinquency Rate


Change in Household Debt / Potential GDP







Debt:  Where are we now? 


• Debt growth in the private sector has normalized, as well 


• Borrowing in small businesses, which are more reliant on U.S. demand, is 
moving towards the historical average 


6 
Source:  Federal Reserve, Congressional Budget Office 


-6%


-4%


-2%


0%


2%


4%


6%


8%


10%
Change in Business Debt / Potential GDP


Corporate Small Business


Change in Business Debt / Potential GDP







Debt:  Where are we now? 


• Federal government drove new debt creation after the crisis 


• Growth trending downward but with occasional spikes 


• Total public debt / GDP has gone from 63% for year-end 2007 to 105% mid-
year 2016 


7 
Source:  Federal Reserve, Congressional Budget Office 


-5%


0%


5%


10%


15%


20%
Change in Federal Debt / Potential GDP







8 


U.S. Equity Market 


Data sources:  Wilshire Compass, Wilshire Atlas 


September 30, 2016 Qtr Ytd 1 Yr 3 Yr 5 Yr 10 Yr


Wilshire 5000 4.3 8.4 15.3 10.7 16.3 7.4
Wilshire U.S. Large Cap 3.9 8.0 15.3 11.0 16.3 7.3
Wilshire U.S. Small Cap 7.7 13.0 16.0 7.8 16.9 8.7


Wilshire U.S. Large Growth 6.2 4.9 11.2 11.2 16.7 8.4
Wilshire U.S. Large Value 1.8 10.6 18.8 10.7 15.8 6.2
Wilshire U.S. Small Growth 9.4 8.7 10.5 5.2 15.4 8.9
Wilshire U.S. Small Value 6.1 17.1 21.2 10.2 18.2 8.5


Wilshire REIT Index -1.2 9.7 17.9 14.3 15.8 5.9
MSCI USA Minimum Volatility Index -1.3 9.9 16.6 12.7 15.1 8.0
FTSE RAFI U.S. 1000 Index 4.1 9.6 15.8 10.0 16.6 8.0


8.4


18.0


16.0


16.8


-1.6


18.6


7.7


11.1


4.7


1.5


3.7


12.2


4.3


-4.4


4.5


-5.7


-1.6


2.7


-2.5


4.6


4.0


2.2


4.7


12.6


Wilshire 5000


Telecom


Materials


Utilities


Real Estate


Energy


Cnsmr Stpls


Industrials


Cnsmr Discr.


Healthcare


Financials


Info. Tech.


2.7%


3.2%


3.4%


4.8%


6.8%


9.3%


10.2%


12.4%


13.5%


13.7%


20.1%


Wilshire 5000 Sector Weight & Return (%)


3rd Quarter Year to Date


-10.00%


-5.00%


0.00%


5.00%


10.00%


15.00%


La
rg


e 
C


ap
 i


n
 e


xc
es


s 
of


 S
m


al
l 


C
ap


Large Cap vs. Small Cap


QTD Excess Return Rolling 3-Year Excess Return


-10.00%


-5.00%


0.00%


5.00%


10.00%


15.00%


G
ro


w
th


 i
n


 e
xc


es
s 


of
 V


al
u


e


Growth vs. Value


QTD Excess Return Rolling 3-Year Excess Return







9 


Returns by Quality Segment 


Relatively strong returns across most quality ratings for 2016 


Data sources:  Wilshire Atlas 


 -


 2.00


 4.00


 6.00


 8.00


 10.00


 12.00


 14.00


3Q 16 YTD 2016


To
ta


l 
R


et
u


rn
 (


%
)


Return by S&P Quality Rating


A+ A A- B+ B B- C / D


A+ 6%
A 12%
A- 16%
B+ 27%
B 13%
B- 9%
C / D 3%
N.A. 14%


Segment Weights
as of June 30







Equity Returns and Fed Tightening 


• In 12 tightening cycles of the past 50 years, equity prices have typically fared well 


• What might be different today? 


– While in the past corporate earnings were improving before and through the 
average cycle, EPS is currently on the decline 


– Current cycle may have already started with quantitative easing discontinued 


• Except for 2004-2006, recent cycles have been shorter than average 


10 
Source:  Federal Reserve, Wilshire Compass, Bridgewater Associates 


1965-1966


1967-1969
1971


1972-1973


1974


1977-1980


1980-1981
1983-1984


1988-1989


1994-
1995


1999-2000


2004-2006


-40%


-30%


-20%


-10%


0%


10%


20%


30%


0 200 400 600 800 1000 1200 1400 1600


To
ta


l E
q


u
it


y 
R


et
u


rn
 (


>
1


 Y
ea


r 
A


n
n


u
al


iz
ed


)


Change in Fed Funds Rate (basis points)


U.S. Equity vs. Fed Tightening


Size of bubble indicates duration of tightening







11 


Non-U.S. Equity Market 


Data sources:  Wilshire Compass 


September 30, 2016 Qtr Ytd 1 Yr 3 Yr 5 Yr 10 Yr


MSCI ACWI ex-US ($g) 7.0 6.3 9.8 0.6 6.5 2.6
MSCI EAFE ($g) 6.5 2.2 7.1 0.9 7.9 2.3
MSCI Emerging Markets ($g) 9.2 16.4 17.2 -0.2 3.4 4.3
MSCI Frontier Markets ($g) 2.7 2.6 1.4 0.2 5.0 0.3


MSCI ACWI ex-US Growth ($g) 6.1 6.5 11.9 2.6 7.8 3.5
MSCI ACWI ex-US Value ($g) 7.9 6.0 7.6 -1.4 5.2 1.7
MSCI ACWI ex-US Small ($g) 8.5 8.5 14.3 4.0 9.1 5.0


MSCI EAFE Minimum Volatility Idx 2.2 5.4 11.9 7.1 9.9 6.0
FTSE RAFI Developed ex-US Index 7.8 3.4 7.0 0.0 7.0 2.6


MSCI EAFE LC (g) 6.1 -1.2 5.1 5.8 11.7 2.7
MSCI Emerging Markets LC (g) 7.7 11.6 13.4 4.7 7.3 6.3


2.2


12.1


-0.2


1.9


2.8


0.7


2.8


6.5


8.4


2.7


9.9


6.4


4.0


8.7


MSCI EAFE


Australia


Switzerland


Germany


France


United Kingdom


Japan


7.3%


9.0%


9.0%


9.7%


18.9%


23.8%


MSCI EAFE:  Largest Countries and Return (USD)


3rd Quarter Year to Date


16.4


23.5


63.1


7.2


22.3


15.0


8.8


9.2


6.4


11.4


5.9


12.4


11.0


14.0


MSCI Emrg Mrkts


South Africa


Brazil


India


Taiwan


South Korea


China


7.1%


7.4%


8.5%


12.1%


14.8%


27.0%


MSCI EM:  Largest Countries and Return (USD)


3rd Quarter Year to Date







Global Fiscal Stimulus 


• Governments in many countries are now leaning towards fiscal policy to 
stimulate growth 


• China, Japan and Canada have been among the most aggressive so far 


• Fiscal stimulus is a challenge within the Eurozone given their collective rules, 
such as overly indebted countries cannot run significant fiscal deficits 


12 
Source:  International Monetary Fund 


Number of developed countries in which the fiscal stance was tightened, loosened, or remained neutral 







13 


U.S. Fixed Income Market 


Data sources:  Wilshire Compass, Bloomberg Barclays, U.S. Treasury 


0


200


400


600


800


1,000


1,200


1,400


1,600


1,800


2,000


O
p


ti
on


 A
d


ju
st


ed
 S


p
re


ad
 (


b
p


s)


Bloomberg Barclays Fixed Income Indexes


Securitized IG Corporate Aa Corporate High Yield


0.00


0.50


1.00


1.50


2.00


2.50


3.00


3.50


0 5 10 15 20 25 30


Y
ie


ld
 (


%
)


Maturity (yrs)


Treasury Yield Curve


Current Quarter Previous Quarter One Year Ago


September 30, 2016 YTM Duration Qtr Ytd 1 Yr 3 Yr 5 Yr 10 Yr


Bloomberg Barclays Aggregate 2.0 5.5 0.5 5.8 5.2 4.0 3.1 4.8
Bloomberg Barclays Treasury 1.3 6.4 -0.3 5.1 4.1 3.4 2.2 4.5
Bloomberg Barclays Gov't-Related 2.0 5.6 0.3 6.0 5.6 3.9 2.9 4.5
Bloomberg Barclays Securitized 2.1 2.7 0.6 3.9 3.7 3.6 2.8 4.6
Bloomberg Barclays Corporate IG 2.8 7.5 1.4 9.2 8.6 5.6 5.1 5.9


Bloomberg Barclays LT Gov't/Credit 3.3 15.6 1.2 15.7 14.7 10.1 6.3 7.8
Bloomberg Barclays LT Treasury 2.2 18.2 -0.4 14.7 13.1 11.2 5.5 8.1
Bloomberg Barclays LT Gov't-Rel. 3.8 12.7 0.9 14.6 14.9 9.4 6.3 7.7
Bloomberg Barclays LT Corp. IG 4.1 14.3 2.6 16.8 15.7 9.5 7.2 7.6


Bloomberg Barclays U.S. TIPS 0.2 8.6 1.0 7.3 6.6 2.4 1.9 4.5
Bloomberg Barclays High Yield 6.6 4.0 5.6 15.1 12.7 5.3 8.3 7.7
Treasury Bills 0.3 0.25 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.1 0.1 0.9







14 


Non-U.S. Fixed Income Market 


Data sources:  Wilshire Compass, Bloomberg Barclays 


September 30, 2016 Qtr Ytd 1 Yr 3 Yr 5 Yr 10 Yr


Developed Markets
Bloomberg Barclays Global Aggregate xUS 1.0 13.1 11.7 0.8 0.7 3.8
Bloomberg Barclays Global Aggregate xUS * 0.5 6.9 7.5 5.8 5.0 4.7
Bloomberg Barclays Wrld Govt xUS IL Bond 4.7 11.5 7.5 2.6 3.2 4.2
Bloomberg Barclays Wrld Govt xUS IL Bond * 5.7 16.5 15.0 9.4 7.0 6.0


Emerging Mrk ts (Hard Currency)
Bloomberg Barclays EM USD Aggregate 3.1 12.8 13.9 6.6 7.3 7.4
Emerging Mrk ts (Foreign Currency)
Bloomberg Barclays EM Local Currency Gov't 3.1 14.5 15.7 0.1 2.4 n.a.
Bloomberg Barclays EM Local Currency Gov't * 1.0 6.2 6.7 3.5 3.2 n.a.


Euro vs. Dollar 1.2 3.5 0.7 -6.0 -3.5 -1.2
Yen vs. Dollar 1.3 18.8 18.3 -1.0 -5.3 1.5
Pound vs. Dollar -2.8 -11.9 -14.2 -7.1 -3.6 -3.6
* Returns are reported in terms of local market investors, w hich removes currency effects.


0.00


2.00


4.00


6.00


8.00


10.00


12.00


Y
ie


ld
 t


o 
W


or
st


 (
%


)


Bloomberg Barclays Fixed Income Indexes


U.S. Treasury Global xUS Gov't EM USD Sovereign EM Foreign Gov't


-25%


-20%


-15%


-10%


-5%


0%


5%


10%


15%


20%


25%


0


10


20


30


40


50


60


70


80


90


100


R
ol


lin
g


 1
-Y


ea
r 


R
et


u
rn


In
d


ex
 L


ev
el


U.S. Dollar Index: Major Currencies


Index Level Rolling 1-Year Return







Global Central Bank Expectations 


• Market expectations for central bank activity are muted across the globe 


• U.S. Federal Open Market Committee median expectation for year-end 
2018 was 1.875% at their last meeting 


15 


-0.30%
-0.37% -0.37%


-0.03%
-0.14% -0.15%


0.34%
0.26% 0.30%


0.49%


0.69%
0.81%


-1.00%


-0.50%


0.00%


0.50%


1.00%
Market Expectations: Target Policy Rate


Eurozone Japan UK U.S.


Source:  J.P. Morgan Asset Management 







European Debt 


• Spreads on Portugal’s government 
debt have risen as the country 
faces the possibility of a 
downgrade, which would 
disqualify them from the European 
Central Bank’s bond purchase 
program 


 


 


• Yields on government bonds are 
again falling after a brief uptick; 
Germany actually sold 10-year 
debt at a negative yield in July 


16 
Source:  Bloomberg Barclays, International Monetary Fund 


0


500


1,000


1,500


2,000


2,500


S
p


re
ad


 o
n


 5
-Y


r 
B


on
d


 (
b


p
s)


Government Bond Spreads
Versus German Yield Curve


Ireland Portugal Spain Italy


Introduction of
the Euro


-2.00


0.00


2.00


4.00


6.00


8.00


10.00


12.00


14.00


16.00


18.00


20.00


A
n


n
u


al
 Y


ie
ld


 (
%


)


European Government Bond Yields


Germany France Spain Italy







17 


High Yield  Bond Market 


Data sources:  Bloomberg Barclays 


0


500


1,000


1,500


2,000


2,500


3,000


O
p


ti
on


 A
d


ju
st


ed
 S


p
re


ad
 (


b
p


s)


Bloomberg Barclays High Yield Indexes


HY Index Ba B Caa


September 30, 2016 Weight Qtr Ytd 1 Yr 3 Yr 5 Yr 10 Yr


Bloomberg Barclays High Yield Idx 100% 5.6 15.1 12.7 5.3 8.3 7.7


Quality Distribution


Ba U.S. High Yield 46.4% 4.4 12.3 12.1 6.5 8.3 8.2
B U.S. High Yield 38.3% 5.7 13.5 11.3 4.4 7.7 6.4
Caa U.S. High Yield 14.4% 8.2 25.5 16.1 4.4 9.8 6.9
Ca to D U.S. High Yield 0.8% 17.1 63.3 27.2 -21.6 -8.0 -2.4
Non-Rated U.S. High Yield 0.1% -1.9 4.4 -7.5 -3.3 4.7 0.6







18 


Real Assets 


Data sources:  Wilshire Compass, National Council of Real Estate Investment Fiduciaries 


September 30, 2016 Qtr Ytd 1 Yr 3 Yr 5 Yr 10 Yr


Barclays U.S. TIPS Index 1.0 7.3 6.6 2.4 1.9 4.5
Bloomberg Commodity Index -3.9 8.9 -2.6 -12.3 -9.4 -5.3
Wilshire Global RESI Index 0.0 10.1 15.5 10.1 13.8 4.9
NCREIF ODCE Fund Index 2.1 6.5 10.1 12.4 12.4 6.0
NCREIF Timberland Index 0.7 1.4 3.3 7.6 6.9 6.4
Alerian MLP Index (Oil & Gas) 1.1 15.9 12.7 -4.8 5.0 9.0


0.00%


2.00%


4.00%


6.00%


8.00%


10.00%


12.00%


0.00%


2.00%


4.00%


6.00%


8.00%


10.00%


12.00%


C
u


rr
en


t 
Y


ie
ld


C
u


rr
en


t 
C


ap
 R


at
e


Real Estate Valuation


NPI Current Value Cap Rate Wilshire RESI Current Yield 10-Year Treasury Yield


-40.0


-30.0


-20.0


-10.0


0.0


10.0


20.0


30.0


R
et


u
rn


 (
%


)


NCREIF ODCE Fund Index Return


Appreciation Income Total Return







Appendix:  Private Markets Update 







Private Equity –  
Fundraising & Investment Activity 


20 Source: Preqin, as of September 30, 2016.   


Global Quarterly Private Equity Fundraising (Q1 2010 - Q3 2016) 


0


50


100


150


200


250


300


350


400


$0


$20


$40


$60


$80


$100


$120


$140


Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3


2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016


N
um


be
r o


f F
un


ds
 


Ca
pi


ta
l R


ai
se


d 
($


bn
) 


Aggregate Capital Raised ($bn) No. of Funds Closed


Global Private Equity-Backed Buyout Activity (Q1 2010 – Q3 2016) 


0


20


40


60


80


100


120


140


160


0


200


400


600


800


1,000


1,200


Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3


2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016


A
gg


re
ga


te
 D


ea
l V


al
ue


 ($
bn


) 


N
o.


 o
f D


ea
ls


 


Aggregate Deal Value ($bn) No. of Deals







Private Equity –  
Pricing & Valuations 


21 


Global LBO Multiples (2006 – Q3 2016) 


U.S. Venture Capital Median Pre-Money Valuations (2006 – August 2016) 


Sources: S&P LCD, through September 30, 2016; PitchBook, as of August 1, 2016. 


8.4x 


9.7x 
9.1x 


7.7x 
8.5x 8.8x 8.7x 8.8x 


9.7x 
10.3x 10.5x 


8.8x 
9.7x 9.7x 


8.9x 9.2x 8.8x 
9.3x 


8.7x 
9.7x 9.2x 9.9x 


0.0x


2.0x


4.0x


6.0x


8.0x


10.0x


12.0x


2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 Q3 2016


Pu
rc


ha
se


 P
ri


ce
 M


ul
ti


pl
es


 


U.S. Europe


$0


$50


$100


$150


$200


$250


$0


$5


$10


$15


$20


$25


$30


$35


$40


$45


2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016


Se
ri


es
 C


, D
+ 


V
al


ua
ti


on
s (


$m
) 


Se
ed


, S
er


ie
s A


, B
 V


al
ua


ti
on


s (
$m


) 


Seed Series A Series B Series C Series D+







• Smaller deals continue to dominant deal activity by count 


• Deals over $2.5 billion make up the majority of deal value in 2016 


Private Equity –  
U.S. Investment Activity by Deal Size 


22 


Percentage of Deal Volume (count) by Deal Size 


Source: PitchBook, *as of September 30, 2016.    


Percentage of Deal Volume (dollars) by Deal Size 


0%


10%


20%


30%


40%


50%


60%


70%


80%


90%


100%


20
06


20
07


20
08


20
09


20
10


20
11


20
12


20
13


20
14


20
15


20
16


*


$2.5B+


$1B-$2.5B


$500M-$1B


$100M-$500M


$25M-$100M


Under $25M


0%


10%


20%


30%


40%


50%


60%


70%


80%


90%


100%


20
06


20
07


20
08


20
09


20
10


20
11


20
12


20
13


20
14


20
15


20
16


*







23 


 


 


Private Equity –  
Capital Overhang 


• As of December 31, 2015, aggregate private equity dry powder across North America and 
Europe remains elevated at $749 billion, a 3% decline from the end of 2014  


• While the overhang slightly decreased across 2007 to 2010, the overhang has increased 
back to 2007-2008 peak levels 


Source: PitchBook, as of December 31, 2015.   


Private Equity Overhang by Vintage Year 


$623 


$765 
$760 $741 


$680 $703 $697 


$759 $773 $749 


$0


$100


$200


$300


$400


$500


$600


$700


$800


$900


2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015


$ 
Bi


lli
on


s 


2016


2015


2014


2013


2012


2011


2010


2009


2008


CUMULATIVE 
OVERHANG 


OVERHANG BY 
VINTAGE 







• The amount of capital available for leverage has decreased considerably since its peak 
volume in 2007; loan volume seems consistent in the last few years 


• Historically, middle-market transactions apply less leverage than large-cap deals 


Private Equity –  
U.S. Debt Markets 


24 Source: S&P LCD, as of September 30, 2016. 


Percentage of Debt Used in Buyouts 
(2004 – Q3 2016) 


Total U.S. Leveraged Buyout Loan Volume ($bn) 
(2004 – Q3 2016) 


35%


40%


45%


50%


55%


60%


65%


70%


2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 Q3
2016


Less than $50m EBITDA $50m or more of EBITDA


$0


$20


$40


$60


$80


$100


$120


$140


$160


$180


$200


2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 Q3
2016


Funded Bank Debt Unfunded Bank Debt







• As debt has become more readily available, purchase price multiples have increased from 
the low point in 2009 


• Pricing in 2016 to date has increased by 0.6x from the recent high in 2015 


Private Equity –  
U.S. LBO Purchase Price Multiples 


25 


Purchase Price Multiples of  U.S. LBO Transactions (2004 – Q3 2016) 


 


 


Source: S&P LCD, as of September 30, 2016. 


4.6 
5.4 5.2 


6.1 
5.0 


3.8 
4.6 4.9 5.1 5.3 5.7 5.6 5.5 


2.6 


2.9 3.1 


3.5 


4.0 


3.8 


3.8 
3.7 3.5 3.4 


3.9 4.5 
5.4 


7.3x 


8.4x 8.4x 


9.7x 
9.1x 


7.7x 


8.5x 
8.8x 


8.7x 8.8x 


9.7x 
10.3x 


10.9x 


0.0x


2.0x


4.0x


6.0x


8.0x


10.0x


12.0x


2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 Q3 2016


Debt/EBITDA Equity/EBITDA Other







Private Real Estate –  
Fundraising Activity 


26 Source: Preqin, as of September 30, 2016.   


0


20


40


60


80


100


120


0


5


10


15


20


25


30


35


40


45


Q
1


Q
2


Q
3


Q
4


Q
1


Q
2


Q
3


Q
4


Q
1


Q
2


Q
3


Q
4


Q
1


Q
2


Q
3


Q
4


Q
1


Q
2


Q
3


Q
4


Q
1


Q
2


Q
3


Q
4


Q
1


Q
2


Q
3


2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016


N
o.


 o
f F


un
ds


 


Ca
pi


ta
l R


ai
se


d 
($


bn
) 


Global Quarterly Closed-End Private Real Estate Fundraising (Q1 2010 - Q3 2016) 


Aggregate Capital Raised ($bn) No. of Funds Closed


25.0 


4.0 
1.0 1.0 


15.6 


2.4 
0.4 0.1 


0


5


10


15


20


25


30


North America Europe Asia Rest of World


Closed-End Private Real Estate Fundraising by Primary Geographic Focus (Q3 2016) 


No. of Funds Closed Aggregate Capital Raised ($bn)







27 


Commercial Property (as of Q2 2016) 


Source:  CB Richard Ellis 


     Office     Retail 


  Industrial                Apartment 







Unlisted Infrastructure –  
Fundraising & Investment Activity 


28 Source: Preqin, as of September 30, 2016.   


0


5


10


15


20


25


30


35


40


0


5


10


15


20


25


30


Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3


2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016


N
o.


 o
f F


un
ds


 


Ca
pi


ta
l R


ai
se


d 
($


bn
) 


Global Quarterly Unlisted Infrastructure Fundraising (Q1 2010 - Q3 2016) 


Aggregate Capital Raised ($bn) No. of Funds Closed


28 


38 


19 


24 


39.6 


28.9 


13.2 
9.1 


0


5


10


15


20


25


30


35


40


45


North America Europe Asia Rest of World


Unlisted Infrastructure Fundraising by Primary Geographic Focus (2015 - Q3 2016) 


No. of Funds Closed Aggregate Capital Raised ($bn)







29 


Timber 


Source:  Forest Investment Associates 







30 


Hedge Fund Performance 


Data sources:  Wilshire Compass 


September 30, 2016 Qtr Ytd 1 Yr 3 Yr 5 Yr 10 Yr


DJ CS Hedge Fund Index 1.7 0.1 0.0 2.5 4.3 4.2
Event Driven Index 3.0 0.4 -1.9 0.1 4.2 4.0
Global Macro Index 0.6 -1.0 -0.4 1.7 2.3 5.7
Long/Short Equity Index 1.9 -3.2 -1.7 4.0 6.6 4.8
Multi-Strategy Index 2.6 3.2 3.7 5.9 7.3 5.7


Wilshire 5000 4.3 8.4 15.3 10.7 16.3 7.4
MSCI ACWI ex-US ($g) 7.0 6.3 9.8 0.6 6.5 2.6
Barclays Aggregate Bond Index 0.5 5.8 5.2 4.0 3.1 4.8
Dow Jones UBS Commodity Index -3.9 8.9 -2.6 -12.3 -9.4 -5.3


DJ CS Hedge Fund 
Index


Wilshire 5000 Index


Barclays Aggregate 
Bond Index


Dow Jones UBS 
Commodity Index


MSCI ACWI ex-US 
($g)


0.44 


0.39 


1.22 


(0.30)


0.08 


-8.00%


-6.00%


-4.00%


-2.00%


0.00%


2.00%


4.00%


6.00%


8.00%


10.00%


0.00% 5.00% 10.00% 15.00% 20.00% 25.00% 30.00%


A
n


n
u


al
iz


ed
 R


et
u


rn


Annualized Risk


Hedge Fund 10-Year Risk/Return


Note:  Sharpe Ratio included to the left of each marker.





		Slide Number 1

		Slide Number 2

		Slide Number 3

		Slide Number 4

		Slide Number 5

		Slide Number 6

		Slide Number 7

		Slide Number 8

		Slide Number 9

		Slide Number 10

		Slide Number 11

		Slide Number 12

		Slide Number 13

		Slide Number 14

		Slide Number 15

		Slide Number 16

		Slide Number 17

		Slide Number 18

		Slide Number 19

		Slide Number 20

		Slide Number 21

		Slide Number 22

		Slide Number 23

		Slide Number 24

		Slide Number 25

		Slide Number 26

		Slide Number 27

		Slide Number 28

		Slide Number 29

		Slide Number 30






Portfolio Review and Pacing Analysis
Presentation to: Employees’ Retirement Fund of the City of Dallas


November 2016


Securities distributed in the United States by Hamilton Lane Securities LLC, member FINRA®, SIPC. Investment management services provided by Hamilton Lane Advisors L.L.C. Please refer to page 
12 for contact information.







Proprietary and ConfidentialPage 2


Relationship Overview


Hamilton Lane has been working with ERF Dallas since 2009


1 As of June 30, 2016
2 Median All Private Equity benchmark from Thomson One/Cambridge Associates as of March 31, 2016.


• ERF Dallas’ portfolio is outperforming MSCI World 
Index by 510 basis points


• 57% of capital called has already been sent back in 
distributions 


Hamilton Lane Secondary Fund II
Closed: July 2009
Commitment: $25M


2012


Hamilton Lane Private Equity Fund VII
Closed: December 2009 / June 2011
Commitment: $20M / $30M


Hamilton Lane Secondary Fund III
Closed: June 2012
Commitment: $30M


Hamilton Lane Private Equity Fund VIII
Closed: October 2012
Commitment: $30M


2010


2009


2012


Please refer to endnotes in Appendix


ERF Dallas Portfolio Performance


0%


3%


6%


9%


12%


15%


18%


ERF Dallas1 MSCI PME1


6.2%


11.3%


All Private Equity2


13.1%
13.5%


S&P 500 PME1







Proprietary and Confidential Page 3


Executive Summary


Dallas Summary


• Total Committed: $135.0M
• Total Invested: $103.4M (77%)
• Total Distributed: $59.4M (57%)
• NAV: $71.7M
• DPI: 0.57x
• TVPI: 1.3x
• Net IRR: 11.3%


Key Highlights


• Cash Flows for Q2 2016


• Called: $0.7M


• Distributed: $0.8M


• Strong portfolio performance


• Outperforming MSCI PME


As of June 30, 2016


$103.4


$59.4 $59.4


$131.1


$71.7


$0


$20


$40


$60


$80


$100


$120


$140


Invested Distributions Market Value Total Value


U
SD


 in
 M


illi
on


s


ERF Dallas Portfolio Performance


+







Proprietary and ConfidentialPage 4


Dallas ERF Summary of Investments


Fund/Partnership Name Vintage 
Year Strategy Commitment Paid-In Remaining 


Commitment Distributions Market 
Value


Valuation 
Date


Hamilton Lane Secondary Fund II 2008 Secondary $25,000,000 $22,058,532 $2,941,468 $28,158,870 $3,973,456 6/30/2016


Hamilton Lane Private Equity Fund VII 2010 Fund-of-
Funds $50,000,000 $43,417,522 $6,582,478 $16,544,843 $39,312,260 6/30/2016


Hamilton Lane Secondary Fund III 2012 Secondary $30,000,000 $21,628,481 $8,371,519 $11,295,632 $15,591,823 6/30/2016


Hamilton Lane Private Equity Fund VIII 2012 Fund-of-
Funds $30,000,000 $15,338,504 $14,661,496 $2,383,341 $13,605,181 6/30/2016


Credit Suisse/ GCM Fund I 2011 Fund of One $75,000,000 $55,597,210 $19,402,790 $17,469,194 $64,099,448 6/30/2016


GCM/ CFIG Fund II 2014 Fund of One $60,000,000 $17,607,320 $42,392,680 $69,063 $17,165,382 6/30/2016


GCM Co-Invesment Fund III 2015 Co-
Investments $20,000,000 $653,733 $19,346,267 $0 $649,240 6/30/2016


Fairview Capital 2015 Fund of One $40,000,000 $1,657,694 $38,342,306 $0 $1,861,742 6/30/2016


TOTAL $330,000,000 $177,958,995 $152,041,005 $75,920,943 $156,258,534


Summary of PE Investments







Proprietary and Confidential Page 5


Horizon Model Scenario Summary - Dallas ERF
USD in Millions To Date 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022


Commitments
    Secondary Fund  $30  $ -    $30  $ -    $35  $ -    $55 
    Fund-of-Funds  $ -    $30  $ -    $35  $ -    $45  $ -   
    Co-Investment Fund  $ -    $ -    $ -    $ -    $ -    $ -    $ -   
TOTAL  $330  $30  $30  $30  $35  $35  $45  $55 
Annual Cash Flows
Annual Capital Calls $39 $52 $43 $37 $34 $32 $36 
Annual Distributions $24 $46 $57 $64 $69 $70 $68 
Cumulative Cash Flows
Capital Calls $178 $205 $258 $300 $338 $372 $404 $440 
Distributions $76 $93 $139 $196 $260 $329 $399 $468 
Private Equity Exposure
PE Market Value $156 $183 $218 $237 $244 $242 $235 $231 
Overall Plan Value $3,278 $3,442 $3,614 $3,794 $3,984 $4,183 $4,393 $4,612 
PE Exposure as % of Plan Value 4.8% 5.3% 6.0% 6.2% 6.1% 5.8% 5.3% 5.0%


Horizon Model Ouput


Commitment pace every year - attempt to reach and maintain 5% exposure
(Secondary and Fund-of-Funds)


Assumes 5% annual growth rate
Projections showing year end starting December 31, 2016
2016 representative of the sum of actual cash flows through 1H 2016 and cash flow projections for 2H 2016


Please refer to endnotes in Appendix







Proprietary and ConfidentialPage 6


Horizon Model Scenario Summary - Dallas ERF
USD in Millions To Date 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022


Commitments
    Secondary Fund  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ - 
    Fund-of-Funds  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ - 
    Co-Investment Fund  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ - 
TOTAL  $330  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ - 
Annual Cash Flows
Annual Capital Calls $39 $43 $29 $19 $11 $5 $2
Annual Distributions $24 $45 $54 $59 $61 $58 $52
Cumulative Cash Flows
Capital Calls $178 $205 $248 $276 $295 $306 $311 $313
Distributions $76 $93 $138 $191 $250 $310 $369 $421
Private Equity Exposure
PE Market Value $156 $178 $204 $209 $199 $176 $146 $114
Overall Plan Value $3,278 $3,442 $3,614 $3,794 $3,984 $4,183 $4,393 $4,612
PE Exposure as % of Plan Value 4.8% 5.2% 5.6% 5.5% 5.0% 4.2% 3.3% 2.5%


Horizon Model Ouput


Runoff scenario assumes no future commitments to PE


Assumes 5% annual growth rate
Projections showing year end starting December 31, 2016
2016 representative of the sum of actual cash flows through 1H 2016 and cash flow projections for 2H 2016


Please refer to endnotes in Appendix







Hamilton Lane Secondary Fund IV







Proprietary and ConfidentialPage 8


Hamilton Lane Secondaries


Leading Private Equity Manager 


* As of June 30, 2016


• Independent firm dedicated to private equity for 24+ years
• More than $39B of discretionary assets under management*
• More than $315B in assets under management and supervision*


Experienced 


Global
• 12 offices worldwide*
• More than 350 clients in 35 countries*
• Over 260 global employees who speak 21 languages*


• More than 300 partnership advisory board seats
• Size and scale = differentiated set of advantages for our secondary business
• Hamilton Lane is viewed as a preferred partner within the GP community


Influential


Performance • Strong returns through different market environments







Proprietary and Confidential Page 9


Our Secondary Approach


Our Secondary Approach


Focus on opportunities where:


1. We have a distinct competitive advantage


2. Purchase high quality assets managed by leading GPs


3. At attractive prices (or discounts)


Le
ve


ra
ge


 th
e H
L Platform                 Targeted Approach


               Discipline


Hamilton Lane 
Secondary Fund 


IV 


Please refer to endnotes in appendix


1. Leverage the HL Platform 2. Targeted Approach 3. Discipline


One of the largest allocators of 
primary capital
• More than $22 billion of annual 


commitments made in 20151


Information advantage
• $3.0 trillion fund assets monitored2


• Greater insight into assets – Clear 
advantage in restricted transactions


Preferred Partner for GPs
• More than 1,000 GP relationships – 


Access to top quality funds
• Viewed as a strategic partner due to 


size and scale


Off market, less competitive 
processes
• We see the market, but invest 


where we have a competitive 
advantage


Attractive risk-adjusted profile
• Mitigating risk through prudent 


diversification: multi year 
commitment pace, multiple vintage 
years, diversified strategies and 
global exposure 


Quality assets and managers 
• 70% of investments in prior 


funds recommended by our Fund 
Investment Team3


Extremely Selective 
• Investments in less than 1% of deal 


flow
Price Discipline
• HL has historically sourced deals 


at significant discounts – averaging 
21% discount4 across 3 prior funds


Disciplined and collaborative 
investment process
• Better decision making through a 


collaborative diligence process







Proprietary and ConfidentialPage 10


HLSF IV Update


$1.2B*
Commitments 


Secured


$263M*
Investment 


Activity


Target: $1.25B
Soft Circled: $300M


Great fundraise 
response/progress


Next close end of Q4 2016


$263M in closed & pending 
commitments across 9 transactions


100% of transactions 
proprietary or restricted


Deals funded 75% on average


*As of September 19, 2016


Secondary Fund IV Update


Hamilton Lane Secondary Fund IV Terms
• Target size: $1.25B


• Minimum commitment: $5M


• Commitment Period: 3 years


• Partnership Term: 10 years


• Hamilton Lane Commitment: $12.5 million*


Commitment Management Fee  
During Commitment Period


Management Fee  
After Commitment Period


$5-$49M 1.0%
Declining by 10% per year$50-$99M .85%


$100M+ .75%


• Carried Interest: 12.5%


• Preferred Return: 8%


• The Fund Structure: Several options available


• Management Fees:







Appendix







Proprietary and ConfidentialPage 12


Contact Information*


 Philadelphia
 One Presidential Blvd., 4th Floor
 Bala Cynwyd, PA 19004
 USA
 +1 610 934 2222


 Rio de Janeiro
 Av. Niemeyer 2, Sala 102 
 Leblon Rio de Janeiro 
 Brasil 22450-220
 +55 21 3520 8903


 New York
 610 Fifth Avenue, Suite 401
 New York, NY 10020
 USA
 +1 212 752 7667


 Tokyo
 17F, Imperial Hotel Tower
 1-1-1, Uchisaiwai-cho, Chiyoda-ku 
 Tokyo 100-0011
 Japan
 +81 (0) 3 3580 4000


 London
 8-10 Great George Street
 London SW1P 3AE
 United Kingdom
 +44 (0) 207 340 0100


 San Francisco
 200 California Street, Suite 400
 San Francisco, CA 94111
 USA
 +1 415 365 1056


 Fort Lauderdale
 200 SW 1st Avenue, Suite 880
 Ft. Lauderdale, FL 33301
 USA
 +1 954 745 2780


 Las Vegas
 3753 Howard Hughes Parkway
 Suite 200
 Las Vegas, NV 89169
 USA
 +1 702 784 7690


 Hong Kong
 Room 1001-3, 10th Floor
 St. George’s Building 
 2 Ice House Street
 Central Hong Kong, China
 +852 3987 7191


 San Diego
 7777 Fay Avenue, Suite 201
 La Jolla, CA 92037
 USA
 +1 858 410 9967


 Tel Aviv
 14 Shenkar Street
 Nolton House
 Herzliya Pituach, 46733
 P.O. Box 12279
 Israel
 +972 9 958 6670


 Seoul
 16/17 Fl., Posco P&S Tower
 Teheran-ro 134, Gangnam-Gu
 Seoul 135-923, Korea
 +82 2 2015 7679


*Represents offices of Hamilton Lane Advisors, L.L.C. and its affiliates







Proprietary and Confidential Page 13


Endnotes


Page 2
1 The indices presented for comparison are the S&P 500 and the MSCI World, calculated on a Public Market Equivalent (PME) basis. The PME calculation methodology assumes that capital is being 
invested in, or withdrawn from, the index on the days the capital was called and distributed from the underlying fund managers. Contributions were scaled by a factor such that the ending portfolio 
balance would be equal to the private equity net asset value. The scaling factor is found by taking the sum of all shares sold (SS), the sum of all shares purchased (SP) and calculating the number of 
shares the ending value is worth (SEV). Dividing SEV + SS by SP solves for the PME scaling factor. The scaling of contributions prevents shorting of the public market equivalent portfolio in order 
to match the performance of an outperforming private equity portfolio. Realized and unrealized amounts were not scaled by this factor. The S&P 500 Total Return Index is a capitalization weighted 
index that measures the performance of 500 U.S. large cap stocks. The MSCI World Index is a free float-adjusted market capitalization weighted index that is designed to measure the equity market 
performance of developed markets. The indices are presented merely to show general trends in the markets for the relevant periods shown. The comparison between Hamilton Lane performance and 
the index is not intended to imply that a fund’s or separate account’s portfolio is benchmarked to the index either in composition or level of risk. The index is unmanaged, has no expenses and reflects 
the reinvestment of dividends and distributions. The spreads are provided for comparative purposes only. A variety of factors may cause an index to be an inaccurate benchmark for any particular fund 
or separate account and the indices do not necessarily reflect the actual investment strategy of a fund or separate account.


Page 5 & 6


 This presentation has been prepared solely for informational purposes and contains confidential and proprietary information, the disclosure of which could be harmful to Hamilton Lane. Accordingly, 
the recipients of this presentation are requested to maintain the confidentiality of the information contained herein. This presentation may not be copied or distributed, in whole or in part, without the 
prior written consent of Hamilton Lane.


 The information contained herein and based upon Hamilton Lane’s proprietary Horizon Model (the “Model”) may include forward-looking statements regarding the Model itself, our opinions, 
performance, fees, carried interest, dividends, distributions, projected economic benefit or other events. Forward-looking statements include a number of risks, including but not limited to material 
changes in either the market or economic conditions, uncertainties and other factors beyond our control, control of the Model or the control of the Funds, the underlying funds or their portfolio 
companies, which may result in material differences in actual results, performance or other expectations. The Model has been prepared based upon historical private equity fund data and is not 
intended to indicate future performance of investments made with, or independently of, Hamilton Lane, which may affect any estimated economic benefit shown. Its assumptions are derived from 
historical private equity investments and are designed to demonstrate potential behaviors of private equity investments. The Model does not represent an actual portfolio managed by Hamilton Lane. 
Investment results may differ materially.


 Fund of Funds is an investment vehicle that invests in other private equity limited partnerships. It can invest in a single strategy or across a variety of strategies. The Fund of Funds category is net of 
the Fund of Funds manager fees and net of the underlying general partner fees. The opinions, estimates and analyses reflect our current judgment, which may change in the future. Therefore, the 
Horizon Model is not intended to predict future performance or economic savings and should not be used as the basis for an investment decision.


 All opinions, estimates and forecasts of future performance or other events contained herein are based on information available to Hamilton Lane as of the date of this presentation and are subject 
to change. Past performance of the investments described herein is not indicative of future results. In addition, nothing contained herein shall be deemed to be a prediction of future performance. 
The information included in this presentation has not been reviewed or audited by independent public accountants. Certain information included herein has been obtained from sources that Hamilton 
Lane believes to be reliable but the accuracy of such information cannot be guaranteed.


 This presentation is not an offer to sell, or a solicitation of any offer to buy, any security or to enter into any agreement with Hamilton Lane or any of its affiliates. Any such offering will be made only 
at your request.


 We do not intend that any public offering will be made by us at any time with respect to any potential transaction discussed in this presentation. Any offering or potential transaction will be made 
pursuant to separate documentation negotiated between us, which will supersede entirely the information contained herein.


 Any tables, graphs or charts relating to past performance included in this presentation are intended only to illustrate the performance of the indices, composites, specific accounts or funds referred 
to for the historical periods shown. Such tables, graphs and charts are not intended to predict future performance and should not be used as the basis for an investment decision.


 The information herein is not intended to provide, and should not be relied upon for, accounting, legal or tax advice, or investment recommendations. You should consult your accounting, legal, tax 
or other advisors about the matters discussed herein.







Proprietary and ConfidentialPage 14


Endnotes


Page 9
1 The 2015 capital invested includes all primary commitments for which Hamilton Lane retains a level of discretion and all advisory client commitments for which Hamilton Lane performed 


due diligence and made an investment recommendation. The 2015 capital invested also includes all discretionary secondary and co-investments.
2 As of 6/30/16
3 Represents HLSF II and HLSF III as of 6/30/16
4 Since inception through June 30, 2016







Proprietary and Confidential Page 15


Disclosures


As of November 3, 2016


This presentation has been prepared solely for informational purposes and contains confidential and proprietary information, the disclosure of which could be harmful to Hamilton Lane.  Accordingly, the 
recipients of this presentation are requested to maintain the confidentiality of the information contained herein.  This presentation may not be copied or distributed, in whole or in part, without the prior 
written consent of Hamilton Lane.


The information contained in this presentation and in the Horizon Model includes forward-looking statements regarding the Horizon Model, investment strategies, returns, performance, opinions, 
activity, the funds presented or their portfolio companies, or other events contained herein. Forward-looking statements include a number of risks, uncertainties and other factors beyond our control, 
control of the Horizon Model or the control of the Funds, the underlying funds or their portfolio companies, which may result in material differences in actual results, performance or other expectations. 
The Horizon Model has been prepared based upon historical private equity fund data and is not intended to indicate future performance of investments made with, or independently of, Hamilton Lane. Its 
assumptions are derived from historical private equity investments and are designed to demonstrate potential behaviors of private equity investments. The opinions, estimates and analyses reflect our 
current judgment, which may change in the future. Therefore, the Horizon Model is not intended to predict future performance and should not be used as the basis for an investment decision.


All opinions, estimates and forecasts of future performance or other events contained herein are based on information available to Hamilton Lane as of the date of this presentation and are subject to 
change.  Past performance of the investments described herein is not indicative of future results.  In addition, nothing contained herein shall be deemed to be a prediction of future performance.  The 
information included in this presentation has not been reviewed or audited by independent public accountants.  Certain information included herein has been obtained from sources that Hamilton Lane 
believes to be reliable but the accuracy of such information cannot be guaranteed.


This presentation is not an offer to sell, or a solicitation of any offer to buy, any security or to enter into any agreement with Hamilton Lane or any of its affiliates.  Any such offering will be made only at 
your request.  We do not intend that any public offering will be made by us at any time with respect to any potential transaction discussed in this presentation.  Any offering or potential transaction will be 
made pursuant to separate documentation negotiated between us, which will supersede entirely the information contained herein.


The results shown herein are compared to the performance of the S&P 500, MSCI World, CSFB High Yield Index II, S&P Emerging BMI, MSCI Emerging Market, Venture Economics Top Quartile, 
Venture Economics Median Quartile, and peer funds since institutional investors often use such indices and peer funds for comparative purposes for private equity portfolio performance.


The investment volatility of the S&P 500, MSCI World, CSFB High Yield Index II, S&P Emerging BMI, MSCI Emerging Market, Venture Economics Top Quartile, Venture Economics Median Quartile, and 
peer funds may differ from the funds or strategies reflected.  


Certain of the performance results included herein do not reflect the deduction of any applicable advisory or management fees, since it is not possible to allocate such fees accurately in a vintage year 
presentation or in a composite measured at different points in time.  A client’s rate of return will be reduced by any applicable advisory or management fees and any expenses incurred.  Hamilton Lane’s 
fees are described in Part 2 of our Form ADV, a copy of which is available upon request.


Hamilton Lane (UK) Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Hamilton Lane Advisors, L.L.C. Hamilton Lane (UK) Limited is authorized and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. In the UK this 
communication is directed solely at persons who would be classified as a professional client or eligible counterparty under the FCA Handbook of Rules and Guidance. Its contents are not directed at, 
may not be suitable for and should not be relied upon by retail clients. 


Any tables, graphs or charts relating to past performance included in this presentation are intended only to illustrate the performance of the indices, composites, specific accounts or funds referred to for 
the historical periods shown.  Such tables, graphs and charts are not intended to predict future performance and should not be used as the basis for an investment decision.


The information herein is not intended to provide, and should not be relied upon for, accounting, legal or tax advice, or investment recommendations. You should consult your accounting, legal, tax or 
other advisors about the matters discussed herein


.








RESOLUTION NO. 2016-1 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT FUND OF THE CITY OF DALLAS Page 1 of 3 


RESOLUTION NO. 2016-1 


TEMPORARY PROCEDURE REGARDING RECOGNITION OF MARRIAGES 


BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT FUND OF THE CITY OF DALLAS 


November 8, 2016 


WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 40A-4 of the Dallas City Code, the Board of Trustees 
(the "Board") has the power and duty to administer the Employees' Retirement Fund of the City 
of Dallas (the "Fund") in accordance with Dallas City Code Chapter 40A (Chapter 40A) and 
adopt rules and regulations not inconsistent with Chapter 40A and the Constitution and laws of 
the State of Texas and to the extent applicable of the United States; and 


WHEREAS, the Texas Family Code prescribes procedures for entering into a ceremonial 
marriage, recognizes informal marriages (sometimes called common law marriages) and 
provides a procedure, at Section 2.402, for the declaration and registration of such informal 
marriages; and 


WHEREAS, a surviving spouse of a retiree, and of certain active or inactive members of 
the Fund, becomes entitled to a life annuity unless the retiree, active member or inactive member 
has selected another eligible person to receive the life annuity and the spouse has consented to 
the selection; and 


WHEREAS, if a retiree marries after retirement, the spouse of that marriage is not 
eligible for a survivor annuity, or for any other death benefit, except as the retiree's heir or 
designee; and 


WHEREAS, effective April 1, 2015, the Fund adopted Rules of Procedure and Practice 
Regarding Determination of Marriage whereby the Fund will treat a person as a surviving spouse 
of a member, inactive member or retiree only if the Fund is provided with a valid copy of a 
Certificate of Marriage or a Declaration of Registration of Informal Marriage that was issued 
before the termination of employment of the member, inactive member or retiree. There must 
also be no evidence that such marriage had been annulled or ended by divorce; and 


WHEREAS, the Supreme Court of the United States issued an opinion on June 26, 2015, 
in the case of Obergefell v. Hodges that requires all states to recognize otherwise valid marriages 
between persons of the same sex; thereby enabling some couples to marry or have their out-of-
state marriages recognized in Texas; and 


WHEREAS, the Board desires to afford an opportunity for all members, inactive 
members and retirees, including those who were prevented by Texas state law from entering into 
a ceremonial marriage, from having an out of state ceremonial marriage from being recognized 
in Texas or filing a Declaration and Registration of Informal Marriage before June 26, 2015, to 
obtain recognition of a marriage that occurred before that date;  







RESOLUTION NO. 2016-1 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT FUND OF THE CITY OF DALLAS Page 2 of 3 


WHEREAS, the Board previously afforded an opportunity for a person to be treated as a 
surviving spouse of a member, inactive member or retiree, if, on or before January 1, 2017, the 
Fund was provided a copy of either: (i) a Certificate of Marriage issued before the retirement 
of the member, inactive member or retiree that was valid when issued, or (ii) a Declaration 
and Registration of Informal Marriage whenever issued.  


WHEREAS, the Board believes that there may be some additional persons who may still 
desire to apply or re-apply and believes it is prudent to extend by one year the original date by 
which the Fund would accept a Declaration of Common Law Marriage whenever issued if both 
parties to the marriage have asserted on the Declaration that the marriage occurred before 
the retirement of the member, inactive member or retiree.  


NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT, the Board of Trustees of the 
Employees' Retirement Fund of the City of Dallas adopts the following procedures 
regarding marriages:  


The Board extends the previous date of January 1, 2017 to January 1, 2018, the Rules 
of Procedure and Practice Regarding the Determination of Marriage will be modified as 
follows: The Fund will treat a person as a surviving spouse of a member, inactive member 
or retiree if the Fund is provided with either:  


1. A copy of a Certificate of Marriage of the couple that was issued before the 
retirement of the member, inactive member or retiree and was valid when 
issued in the state or country of issuance; or 


2. A Declaration and Registration of Informal Marriage whenever issued if both 
parties to the marriage have asserted on the Declaration that the marriage 
occurred before the retirement of the member, inactive member or retiree. 


On and after January 1, 2018, the Rules of Procedure and Practice Regarding the 
Determination of Marriage will be applied and the Fund will not treat a person as a 
surviving spouse of a member, inactive member or retiree unless the Fund is provided with a 
copy of a valid Certificate of Marriage or Declaration and Registration of Informal Marriage 
that was issued before the retirement of the member, inactive member or retiree.  


The member or survivor shall be responsible for providing evidence to the Fund of 
the existence of a marriage; and 


The Fund will maintain in its files copies of Marriage Certificates, Declaration and 
Registration of Informal Marriages, Divorce Decrees and other evidence of marriage and 
divorce of members, inactive members and retirees.  







RESOLUTION NO. 2016-1 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT FUND OF THE CITY OF DALLAS Page 3 of 3 


EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT FUND OF THE CITY OF DALLAS 


  
John Jenkins, Board Chair 


ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 


    
Cheryl D. Alston  Gary Lawson, Esq. 
Executive Director  Strasburger & Price, LLP 


8412263.2/SP/20238/0101/110216 








 







 
 


Austin Convention Center 
500 East Cesar Chavez Street 


Austin, Texas 
 


11:00am – 12:00pm Registration 


12:00pm – 12:30pm 
Welcome Remarks 
• David Kelly, TRS Board Member – Teacher Retirement System of Texas  
• Tom Tull, Chief Investment Officer – Employees Retirement System of Texas 


12:30pm – 1:45pm 


Introduction of Guest Speaker  
Britt Harris, Chief Investment Officer – Teacher Retirement System of Texas  
 


Keynote Speaker 
Richard Fisher, President and CEO, The Federal Reserve Bank of Dallas (2005-
2015) 


 


1:45pm – 2:00pm Transition/Break 


2:00pm – 2:45pm 


Best Practices:   Lessons Learned and Trends 
Moderator: Eric Lang, Managing Director, Private Markets – Teacher Retirement 
System of Texas 
 


• Robert Smith – Vista Equity Partners 
 


2:45pm – 3:45pm 


An Allocator’s Perspective  
Moderator:  Afsaneh Beschloss, Chief Executive Officer – The Rock Creek Group  
 


• Jerry Albright, Deputy Chief Investment Officer – Teacher Retirement System 
of Texas  


• Sharmila Kassam, Deputy Chief Investment Officer – Employees Retirement 
System of Texas 


• William Lee, Chief Investment Officer – Kaiser Permanente 
• Bryan Lewis, Executive Director –State Universities Retirement System of 


Illinois 
• Natalie Jenkins Sorrell, Deputy Chief Investment Officer – Retirement Fund of 


the City of Dallas  
 


3:45pm – 4:00pm Transition/Break  


 


2016 Emerging Manager Conference 
January 13, 2016 







4:00 pm – 4:45pm Asset Class Breakout Panels  


 


Ballroom A – Hedge Fund Panel 
Moderator: Siddarth Suddhir, Managing Director – The Rock Creek Group  
 
• Susanne Gealy, Director, Global Equity – Teacher Retirement System of Texas 
• Panayiotis Lambropoulos, Portfolio Manager – Employees Retirement System 


of Texas  
• Courtney Powers, Director, Marketable Alternative Investments – UTIMCO 
• Kirk Sims, Investment Officer-Public Markets, Emerging Managers – Illinois 


Teachers Retirement System  
 


 


Ballroom B – Private Equity Panel 
Moderator: Kelly Williams, President – GCM Customized Fund Investment Group  
 
• Wesley Gipson, Director of Private Equity – Employees Retirement System of 


Texas 
• Kenyatta Matheny, Senior Investment Officer – Illinois Teachers Retirement 


System  
• Chrissie Pariso – Senior Portfolio Manager, Exelon Corporation  
• Scott Ramsower, Senior Investment Manager – Teacher Retirement System of 


Texas 
 


 


Ballroom C – Real Estate Panel 
Moderator: Peter Braffman, Managing Director – GCM Customized Fund 
Investment Group 
 


• Amy Cureton, Portfolio Manager – Employees Retirement System of Texas 
• Eddie Lewis, Senior Director, Real Estate Investments – UTIMCO  
• Jennifer Wenzel, Investment Manager – Teacher Retirement System of Texas  
 


 


Ballroom D – Public Equity Panel 
Moderator: Meredith Jones, AON HEK  


 


• Cherrise Cederqvist, Vice President, Strategic Investment Research Group – 
Prudential Investments  


• Lulu Llano, Investment Manager – Teacher Retirement System of Texas 
• Lauren Honza, Portfolio Manager – Employees Retirement System of Texas 
• Michael Silva, Investment Officer – CalPERS Investment Office  
 


4:45pm – 5:00pm Transition 


5:00pm – 6:00pm Networking  
 


Conference Sponsored by: 
 


                                          








National Institute on Retirement - NIRS Annual Retirement Policy Conference


http://www.nirsonline.org/index.php?option=com_content&task=view&id=318&Itemid=102[11/3/2016 10:42:07 AM]


   


  


RESEARCH EDUCATION COMMENTARY MEDIA MEMBERSHIP EVENTS ABOUT


Events


2016 Conference
 Highlights


2015 Conference
 Highlights


2014 Conference
 Highlights


2013 Conference
 Highlights


2012 Conference
 Highlights


2011 Conference
 Highlights


2010 Conference
 Highlights


NEWS


THE WASHINGTON
 TIMES cites NIRS’
 research in an article
 about getting ready for
 retirement.
READ MORE


MARKET WATCH
 quotes NIRS Director,
 Diane Oakley, and
 features NIRS findings
 in an article about
 working women over
 65.
READ MORE


YAHOO SPORTS
 interviews NIRS director
 and features NIRS
 research in article about
 how pension spending
 support the economy.
READ MORE


US NEWS AND
 WORLD REPORT cites
 NIRS’ Retirement
 Savings Crisis in an
 article about how to
 plan when forced out of
 retirement.
READ MORE


LA TIMES quotes NIRS
 research in article about
 planning for a well-


Home   Events


 NIRS Annual Retirement Policy Conference


 On February 27 - 28, 2017 members of the National Institute on Retirement
 Security will engage with top retirement thought-leaders, policymakers, and
 experts in Washington, D.C. at our annual retirement policy conference.


 The conference is exclusive to NIRS members and special invited guests. Again this
 year, registration is complimentary for NIRS members. If you aren’t a
 member already, we invite you to support our work by becoming a member. And,
 you’ll guarantee your seat at the conference. If you’re already a NIRS member,
 watch for 2017 membership renewal information coming soon.


 You won’t want to miss NEW research we’ll release at the conference, Retirement
 Security 2017: Roadmap for Policy Makers | Americans’ Views of the
 Retirement Crisis. This biennial nationwide public opinion research report
 measures Americans’ outlook on their financial security in retirement, and it also
 examines views on issues and policies that could improve their retirement outlook.
 Take a look at the 2015 public opinion research here.


 2017 marks our eighth annual conference, and we are thrilled to again that the
 event is a platform for members to engage members and spur deep conversations
 on solutions the address the nation’s retirement crisis. We invite you to take a look
 at the issues examined at our Annual Policy Conferences in 2016, 2015, 2014, 2013,
 2012, 2011 and 2010.


 Stay tuned for more information, but in the meantime, save the date! We look
 forward to seeing you on February 27 - 28, 2017 in the nation’s capital.


 SHORTCHANGED IN
 RETIREMENT


Women are 80 percent more
 likely than men to be
 impoverished at age 65 and
 older.  Read More


THE STATE FINANCIAL
 SECURITY SCORECARDS


Americans in nearly every
 state will fall far short in
 meeting their economic
 needs in retirement.  Read
 More


THE CONTINUING
 RETIREMENT SAVINGS
 CRISIS


The typical working household
 still has virtually no retirement
 savings.  Read More


 AMERICANS' VIEWS OF


Members Login



http://www.nirsonline.org/index.php

https://facebook.com/NIRSResearch

https://twitter.com/NIRSonline

http://www.youtube.com/mynirs

http://www.nirsonline.org/index.php?option=com_content&task=view&id=17&Itemid=47

http://www.nirsonline.org/index.php?option=com_content&task=view&id=338&Itemid=116

http://www.nirsonline.org/index.php?option=com_content&task=blogcategory&id=0&Itemid=150

http://www.nirsonline.org/index.php?option=com_content&task=view&id=18&Itemid=51

http://www.nirsonline.org/index.php?option=com_content&task=view&id=29&Itemid=60

http://www.nirsonline.org/index.php?option=com_content&task=view&id=30&Itemid=66

http://visitor.r20.constantcontact.com/manage/optin?v=001PKbLI8HmW-XHIAmULz_tZNO4dabe8Xr7xFmYUlJ644mlDS2W5vqn5vW-E1Z9lNiBNfiWnqa5ZTpddAq8U-g00F9kdDj0QHBhH27_zACMOPU%3D

http://www.nirsonline.org/index.php?option=com_content&task=view&id=947&Itemid=218

http://www.nirsonline.org/index.php?option=com_content&task=view&id=847&Itemid=208

http://www.nirsonline.org/index.php?option=com_content&task=view&id=906&Itemid=210

http://www.nirsonline.org/index.php?option=com_content&task=view&id=725&Itemid=187

http://www.nirsonline.org/index.php?option=com_content&task=view&id=643&Itemid=180

http://www.nirsonline.org/index.php?option=com_content&task=view&id=575&Itemid=179

http://www.nirsonline.org/index.php?option=com_content&task=view&id=501&Itemid=147

http://www.nirsonline.org/index.php?option=com_content&task=view&id=947&Itemid=218

http://www.nirsonline.org/index.php?option=com_content&task=view&id=947&Itemid=218

http://www.nirsonline.org/index.php?option=com_content&task=view&id=847&Itemid=208

http://www.nirsonline.org/index.php?option=com_content&task=view&id=847&Itemid=208

http://www.nirsonline.org/index.php?option=com_content&task=view&id=906&Itemid=210

http://www.nirsonline.org/index.php?option=com_content&task=view&id=906&Itemid=210

http://www.nirsonline.org/index.php?option=com_content&task=view&id=725&Itemid=187

http://www.nirsonline.org/index.php?option=com_content&task=view&id=725&Itemid=187

http://www.nirsonline.org/index.php?option=com_content&task=view&id=643&Itemid=180

http://www.nirsonline.org/index.php?option=com_content&task=view&id=643&Itemid=180

http://www.nirsonline.org/index.php?option=com_content&task=view&id=575&Itemid=179

http://www.nirsonline.org/index.php?option=com_content&task=view&id=575&Itemid=179

http://www.nirsonline.org/index.php?option=com_content&task=view&id=501&Itemid=147

http://www.nirsonline.org/index.php?option=com_content&task=view&id=501&Itemid=147

https://www.washingtonpost.com/business/get-there/5-things-to-do-now-to-get-ready-for-retirement/2016/09/16/ce34b864-79e7-11e6-ac8e-cf8e0dd91dc7_story.html

http://www.marketwatch.com/story/the-real-life-golden-girls-scenario-over-65-and-working-2016-09-16

http://sports.yahoo.com/news/pension-spending-supports-7-1-110000265.html

http://money.usnews.com/investing/articles/2016-09-09/how-to-adjust-your-financial-plan-when-forced-out-of-retirement

javascript: void(0)

javascript: void(0)

http://www.nirsonline.org/index.php

http://www.nirsonline.org/index.php?option=com_content&task=view&id=29&Itemid=60

http://www.nirsonline.org/index.php?option=com_content&task=view&id=880&Itemid=48

http://www.nirsonline.org/index.php?option=com_content&task=view&id=947&Itemid=218

http://www.nirsonline.org/index.php?option=com_content&task=view&id=847&Itemid=208

http://www.nirsonline.org/index.php?option=com_content&task=view&id=906&Itemid=210

http://www.nirsonline.org/index.php?option=com_content&task=view&id=725&Itemid=187

http://www.nirsonline.org/index.php?option=com_content&task=view&id=643&Itemid=180

http://www.nirsonline.org/index.php?option=com_content&task=view&id=575&Itemid=179

http://www.nirsonline.org/index.php?option=com_content&task=view&id=501&Itemid=147

http://www.nirsonline.org/index.php?option=com_content&task=view&id=912&Itemid=48

http://www.nirsonline.org/index.php?option=com_content&task=view&id=892&Itemid=48

http://www.nirsonline.org/index.php?option=com_content&task=view&id=892&Itemid=48

http://www.nirsonline.org/index.php?option=com_content&task=view&id=882&Itemid=48

http://www.nirsonline.org/index.php?option=com_content&task=view&id=588&Itemid=171





National Institute on Retirement - NIRS Annual Retirement Policy Conference


http://www.nirsonline.org/index.php?option=com_content&task=view&id=318&Itemid=102[11/3/2016 10:42:07 AM]


funded retirement.
READ MORE


FORBES features NIRS
 research while
 examining the steps
 late bloomers can take
 to ensure a smooth
 retirement.
READ MORE


NY TIMES features
 NIRS research in an
 article about how
 adequate pensions are
 still out of reach for
 most women.
READ MORE


 THE RETIREMENT CRISIS


The overwhelming majority of
 Americans – 86 percent –
 believe the nation faces a
 retirement crisis.  Read More


Home Research Education Commentary Media Membership Events About


 


 1612 K Street, NW, Suite 500 • Washington DC 20006 • 202.457.8190 • info@nirsonline.org


 Copyright © 2012 National Institute on Retirement Security



http://www.latimes.com/business/la-fi-montalk-20160904-snap-story.html

http://www.forbes.com/sites/forbesfinancecouncil/2016/07/12/five-steps-late-bloomers-can-take-to-ensure-a-smooth-retirement/#39b3071140af

http://www.nytimes.com/2016/06/04/your-money/for-many-women-adequate-pensions-are-still-a-far-reach.html?_r=0

http://www.nirsonline.org/index.php?option=com_content&task=view&id=880&Itemid=48

http://www.nirsonline.org/index.php?option=com_content&task=view&id=12&Itemid=41

http://www.nirsonline.org/index.php?option=com_content&task=view&id=17&Itemid=47

http://www.nirsonline.org/index.php?option=com_content&task=view&id=338&Itemid=116

http://www.nirsonline.org/index.php?option=com_content&task=blogcategory&id=0&Itemid=150

http://www.nirsonline.org/index.php?option=com_content&task=view&id=18&Itemid=51

http://www.nirsonline.org/index.php?option=com_content&task=view&id=29&Itemid=60

http://www.nirsonline.org/index.php?option=com_content&task=view&id=30&Itemid=66

mailto:info@nirsonline.org



		nirsonline.org

		National Institute on Retirement - NIRS Annual Retirement Policy Conference





		lldyZpZD0zMTgmSXRlbWlkPTEwMgA=: 

		form1: 

		searchword: SEARCH

		input3: 












 


CII Spring 2017 Conference 
February 27 – March 1 | Mandarin Oriental Hotel 
1330 Maryland Avenue SW, Washington, DC 20024 
MONDAY, FEBRUARY 27 
 
9:00 – 10:00 Policies Committee (closed meeting) 
 
9:00 – 3:00 Tentative: Trustee Training (separate registration and fees apply) 
 
10:00 – 11:15 Advisory Council Meetings (closed meeting) 
 
11:15 – 11:45 Advisory Council and Board Member Coffee (closed meeting) 
 
12:00 – 7:00 Member Lounge Open 
 
12:30 – 2:30 Executive Compensation 201 (separate registration and fees apply) 
 
3:30 – 4:30 Plenary One 
 
4:30 – 5:30 Plenary Two 
 
5:45 – 6:15 New Member and First Time Attendee Reception (closed meeting) 
 
6:15– 7:30 Networking Reception 
 
7:30– 7:00 Member Lounge Open 


TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 28 
 
7:30– 7:00 Registration Open  
 
7:30 – 8:30 Networking Continental Breakfast 
 
8:30 – 8:40 Welcome 
 
8:40 – 9:45 Plenary Three 
 
9:45 – 10:45 Plenary Four  
 
10:45 – 11:15 Networking Break 
 
11:15– 12:15 Breakout 1 
 
11:15 – 12:15 Breakout 2 
 







12:30 – 2:00 Lunch 
 
2:15 – 3:15 Plenary Five 
 
3:15–3:45 Networking Break 
 
3:45– 4:45 Constituency Meetings 
 
5:00 – 6:00 Board Meeting (closed meeting) 
 
6:00 – 7:00 Networking Reception 
 
7:00 -9:00 Dinner 


WEDNESDAY, MARCH 1 
 
8:00 – 9:15 General Members’ Business Meeting & Breakfast (closed meeting) 
 
8:00 – 1:00 Member Lounge Open 
 
9:00 – 12:00 Registration Open 
 
9:00 – 9:30 Continental Breakfast 
 
9:30 – 9:45 Plenary Six: Policies Committee Update 
 
9:45 – 10:45 Plenary Seven: International Governance Committee  
 
10:45 – 11:00 Networking Break 
 
11:00 – 12:15 Plenary Eight: Activism Committee 
 
12:15 – 1:15 Networking Buffet Lunch & Meeting Adjourned 


THURSDAY, MARCH 2 
 
8:00 – 9:00 Breakfast Meeting for Congressional Visit Participants (closed meeting) 
 
9:30 – 1:30 Meetings with Congressional Staff (closed meetings) 
 





		CII Spring 2017 Conference

		February 27 – March 1 | Mandarin Oriental Hotel

		1330 Maryland Avenue SW, Washington, DC 20024

		MONDAY, FEBRUARY 27

		TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 28

		WEDNESDAY, MARCH 1

		THURSDAY, MARCH 2










 


 







 Institutional Investor Forums – 8th Annual Global Real Assets Investment Forum 


 


 Page 2 Defining the Value and the Role that Real Assets Can Play in Today’s Institutional Portfolios 


  February 28 – March 1, 2017  |  Four Seasons Hotel  |  Austin, TX 


 


 


Defining the Value and the Role that Real Assets Can Play  
in Today’s Institutional Portfolios 


In a recent (May 2016) survey of very large institutional investors, 65% of responding allocators reported their belief than more than 


40% of an institution’s assets have to be illiquid to get to “historical” returns expectations. Is this an indication of the growing need for 


institutions to allocate to real assets strategies and assets, many of which are illiquid? 


Which sectors within the real assets “bucket” will be of greatest value to investors in 2017 and subsequent years? As the traditional 


fixed income and equity markets prove unable to deliver the returns that institutions need to meet their liabilities, it is almost certain 


that allocations to these assets will increase. But which sectors, strategies and opportunities will investors seek the most value in? 


For instance, in an even more recent (July 2016) survey of allocators, 52% of respondents stated that they are interested in and actively 


researching opportunities in infrastructure. With many governments – including both Presidential candidates in the US – looking to 


increase public spending on infrastructure projects, the set of investable opportunities is likely to rise along with demand. Similarly, 


investors demonstrated interest in private equity, private debt/credit, and high conviction equity strategies, which play a large role in 


many real assets strategies, substantiate that these strategies as well are likely to be among the most important opportunities 


institutional investors are weighing this year. 


Institutional Investor Forums is privileged to have the advice and guidance of a distinguished Advisory Board of experienced allocators 


to real assets investments as we develop the program for this year’s Global Real Assets Investment Forum. These investors have been 


very generous with their time and their ideas and we will be relying upon them as we continue to develop this program. All investors 


reviewing this program are invited and encouraged to offer their opinions and ideas to supplement those of the Advisory Board so that 


we may deliver the most relevant, value-laden program to you in February 2017. 


Advisory Board 


Marcus Frampton, Director of Investments, Private Markets, Alaska Permanent Fund Corporation  


Alisa Mall, Director of Investments, Carnegie Corporation of New York 


Caixia Ziegler, Associate Director, Head of Real Estate, Ford Foundation 


Kirstine Damkjaer, Manager, Global Infrastructure and Natural Resources, International Finance Corporation 


William Proom, Managing Director, Maine Public Employees Retirement System 


Edward Mikolay, Senior Investment Officer and Director of Private Markets, Municipal Employees Retirement System of Michigan 


Lodge Gillespie, Director-Real Assets, National Railroad Retirement Investment Trust   


Petya Nikolova, Head of Infrastructure Investments, NYC Retirement Systems 


Ryan Bisch, Director, Private Markets, Ontario Power Generation 







 Institutional Investor Forums – 8th Annual Global Real Assets Investment Forum 


 


 Page 3 Defining the Value and the Role that Real Assets Can Play in Today’s Institutional Portfolios 


  February 28 – March 1, 2017  |  Four Seasons Hotel  |  Austin, TX 


Mike Mueller, Investment Officer, Oregon State Treasury 


Bryan Bedard, Manager, Infrastructure Investments, PSP Investments 


John Ritter, Director, Energy and Natural Resources, Teachers Retirement System of Texas 


Tom Masthay, Director of Real Assets, Texas Municipal Retirement System 


Gloria Gil, Managing Director of Real Estate, University of California 


Christopher Longee, Assistant Vice President, Managing Director of Real Assets, University of Chicago 


Brian Johnson, Managing Director, University of Southern California 


Mark Warner, Senior Managing Director - Natural Resources, Emerging Markets & Lower/Middle Markets, UTIMCO 


Chris Culbertson, Investment Director, Wake Forest University/Verger Capital Management  


Tom Coleman, Portfolio Manager, Real Assets, Virginia Retirement System 


John Graves, Assistant Senior Investment Officer - Tangible Assets, Washington State Investment Board 


 


We hope you will be able to join us February 28 to March 1, 2017 as we learn about the decisions North American pension funds and 


US endowments and foundations are making as they address the new global investment landscape and what this means for their 


portfolios of real assets. Topics under discussion for the 2017 program include: 


 Winners and losers in the global economy and the impact on your real assets strategy 


 Using real assets to be dynamic and opportunistic in your asset allocation 


 Are geopolitics the real assets investor’s worst risk? 


 The opportunities and risks of the private debt/credit play on real assets 


 The intersection between your emerging markets strategy and your real assets allocation 


 Currency strategies for both risk management and alpha generation 


 The increasing role of ESG and impacting investing in the real assets opportunity set 


 Is there any value left for real assets which provide a hedge against inflation? 


 The case for water investments 


 Rethinking the role of commodities in your portfolio 


 Real estate: Thumbs up or thumbs down? 


 The rebound in energy investments: When, not if? 


 


 


Sponsoring Organizations 


Lead Sponsor 


Cohen & Steers 


 


Energy Sponsor 


Merit Energy Company 


 


  







 Institutional Investor Forums – 8th Annual Global Real Assets Investment Forum 


 


 Page 4 Defining the Value and the Role that Real Assets Can Play in Today’s Institutional Portfolios 


  February 28 – March 1, 2017  |  Four Seasons Hotel  |  Austin, TX 


Preliminary Program as of October 5 


Tuesday, February 28 


7:30 to 8:10 am  


Registration and Continental Breakfast 


Ballroom Foyer 


8:10 to 8:20 am 


Chairman’s Welcome and App Tutorial 


Ballroom AB 


Steven Olson, Managing Director, Institutional Investor 


Kip Miller, Director, Institutional Investor Forums 


Forum Chairman (Day One): 


Mark Warner, Senior Managing Director - Natural Resources, Emerging Markets & Lower/Middle Markets, UTIMCO  


8:20 to 8:35 am  


Benchmarking Survey 


Ballroom AB 


Benchmarking Session Leader: 


Mark White, Head of Real Assets, Albourne Partners (Proposed) 


What are the issues, concerns and primary interests of your peers – investment decision-makers from the larger pension plans, 


endowments, and foundations? In this opening session and in subsequent sessions, attendees will be polled on a number of high-


interest topics using an anonymous, interactive electronic response system. By doing this, we will provide all attendees with useful 


benchmarks and unique insight into the concerns of investors. We will also strive to key up certain points of discussion for subsequent 


sessions.  


 


 


Presentation Series I 


8:35 to 10:05 am 


Winners and Losers in the Global Investment Landscape and the Impact on Your Real Assets 
Strategy 


Ballroom AB 


Session Chair: 


Mike Mueller, Investment Officer, Oregon State Treasury  


8:40 to 8:55 am 


Presentation 


To be determined 


Presented by: 


To be determined 







 Institutional Investor Forums – 8th Annual Global Real Assets Investment Forum 


 


 Page 5 Defining the Value and the Role that Real Assets Can Play in Today’s Institutional Portfolios 


  February 28 – March 1, 2017  |  Four Seasons Hotel  |  Austin, TX 


8:55 to 9:10 am 


Presentation 


To be determined 


Presented by: 


Cohen & Steers (Proposed) 


9:10 to 9:25 am 


Presentation 


To be determined 


Presented by: 


To be determined 


9:25 to 9:45 am 


Table Discussions 


Seated in small groups, delegates will share their views on the previous presentations. Do they agree or disagree, and what are 


the reasons for their views? Are there other factors which should also be taken into consideration? Which factors have 


contributed to investors taking their respective positions and how are they changing their allocations and reconstructing their 


portfolios? As well as sharing knowledge and opinions, each table will be tasked with coming up with a set of questions or 


comments which they must be prepared to pose to the speakers in the subsequent session. 


9:45 to 10:05 am 


Panel and Audience Q&A 


Moderator: 


Mike Mueller, Investment Officer, Oregon State Treasury  


The original speakers will retake the stage, answer questions, and react to comments from the table discussions. 


 


10:05 to 10:30 am 


Coffee Break 


Ballroom Foyer 


 


 


Presentation Series II 


10:30 to 12:00 pm 


Using Real Assets to Be Dynamic and Opportunistic in Your Asset Allocation 


Ballroom AB 


Session Chair: 


Alisa Mall, Director of Investments, Carnegie Corporation of New York (Proposed) 


10:35 to 10:50 am 


Presentation 







 Institutional Investor Forums – 8th Annual Global Real Assets Investment Forum 


 


 Page 6 Defining the Value and the Role that Real Assets Can Play in Today’s Institutional Portfolios 


  February 28 – March 1, 2017  |  Four Seasons Hotel  |  Austin, TX 


To be determined 


Presented by: 


To be determined 


10:50 to 11:05 am 


Presentation 


To be determined 


Presented by: 


To be determined 


11:05 to 11:20 am 


Presentation 


To be determined 


Presented by: 


To be determined 


11:20 to 11:40 pm 


Table Discussions 


Seated in small groups, delegates will share their views on the previous presentations. Do they agree or disagree, and what are 


the reasons for their views? Are there other factors which should also be taken into consideration? How are the investors in 


attendance managing liquidity? Which factors have contributed to investors taking their respective positions and how are they 


changing their allocations and reconstructing their portfolios? As well as sharing knowledge and opinions, each table will be 


tasked with coming up with a set of questions or comments which they must be prepared to pose to the speakers in the 


subsequent session. 


11:40 to 12:00 pm 


Panel and Audience Q&A 


Moderator: 


Alisa Mall, Director of Investments, Carnegie Corporation of New York (Proposed) 


The original speakers will retake the stage, answer questions, and react to comments from the table discussions. 


 


12:00 to 1:20 pm 


Lunch 


Ballroom CD 


 


 


Presentation Series III 


1:20 to 2:50 pm 


The Opportunities and Risks of the Increasing Use of Private Markets Strategies to Access Real 
Assets 


Ballroom AB 







 Institutional Investor Forums – 8th Annual Global Real Assets Investment Forum 


 


 Page 7 Defining the Value and the Role that Real Assets Can Play in Today’s Institutional Portfolios 


  February 28 – March 1, 2017  |  Four Seasons Hotel  |  Austin, TX 


Session Chair: 


Ryan Bisch, Director, Private Markets, Ontario Power Generation (Proposed) 


1:25 to 1:40 pm 


Presentation 


To be determined 


Presented by: 


To be determined 


1:40 to 1:55 pm 


Presentation 


To be determined 


Presented by: 


To be determined  


1:55 to 2:10 pm 


Presentation 


To be determined 


Presented by: 


To be determined 


2:10 to 2:30 pm 


Table Discussions 


Seated in small groups, delegates will share their views on the previous presentations. Do they agree or disagree, and what are 


the reasons for their views? Are there other factors which should also be taken into consideration? Which new asset classes and 


strategies are investors employing to meet their investment objectives? As well as sharing knowledge and opinions, each table 


must come up with a set of questions or comments which they must be prepared to pose to the speakers. 


2:30 to 2:50 pm 


Panel and Audience Q&A 


Moderator: 


Ryan Bisch, Director, Private Markets, Ontario Power Generation (Proposed) 


The original speakers will retake the stage, answer questions, and react to comments from the table discussions. 


 


2:50 to 3:10 pm  


Coffee Break 


Ballroom Foyer 


3:10 to 3:25 pm 


Investor Case Study 


Is There Any Value Left for Real Assets Which Provide a Hedge Against Inflation? 


Ballroom AB 







 Institutional Investor Forums – 8th Annual Global Real Assets Investment Forum 


 


 Page 8 Defining the Value and the Role that Real Assets Can Play in Today’s Institutional Portfolios 


  February 28 – March 1, 2017  |  Four Seasons Hotel  |  Austin, TX 


Presented By: 


To be determined 


3:25 to 4:10 pm  


Guest Presentation 


The Key Drivers Behind Energy Investments 


Ballroom AB 


Presented by: 


Warren Pies, Energy Strategist, Ned David Research Group, a Euromoney Institutional Investor company  


What factors are likely to have the greatest impact on energy investments over the remainder of this year and into next year? What are 


the major drivers of supply and demand currently? In this election year, how will politics likely impact the investment opportunity set 


for energy going forward? 


4:10 to 5:00 pm 


Panel Discussion of Energy Industry Experts 


Energy: Assessing and Accessing the Opportunities Atop Many Investors’ Agendas  


Moderator: 


John Ritter, Director, Energy and Natural Resources, Teachers Retirement System of Texas (Proposed) 


Panelists: 


Jon Hill, CFA, Managing Director, Investure  


Senior Representative, Merit Energy Company 


Additional panelists to be invited 


5:00 to 6:30 pm 
Cocktail Reception 


East Lawn 


6:30 pm 


Evening Free for Private Functions 


 


Wednesday, March 1 


7:45 to 8:30 am 


Breakfast Discussion Tables 


Ballroom CD 


At peer-moderated tables of 8-10 participants, delegates will share their opinions and compare notes on a number of important issues 


identified by Advisory Board members as worthy of discussion. Delegates will be asked to contribute to the overall discussion with the 


intention of sharing information and learning from others’ experiences.  


Discussion Table 1: To be determined 


Discussion Leader:  


Lodge Gillespie, Director-Real Assets, National Railroad Retirement Investment Trust (Proposed) 







 Institutional Investor Forums – 8th Annual Global Real Assets Investment Forum 


 


 Page 9 Defining the Value and the Role that Real Assets Can Play in Today’s Institutional Portfolios 


  February 28 – March 1, 2017  |  Four Seasons Hotel  |  Austin, TX 


  


Discussion Table 2: To be determined 


Discussion Leader: 


To be determined 


 


Discussion Table 3: Is Agribusiness a Better Investment Opportunity than Agriculture? 


Discussion Leader: 


Kirstine Damkjaer, Manager, Global Infrastructure and Natural Resources, International Finance Corporation (Proposed) 


 


Discussion Table 4: To be determined 


Discussion Leader: 


To be determined 


 


8:30 to 8:50 am  


Report Back from Discussion Tables 


Ballroom AB 


Moderator: 


Mark Warner, Senior Managing Director - Natural Resources, Emerging Markets & Lower/Middle Markets, UTIMCO  


Attendees will regroup in the main session room to share their findings from the breakfast discussion groups. Each table discussion 


leader will have a few minutes to report on one or two key findings from his/her table. 


8:50 to 9:00 am 


Benchmarking Survey 


Ballroom AB 


Benchmarking Session Leader: 


Sarah Angus, Senior Vice President, Callan Associates (Proposed) 


What are the issues, concerns and primary interests of your peers – investment decision-makers from the larger pension plans, 


endowments, and foundations? Attendees will be polled once again on a number of high-interest topics using an anonymous, 


interactive electronic response system. By doing this, we will provide all attendees with useful benchmarks and unique insight into the 


concerns of investors. We will also strive to key up certain points of discussion for subsequent sessions.  


 


 


Presentation Series IV 


9:00 to 10:30 am  


The Intersection Between Your Emerging Markets Strategy and Your Real Assets Allocation 


Ballroom AB 


Session Chair: 







 Institutional Investor Forums – 8th Annual Global Real Assets Investment Forum 


 


 Page 10 Defining the Value and the Role that Real Assets Can Play in Today’s Institutional Portfolios 


  February 28 – March 1, 2017  |  Four Seasons Hotel  |  Austin, TX 


Mark Warner, Senior Managing Director - Natural Resources, Emerging Markets & Lower/Middle Markets, UTIMCO 


(Proposed) 


9:05 to 9:20 am  


Presentation 


To be determined 


Presented by: 


To be determined 


9:20 to 9:35 am  


Presentation 


To be determined 


Presented by: 


To be determined 


9:35 to 9:50 am  


Presentation 


To be determined 


Presented by: 


To be determined 


9:50 to 10:10 am 


Table Discussions 


Seated in small groups, delegates will share their views on the previous presentations. Do they agree or disagree, and what are 


the reasons for their views? Are there other factors which should also be taken into consideration? Which factors have 


contributed to investors taking their respective positions? As well as sharing knowledge and opinions, each table must come up 


with a set of questions or comments which they must be prepared to pose to the speakers. 


10:10 to 10:30 am 


Panel and Audience Q&A 


Moderator: 


Mark Warner, Senior Managing Director - Natural Resources, Emerging Markets & Lower/Middle Markets, UTIMCO 


(Proposed) 


The original speakers will retake the stage, answer questions, and react to comments from the table discussions. 


 


10:30 to 11:00 am 


Coffee Break 


Ballroom Foyer 


11:00 to 12:00 pm 


Investors’ and Consultants’ Panel Discussion 


To be determined 







 Institutional Investor Forums – 8th Annual Global Real Assets Investment Forum 


 


 Page 11 Defining the Value and the Role that Real Assets Can Play in Today’s Institutional Portfolios 


  February 28 – March 1, 2017  |  Four Seasons Hotel  |  Austin, TX 


Moderator: 


Meagan Nichols, Deputy Head, Global Investment Manager Research, Cambridge Associates (Proposed) 


Panelists: 


Edward Mikolay, Senior Investment Officer and Director of Private Markets, Municipal Employees Retirement System of Michigan 


(Proposed) 


Petya Nikolova, Head of Infrastructure Investments, NYC Retirement Systems (Proposed) 


Christopher Longee, Assistant Vice President, Managing Director of Real Assets, University of Chicago (Proposed) 


John Graves, Assistant Senior Investment Officer - Tangible Assets, Washington State Investment Board (Proposed) 


Additional panelists to be invited 


 What is an appropriate benchmark for real assets across all sub-categories? Is there one? 


 What and where are the opportunities in water? 


 The increasing prevalence of debt funds in infrastructure investments 


 


12:00 to 12:45 pm  


Guest Presentation 


Real Assets Investing: Global Opportunities, Global Risks 


Presented by: 


John Sitilides, Expert Speaker, Analyst, Trilogy Advisors LLC 


12:45 to 2:00 pm 


Lunch 


Ballroom CD 


2:00 pm 


Forum Concludes 


 


 


 








 


 Market Value 


%    of Total 


Fund


Allocation 


Policy


% Difference 


from 


Allocation


 Prior Period Market 


Value 


EQUITY


SYSTEMATIC 64,519,620.90           1.96 67,143,851.98          2.00


REDWOOD- SL 30,584,214.07           0.93 32,888,609.61          0.98


CHANNING  CAPITAL 36,276,898.73           1.10 37,202,850.08          1.11


Total Small Cap 131,380,733.70         3.99 137,235,311.67        4.09


INTECH 6.86                           0.00 153,097.84               0.00


T. ROWE PRICE 136,245,682.27         4.14 138,210,721.01        4.12


Total Enhanced equity 136,245,689.13         4.14 138,363,818.85        4.12


NTGI S&P 500 EQUITY INDEX 207,328,694.83         6.30   211,161,755.41        6.29


NTGI RUSSELL 2000 GROWTH INDEX 5,376.30                    0.00   2,047,803.66            0.06


Total Index 207,334,071.13         6.30   213,209,559.07        6.35   


Total Domestic 474,960,493.96         14.43 15.00 -0.57 488,808,689.59        14.560  0  
ADELANTE CAPITAL 77,742,524.35           2.36   82,646,667.47          2.46


SECURITY CAPITAL 77,974,760.48           2.37   82,244,620.06          2.45


Total REITS 155,717,284.83         4.73 5.00 -0.27 164,891,287.53        4.92


HEITMAN 85,993,604.67           2.61   85,026,697.20          2.53


INVESCO 69,414,782.68           2.11   68,416,124.39          2.04


INVESCO - SA 51,565,367.70           1.57   46,857,673.69          1.40


Total Real Estate 206,973,755.05         6.29 5.00 1.29 200,300,495.28        5.97


HAMILTON LANE 77,965,170.81           2.37   76,029,977.46          2.27


GROSVENOR GCM - CFIG 86,657,435.39           2.64   86,655,348.34          2.58


FAIRVIEW CAPITAL 5,498,938.68             0.17 3,931,253.68            0.12


Total Private Equity 170,121,544.88         5.18 5.00 0.18 166,616,579.48        4.97  


ACADIAN 102,620,815.00         3.12   103,001,974.83        3.07


BARING 186,767,757.78         5.68   188,484,809.06        5.62


AQR CAPITAL 190,859,459.42         5.80 191,428,212.13        5.71


Total International 480,248,032.20         14.60 15.00 -0.40 482,914,996.02        14.39


WELLINGTON MGMT 78,971,043.75           2.40 80,701,009.58          2.41


NORTHERN TRUST INTL EQ ACWI INDEX 76,657,172.70           2.33 78,127,491.82          2.33


Total Global Equity 155,628,216.45         4.73 5.00 -0.27 158,828,501.40        4.74


ACADIAN 163,539,759.97         4.97 168,901,448.76        5.03


BLACKROCK 165,374,202.89         5.03 170,476,806.22        5.08


Total Low Volatility Global Equity 328,913,962.86         10.00 10.00 0.00 339,378,254.98        10.11


HARVEST FUND 130,850,155.10         3.98 138,168,617.25        4.12


ATLANTIC TRUST 134,624,075.58         4.09 142,028,307.53        4.23


Total MLP 265,474,230.68         8.07 10.00 -1.93 280,196,924.78        8.35


 TOTAL EQUITY 2,238,037,520.91      68.03 70.00 -1.97 2,281,935,729.06     68.01  
        


FIXED INCOME   


ADVANTUS CAPITAL MGMT 200,418,675.34         6.09 201,523,262.00        6.01


ABERDEEN  ASSET  MGMT 203,655,805.39         6.19 204,986,080.36        6.11


GARCIA HAMILTON 72,459,777.03           2.20 73,083,897.74          2.18


Total Investment Grade 476,534,257.76         14.48 15.00 -0.52 479,593,240.10        14.30


NEUBERGER BERMAN 88,718,016.77           2.70 89,522,634.26          2.67


OAKTREE 211,611,481.84         6.43 210,678,091.75        6.28


BLACKROCK 211,327,690.93         6.43 211,254,150.54        6.30


Total High Yield 511,657,189.54         15.56 15.00 0.56 511,454,876.55        15.25


CASH ACCOUNT 62,347,495.87           1.93 81,859,349.67          2.46


Total Short Term 62,347,495.87           1.93 0.00 1.93 81,859,349.67          2.46


 TOTAL FIXED INCOME 1,050,538,943.17      31.97 30.00 1.97 1,072,907,466.32     31.99  


         
    


TOTAL FUND 3,288,576,464.08$    3,344,194,672.15$   


Market Value YE 2015 3,192,955,073.98$    


Change from YE 2015: 95,621,390.10                   


Change from prior month: (55,618,208.07)                   


ASSET ALLOCATION COMPARISON


October 31, 2016
 


Prior Period % 


of Total Fund


Market Value Variance







 Market Value 


Gross Actual 


Allocation


Target 


Allocation


% Difference 


from 


Allocation


EQUITY


SYSTEMATIC 64,519,620.90           1.96


REDWOOD -SL 30,584,214.07           0.93


CHANNING  CAPITAL 36,276,898.73           1.10


Total Small Cap 131,380,733.70         3.99131,380,733.70         3.99


INTECH 6.86                          0.00


T. ROWE PRICE 136,245,682.27         4.14


Total Enhanced equity 136,245,689.13         4.14136,245,689.13         4.14


NTGI S&P 500 EQUITY INDEX 207,328,694.83         6.30   


NTGI RUSSELL 2000 GROWTH INDEX 5,376.30                    0.00   


Total Index 207,334,071.13         6.30   -                              


Total Domestic 474,960,493.96         14.43 15.00 -0.57-                            


ADELANTE CAPITAL 77,742,524.35           2.36   


SECURITY CAPITAL 77,974,760.48           2.37   


Total REITS 155,717,284.83         4.73 5.00 -0.27-                            


HEITMAN 85,993,604.67           2.61   


INVESCO 69,414,782.68           2.11   


INVESCO - SA 51,565,367.70           1.57   


Total Real Estate 206,973,755.05         6.29 5.00 1.29-                            


HAMILTON LANE 77,965,170.81           2.37   


GROSVENOR GCM - CFIG 86,657,435.39           2.64   


FAIRVIEW CAPITAL 5,498,938.68             0.17


Total Private Equity 170,121,544.88         5.18 5.00 0.18-                             


ACADIAN 102,620,815.00         3.12   


BARING 186,767,757.78         5.68   


AQR CAPITAL 190,859,459.42         5.80


Total International 480,248,032.20         14.60 15.00 -0.40-                            0.00


WELLINGTON MGMT 78,971,043.75           2.40


NORTHERN TRUST INTL EQ ACWI INDEX 76,657,172.70           2.33


Total Global Equity 155,628,216.45         4.73 5.00 -0.27-                            0.00


ACADIAN 163,539,759.97         4.97


BLACKROCK 165,374,202.89         5.03


Total Low Volatility Global Equity 328,913,962.86         10.00 10.00 0.00-                            


HARVEST FUND 130,850,155.10         3.98


ATLANTIC TRUST 134,624,075.58         4.09


Total MLP 265,474,230.68         8.07 10.00 -1.930 0.00-                            0.00


 TOTAL EQUITY 2,238,037,520.91      68.03 70.00 -1.97
     


FIXED INCOME  


ADVANTUS CAPITAL MGMT 200,418,675.34         6.09


ABERDEEN  ASSET  MGMT 203,655,805.39         6.19


GARCIA HAMILTON 72,459,777.03           2.20


Total Investment Grade 476,534,257.76         14.48 15.00 -0.52-                            


NEUBERGER BERMAN 88,718,016.77           2.70


OAKTREE 211,611,481.84         6.43


BLACKROCK 211,327,690.93         6.43


Total High Yield 511,657,189.54         15.56 15.00 0.56-                            0.00


CASH ACCOUNT 62,347,495.87           1.93


Total Short Term 62,347,495.87           1.93 0.00 1.930.00


 TOTAL FIXED INCOME 1,050,538,943.17      31.97 30.00 1.97
      


   


TOTAL FUND 3,288,576,464.08$    


Asset Allocation:   Actual vs. Target


October 31, 2016
 


14%


5%


6%


5%


15%
5%


10%


8%


14%


16%


2%


Gross Actual Allocation


15%


5%


5%


5%


15%
5%


10%


10%


15%


15%


0%


Target Allocation








Employees’ Retirement Fund of the City of Dallas 
Executive Summary of Investment Performance 
October 31, 2016 







Monthly Summary


Investment Performance and Market Values
For Periods Ending October 31, 2016


 


Returns


Month 3 Months CYTD 1 Year 3 Years 5 Years


Inception


Date


Inception


Return


Market Value


$(000) Percent


Global Equity Composite


Global Low Volatility Composite


Domestic Equity Composite


International Equity Composite


Global Fixed Income Composite


High Yield Composite


Credit Opportunities Composite


Total Real Estate Composite


Indices


     MSCI ACWI (N)


     Wilshire 5000


     Standard & Poor’s 500


     MSCI ACWI X US IMI Index (N)


     MSCI EAFE Index (N)


     Barclays Aggregate


     Citigroup High Yield Cash Pay


     Wilshire Real Est. Secs


     Alerian MLP Index


-2.03


-3.08


-2.39


-0.55


-0.64


0.24


-0.89


-2.80


-1.70


-2.03


-1.82


-1.61


-2.05


-0.76


0.25


-5.43


-4.45


-1.00


-4.85


-1.87


1.81


-0.53


2.66


1.81


-4.61


-0.76


-1.69


-1.67


0.28


-0.77


-0.94


3.08


-10.38


-3.96


2.49


7.50


5.28


4.43


5.85


12.61


3.67


4.79


6.24


5.87


4.37


-0.35


4.99


15.71


4.06


10.78


0.04


5.97


4.08


1.74


5.19


7.50


5.78


2.05


4.63


4.51


0.75


-3.23


4.37


9.72


5.70


-1.80


2.06


7.62


0.00


4.06


4.09


10.66


3.21


8.36


8.84


-1.09


-1.31


3.48


3.99


11.02


-7.07


12.76


5.81


3.70


6.51


10.94


8.03


13.36


13.56


3.98


4.99


2.90


6.68


11.60


2.00


 8/31/12


 6/30/15


12/31/89


12/31/89


 9/30/95


12/31/96


 1/31/16


12/31/89


12/31/84


12/31/84


12/31/84


12/31/84


12/31/84


12/31/84


12/31/84


12/31/84


12/31/84


7.33


5.70


9.68


5.18


5.32


6.67


10.93


6.63


10.77


10.91


8.46


7.18


9.22


155,628


328,914


474,960


480,248


476,534


422,939


88,718


363,085


4.73


10.00


14.44


14.60


14.49


12.86


2.70


11.04


Manager returns are net of fees.
1







Monthly Summary


Investment Performance and Market Values
For Periods Ending October 31, 2016


 


Returns


Month 3 Months CYTD 1 Year 3 Years 5 Years


Inception


Date


Inception


Return


Market Value


$(000) Percent


Public Real Assets Composite


Private Equity Composite


Managed Short Term Composite


Dallas Total Fund


     Policy Index                    


Indices


     MSCI ACWI (N)


     Wilshire 5000


     Standard & Poor’s 500


     MSCI ACWI X US IMI Index (N)


     MSCI EAFE Index (N)


     Barclays Aggregate


     Citigroup High Yield Cash Pay


     Wilshire Real Est. Secs


     Alerian MLP Index


-5.25


0.31


0.03


-1.63


-1.24


-1.70


-2.03


-1.82


-1.61


-2.05


-0.76


0.25


-5.43


-4.45


-2.03


0.58


0.09


-0.90


-0.64


-0.76


-1.69


-1.67


0.28


-0.77


-0.94


3.08


-10.38


-3.96


14.14


2.80


0.24


6.73


8.63


4.79


6.24


5.87


4.37


-0.35


4.99


15.71


4.06


10.78


-0.61


3.93


0.28


4.31


4.80


2.05


4.63


4.51


0.75


-3.23


4.37


9.72


5.70


-1.80


-1.28


10.38


0.12


4.57


4.45


3.21


8.36


8.84


-1.09


-1.31


3.48


3.99


11.02


-7.07


9.07


0.11


8.22


7.97


8.03


13.36


13.56


3.98


4.99


2.90


6.68


11.60


2.00


12/31/11


 5/31/09


12/31/89


12/31/84


12/31/84


12/31/84


12/31/84


12/31/84


12/31/84


12/31/84


12/31/84


12/31/84


12/31/84


12/31/84


7.62


13.12


2.53


9.13


9.82


10.77


10.91


8.46


7.18


9.22


265,474


170,122


62,347


3,288,970


8.07


5.17


1.90


100.00


Manager returns are net of fees.
2







Monthly Summary


Investment Performance and Market Values
For Periods Ending October 31, 2016


 


Returns


Month 3 Months CYTD 1 Year 3 Years 5 Years


Inception


Date


Inception


Return


Market Value


$(000) Percent


Northern Trust Global Equity


     MSCI AC World IMI Index (N)     


Wellington


     MSCI ACWI (N)                   


     MSCI ACWI (N) + 2%              


Global Equity Composite


     MSCI ACWI (N)                   


Indices


     MSCI AC World IMI Index (N)


     MSCI ACWI (N)


-1.92


-1.94


-2.14


-1.70


-1.53


-2.03


-1.70


-1.94


-1.70


-0.79


-0.89


-1.20


-0.76


-0.27


-1.00


-0.76


-0.89


-0.76


5.33


4.93


-0.14


4.79


6.45


2.49


4.79


4.93


4.79


2.82


2.34


-2.53


2.05


4.05


0.04


2.05


2.34


2.05


5.08


3.21


5.21


2.06


3.21


3.23


3.21


8.19


8.03


 9/30/15


 9/30/15


 8/31/12


 8/31/12


 8/31/12


 8/31/12


 8/31/12


 8/31/12


 8/31/12


9.77


9.27


11.76


8.20


10.20


7.33


8.20


8.41


8.20


76,657


78,971


155,628


49.26


50.74


100.00


Manager returns are net of fees.
3







Monthly Summary


Investment Performance and Market Values
For Periods Ending October 31, 2016


 


Returns


Month 3 Months CYTD 1 Year 3 Years 5 Years


Inception


Date


Inception


Return


Market Value


$(000) Percent


Acadian Global Low Vol.


     MSCI ACWI (N)                   


     MSCI ACWI (N) + 2%              


     MSCI ACWI Min Vol (N)           


BlackRock Global Low Vol.


     MSCI ACWI Min Vol (N)           


Global Low Volatility Composite


     MSCI ACWI Min Vol (N)           


Indices


     MSCI ACWI Min Vol (N)


     MSCI ACWI (N)


-3.17


-1.70


-1.53


-3.00


-2.99


-3.00


-3.08


-3.00


-3.00


-1.70


-4.61


-0.76


-0.27


-5.22


-5.08


-5.22


-4.85


-5.22


-5.22


-0.76


7.21


4.79


6.45


7.27


7.78


7.27


7.50


7.27


7.27


4.79


4.85


2.05


4.05


6.49


7.08


6.49


5.97


6.49


6.49


2.05


6.97


3.21


9.65


8.03


 6/30/15


 6/30/15


 6/30/15


 6/30/15


 6/30/15


 6/30/15


 6/30/15


 6/30/15


 6/30/15


 6/30/15


4.99


-0.26


1.74


5.82


6.39


5.82


5.70


5.82


5.82


-0.26


163,540


165,374


328,914


49.72


50.28


100.00


Manager returns are net of fees.
4







Monthly Summary


Investment Performance and Market Values
For Periods Ending October 31, 2016


 


Returns


Month 3 Months CYTD 1 Year 3 Years 5 Years


Inception


Date


Inception


Return


Market Value


$(000) Percent


Northern Trust S&P 500 (Lending)


     Standard & Poor’s 500           


T. Rowe Price


     Standard & Poor’s 500           


     Standard & Poor’s 500 + 1%      


Domestic Equity Enhanced Index Comp


Indices


     Wilshire 5000


     Standard & Poor’s 500


     Russell 2000


     Russell 1000 Value


-1.82


-1.82


-1.42


-1.82


-1.74


-1.42


-2.03


-1.82


-4.75


-1.55


-1.69


-1.67


-1.11


-1.67


-1.42


-2.31


-1.69


-1.67


-1.99


-1.00


5.89


5.87


5.67


5.87


6.70


4.23


6.24


5.87


6.16


8.29


4.55


4.51


4.77


4.51


5.51


3.21


4.63


4.51


4.11


6.37


8.90


8.84


9.13


8.84


9.84


8.16


8.36


8.84


4.12


7.59


13.62


13.56


13.84


13.56


14.56


13.07


13.36


13.56


11.51


13.31


12/31/94


12/31/94


 3/31/06


 3/31/06


 3/31/06


 2/28/06


12/31/89


12/31/89


12/31/89


12/31/89


9.39


9.34


7.58


7.05


8.05


6.96


9.29


9.22


9.12


9.56


207,329


136,246


136,246


43.65


28.69


28.69


Manager returns are net of fees.
5







Monthly Summary


Investment Performance and Market Values
For Periods Ending October 31, 2016


Returns


Month 3 Months CYTD 1 Year 3 Years 5 Years


Inception


Date


Inception


Return


Market Value


$(000) Percent


Northern Trust Russell 2000 Growth


     Russell 2000 Growth             


Systematic Financial


     Russell 2000                    


     Russell 2000 + 1.25%            


Channing Capital *


     Russell 2000 Value              


     Russell 2000 Value + 1.25%      


Redwood Investments


     Russell 2000 Growth             


     Russell 2000 Growth +1.25%      


Domestic Equity Small Cap Composite


Domestic Equity Composite


     Custom Benchmark                


Indices


     Wilshire 5000


     Standard & Poor’s 500


     Russell 2000


     Russell 1000 Value


-3.91


-4.75


-4.65


-2.49


-3.29


-3.18


-7.01


-6.21


-6.11


-4.21


-2.39


-2.03


-2.03


-1.82


-4.75


-1.55


-1.98


-1.99


-1.68


-1.53


-0.10


0.21


-1.94


-1.87


-1.69


-1.69


-1.67


-1.99


-1.00


7.60


6.16


7.20


8.78


11.69


12.73


5.94


5.28


6.24


6.24


5.87


6.16


8.29


7.96


4.11


5.36


3.33


8.81


10.06


4.51


4.08


4.63


4.63


4.51


4.11


6.37


7.22


4.12


5.37


5.44


7.62


8.36


8.36


8.84


4.12


7.59


13.70


11.51


12.76


11.77


12.76


13.36


13.36


13.56


11.51


13.31


 9/30/14


 9/30/14


 7/31/03


 7/31/03


 7/31/03


11/30/13


11/30/13


11/30/13


 9/30/16


 9/30/16


 9/30/16


 5/31/03


12/31/89


12/31/89


12/31/89


12/31/89


12/31/89


12/31/89


10.28


8.60


9.85


3.34


3.24


4.49


-7.01


-6.21


-6.11


9.00


9.68


9.61


9.29


9.22


9.12


9.56


5


64,520


36,277


30,584


131,386


474,960


0.00


13.58


7.64


6.44


27.66


100.00


* Next Generation Manager. Manager returns are net of fees.
6







Monthly Summary


Investment Performance and Market Values
For Periods Ending October 31, 2016


Returns


Month 3 Months CYTD 1 Year 3 Years 5 Years


Inception


Date


Inception


Return


Market Value


$(000) Percent


Acadian International


     Custom Benchmark                


     Custom Benchmark + 2%           


Baring International


     MSCI ACWI X US (N)              


     MSCI ACWI X US (N) + 1.25%      


AQR Capital Management


     Custom Benchmark                


     Custom Benchmark + 1.5%         


International Equity Composite


     Custom Benchmark                


Indices


     MSCI ACWI X US IMI Index (N)


     MSCI ACWI X US (N)


     MSCI ACWI X US Small Cap (N)


     MSCI EAFE Index (N)


     MSCI Emerging Mkts (N)


-0.37


-2.63


-2.47


-0.91


-1.44


-1.33


-0.29


-1.44


-1.31


-0.55


-1.61


-1.61


-1.44


-2.63


-2.05


0.24


1.51


-0.47


0.03


1.15


0.41


0.72


2.61


0.41


0.78


1.81


0.28


0.28


0.41


-0.47


-0.77


4.05


8.68


4.86


6.53


2.04


4.30


5.34


4.70


4.30


5.55


4.43


4.37


4.37


4.30


4.86


-0.35


16.29


7.63


4.22


6.22


-1.58


0.23


1.48


2.18


0.23


1.73


1.74


0.75


0.75


0.23


4.22


-3.23


9.27


2.21


1.57


3.57


-1.37


-1.49


-0.24


0.15


-1.49


0.01


0.00


-1.09


-1.09


-1.49


1.57


-1.31


-2.05


9.00


6.28


8.28


3.52


3.64


4.89


6.17


3.64


5.14


5.81


3.98


3.98


3.64


6.28


4.99


0.55


 3/31/89


 3/31/89


 3/31/89


 3/31/88


 3/31/88


 3/31/88


 3/31/06


 3/31/06


 3/31/06


12/31/89


12/31/89


12/31/89


12/31/89


12/31/89


12/31/89


12/31/89


8.23


5.68


7.68


6.36


4.81


6.06


2.23


1.43


2.93


5.18


4.19


3.96


102,621


186,768


190,859


480,248


21.37


38.89


39.74


100.00


Manager returns are net of fees.
7







Monthly Summary


Investment Performance and Market Values
For Periods Ending October 31, 2016


 


Returns


Month 3 Months CYTD 1 Year 3 Years 5 Years


Inception


Date


Inception


Return


Market Value


$(000) Percent


Advantus Capital Management


     Barclays Aggregate              


     Barclays Aggregate + 0.5%       


Aberdeen Global Fixed Income


     Barclays Aggregate              


     Barclays Aggregate + 0.5%       


Garcia Hamilton *


     Barclays Aggregate              


     Barclays Aggregate + 0.5%       


Global Fixed Income Composite


     Barclays Aggregate              


Indices


     10 yr Treasury Bellwethers Index


     Barclays Aggregate


-0.55


-0.76


-0.72


-0.65


-0.76


-0.72


-0.85


-0.76


-0.72


-0.64


-0.76


-1.89


-0.76


-0.30


-0.94


-0.81


-0.53


-0.94


-0.81


-1.15


-0.94


-0.81


-0.53


-0.94


-3.06


-0.94


6.36


4.99


5.40


5.75


4.99


5.40


4.76


4.99


5.40


5.85


4.99


5.12


4.99


5.74


4.37


4.87


4.86


4.37


4.87


4.64


4.37


4.87


5.19


4.37


4.26


4.37


4.47


3.48


3.98


3.57


3.48


3.98


4.23


3.48


3.98


4.06


3.48


4.35


3.48


4.11


2.90


3.40


3.24


2.90


3.40


3.70


2.90


3.09


2.90


 6/30/07


 6/30/07


 6/30/07


 4/30/07


 4/30/07


 4/30/07


10/31/13


10/31/13


10/31/13


 9/30/95


 9/30/95


 9/30/95


 9/30/95


5.10


4.81


5.31


5.30


4.60


5.10


4.23


3.48


3.98


5.32


5.51


5.48


5.51


200,419


203,656


72,460


476,534


42.06


42.74


15.21


100.00


* Next Generation Manager. Manager returns are net of fees.
8







Monthly Summary


Investment Performance and Market Values
For Periods Ending October 31, 2016


 


Returns


Month 3 Months CYTD 1 Year 3 Years 5 Years


Inception


Date


Inception


Return


Market Value


$(000) Percent


Oaktree Capital Management


     Citigroup HY Cash Pay Capped    


     Citigroup High Yield Cash Pay   


     Citigroup HY Cash Pay + 1%      


BlackRock


     Citigroup HY Cash Pay Capped    


     Citigroup High Yield Cash Pay   


     Citigroup HY Cash Pay + 1%      


High Yield Composite


     Citigroup High Yield Cash Pay   


Indices


     10 yr Treasury Bellwethers Index


     91-Day Treasury Bill


     Citigroup High Yield Cash Pay


0.44


0.27


0.25


0.34


0.04


0.27


0.25


0.34


0.24


0.25


-1.89


0.03


0.25


2.84


3.08


3.08


3.33


2.47


3.08


3.08


3.33


2.66


3.08


-3.06


0.09


3.08


14.19


15.49


15.71


16.55


11.05


15.49


15.71


16.55


12.61


15.71


5.12


0.27


15.71


8.51


9.54


9.72


10.72


6.50


9.54


9.72


10.72


7.50


9.72


4.26


0.31


9.72


3.52


3.95


3.99


4.99


3.86


3.95


3.99


4.99


4.09


3.99


4.35


0.12


3.99


6.11


6.58


6.68


7.68


6.42


6.58


6.68


7.68


6.51


6.68


3.09


0.11


6.68


 1/31/97


 1/31/97


 1/31/97


 1/31/97


 9/30/06


 9/30/06


 9/30/06


 9/30/06


12/31/96


12/31/96


12/31/96


12/31/96


12/31/96


6.99


7.04


8.04


6.60


7.17


7.28


8.28


6.67


7.05


5.55


2.31


7.02


211,611


211,328


422,939


50.03


49.97


100.00


Manager returns are net of fees.
9







Monthly Summary


Investment Performance and Market Values
For Periods Ending October 31, 2016


 


Returns


Month 3 Months CYTD 1 Year 3 Years 5 Years


Inception


Date


Inception


Return


Market Value


$(000) Percent


Neuberger Berman


     Custom Benchmark                


     Custom Benchmark + 1%           


Credit Opportunities Composite


     Custom Benchmark                


Indices


     ML High Yield Master II Constrained


     S&P LSTA Leverage Loan Index


     JPM EMBI Global Diversified


-0.89


-0.03


0.05


-0.89


-0.03


0.31


0.83


-1.24


1.81


2.21


2.46


1.81


2.21


3.23


2.46


0.93


15.68


8.61


13.35


10.18


6.53


11.70


4.54


3.43


6.77


7.07


4.82


6.57


 1/31/16


 1/31/16


 1/31/16


 1/31/16


 1/31/16


 1/31/16


 1/31/16


 1/31/16


10.93


13.46


14.21


10.93


13.46


17.54


9.32


13.55


88,718


88,718


100.00


100.00


Manager returns are net of fees.
10







Monthly Summary


Investment Performance and Market Values
For Periods Ending October 31, 2016


Returns


Month 3 Months CYTD 1 Year 3 Years 5 Years


Inception


Date


Inception


Return


Market Value


$(000) Percent


Adelante Capital Management *


     Wilshire Real Est. Secs         


     Wilshire Real Est. Secs +1%     


Security Capital


     Wilshire Real Est. Secs         


     Wilshire Real Est. Secs +1%     


REIT Composite


     Wilshire Real Est. Secs         


Heitman America Real Estate Trust, LP 
     NCREIF ODCE NOF                      


Invesco Core Real Estate USA, LLC 
     NCREIF ODCE NOF                      


Invesco II


     Invesco II Custom Benchmark     


Indices


     Wilshire REIT Index


     NCREIF ODCE GOF


-5.93


-5.43


-5.35


-5.19


-5.43


-5.35


-5.56


-5.43


0.00


0.00


0.00


0.00


-2.45


-2.45


-5.61


0.00


-10.49


-10.38


-10.13


-9.99


-10.38


-10.13


-10.24


-10.38


1.26


1.83


1.68


1.83


-2.56


-2.56


-10.64


2.07


0.27


4.06


4.90


2.94


4.06


4.90


1.61


4.06


6.53


5.80


6.90


5.80


-2.77


-2.77


3.59


6.52


0.88


5.70


6.70


4.54


5.70


6.70


2.71


5.70


10.40


9.09


9.57


9.09


-2.75


-2.75


5.22


10.07


10.29


11.02


12.02


10.50


11.02


12.02


10.40


11.02


11.67


11.42


12.22


11.42


-1.01


-1.01


10.68


12.45


11.00


11.60


12.60


10.52


11.60


12.60


10.77


11.60


11.90


11.34


11.43


11.34


11.39


12.40


 9/30/01


 9/30/01


 9/30/01


 9/30/01


 9/30/01


 9/30/01


 9/30/01


 9/30/01


11/30/10


11/30/10


11/30/10


11/30/10


 9/30/13


 9/30/13


12/31/89


12/31/89


10.31


10.92


11.92


10.68


10.92


11.92


10.58


10.92


13.15


12.48


12.49


12.48


-0.98


-0.98


9.93


7.33


77,743


77,975


155,717


86,814


68,988


51,565


21.41


21.48


42.89


23.91


19.00


14.20


* Next Generation Manager. Manager returns are net of fees.
11







Monthly Summary


Investment Performance and Market Values
For Periods Ending October 31, 2016


 


Returns


Month 3 Months CYTD 1 Year 3 Years 5 Years


Inception


Date


Inception


Return


Market Value


$(000) Percent


Private Core Real Estate Composite


     Custom Benchmark                


Total Real Estate Composite


     Custom Benchmark                


Indices


     Wilshire REIT Index


     NCREIF ODCE GOF


-0.61


-0.54


-2.80


-2.98


-5.61


0.00


0.47


0.86


-4.61


-4.87


-10.64


2.07


4.58


3.87


3.67


4.21


3.59


6.52


7.35


6.39


5.78


6.29


5.22


10.07


10.72


8.69


10.66


10.16


10.68


12.45


10.93


9.69


10.94


10.92


11.39


12.40


 9/30/10


 9/30/10


12/31/89


12/31/89


12/31/89


12/31/89


11.73


10.75


6.63


8.85


9.93


7.33


207,368


363,085


57.11


100.00


Manager returns are net of fees.
12







Monthly Summary


Investment Performance and Market Values
For Periods Ending October 31, 2016


 


Returns


Month 3 Months CYTD 1 Year 3 Years 5 Years


Inception


Date


Inception


Return


Market Value


$(000) Percent


Harvest Fund Advisors MLP


     Alerian MLP Index               


     Alerian MLP Index + 1.5%        


Atlantic Trust CIBC


     Alerian MLP Index               


     Alerian MLP Index + 1.5%        


Public Real Assets Composite


     Alerian MLP Index               


Indices


     Alerian MLP Index


     Standard & Poor’s 500


-5.30


-4.45


-4.33


-5.21


-4.45


-4.33


-5.25


-4.45


-4.45


-1.82


-2.50


-3.96


-3.59


-1.57


-3.96


-3.59


-2.03


-3.96


-3.96


-1.67


10.17


10.78


12.03


18.28


10.78


12.03


14.14


10.78


10.78


5.87


-3.15


-1.80


-0.30


1.98


-1.80


-0.30


-0.61


-1.80


-1.80


4.51


-2.13


-7.07


-5.57


-1.54


-7.07


-5.57


-1.28


-7.07


-7.07


8.84


2.00


13.56


12/31/11


12/31/11


12/31/11


12/31/11


12/31/11


12/31/11


12/31/11


12/31/11


12/31/11


12/31/11


6.43


0.94


2.44


8.26


0.94


2.44


7.62


0.94


0.94


13.88


130,850


134,624


265,474


49.29


50.71


100.00


Manager returns are net of fees.
13







Month-End Market 
Value


Commitment Value Cash Distributions Inception Date IRR Since Inception Multiple 3


GCM-CFIG 86,657,435                   135,000,000                1,016,325                     Jun-11 10.3% 1.3


Hamilton Lane Secondary Fund II 3,614,333                     25,000,000                   25,203,014                   Jul-09 9.9% 1.3


Hamilton Lane Secondary Fund III 15,410,357                   30,000,000                   12,150,873                   Nov-12 31.4% 1.6


Hamilton Lane Fund VII Composite 39,519,425                   50,000,000                   14,348,145                   Jan-10 7.8% 1.3


Hamilton Lane Fund VIII (Global) 16,522,353                   30,000,000                   1,341,060                     Nov-12 10.2% 1.2


Fairview Capital III * 5,498,939                     40,000,000                   62,624                          Aug-15 -25.0% 0.9


Hamilton Lane STIF 1 2,898,704                     -                                     -                                     Aug-09 -.- -.-


Total Private Equity Composite 170,121,546                310,000,000                54,122,041                  Jul-09 11.8% 1.5


Public Market Equivalent (PME) 2 190,479,479                15.1%


* Next Generation Manager
1 Total Value to Paid-in Capital ("TVPI") multiple calculation = (market value + distributions) / capital called


3 Private Equity cash account


Employees' Retirement Fund of the City of Dallas
Monthly Performance and Market Value Summary


Periods Ended 10/31/16


2 The Public Market Equivalent (PME) approach creates a hypothetical investment vehicle that mimics the private equity composite cash flows. The performance difference between the PME vehicle and the private equity portfolio is 
determined by their net asset value (NAV) at the end of the benchmarking period. The performance of the "public market" is simulated using the monthly S&P 500 index returns, plus a 300 BPs annual hurdle rate.


14







Monthly Summary


Investment Performance and Market Values
For Periods Ending October 31, 2016


 


Returns


Month 3 Months CYTD 1 Year 3 Years 5 Years


Inception


Date


Inception


Return


Market Value


$(000) Percent


Cash Account


Managed Short Term Composite


Indices


     91-Day Treasury Bill


0.03


0.03


0.03


0.09


0.09


0.09


0.24


0.24


0.27


0.28


0.28


0.31


0.12


0.12


0.12


0.11


0.11


0.11


12/31/87


12/31/89


12/31/89


2.95


2.53


3.10


62,347


62,347


100.00


100.00


Manager returns are net of fees.
15





		Slide Number 1










For period ending October 31,  2016
.


 


Retirements This Month YTD This Month YTD
Retirees & 


beneficiaries Disabilities Actives


   Age 14 141 14 176 Jan 6,751 192 7,412


   Service 3 30 3 43 Feb 6,774 193 7,411


   Rule of 78 3 62 3 62 Mar 6,784 192 7,458


   QDRO 2 9 0 8 April 6,795 189 7,491


       Total 22 242 20 289 May 6,810 188 7,543


June 6,836 188 7,534


Disability Retirements July 6,838 187 7,551


   Service 0 0 0 0 Aug 6,854 187 7,565


   Non-service 0 6 0 3 Sep 6,861 188 7,543


       Total 0 6 0 3 Oct 6,872 187 7,559


Benefits Paid 19,824,339.19$  195,569,401.29$  20,575,403.90$     202,524,020.54$    


Refunds 379,305.76$       3,606,670.51$      718,614.90$          4,914,393.66$        


Number of refunds 36 315 45 407


Contributions 7,937,276.15$    79,967,044.35$     8,414,972.52$       91,173,959.41$      


 


2015 2016 Members on record at month end








 
“Provide retirement and superior service to advance 
the financial security of our members” 
 


600 North Pearl Street ~ Suite 2450 ~ Dallas, Texas 75201-7415 ~ Telephone 214-580-7700 ~ FAX 214-580-3515 


Email:  retirement_fund@dallaserf.org ~ Web:  http://www.dallaserf.org/ 


MEMORANDUM 
 
 
TO: BOARD OF TRUSTEES 


FROM: CHERYL D. ALSTON, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 


SUBJECT: NOVEMBER 8, 2016 ERF BOARD MEETING  


DATE: NOVEMBER 3, 2016 
 


The Employees’ Retirement Fund of the City of Dallas Board of Trustees 
Meeting will be held on Tuesday, November 8, 2016, at 9:00 a.m. at 600 North 
Pearl Street, Suite 2450, Plaza of the Americas – South Tower. 
 
Enclosed is the agenda for the meeting. 
 
 
 


 





		The Employees’ Retirement Fund of the City of Dallas Board of Trustees Meeting will be held on Tuesday, November 8, 2016, at 9:00 a.m. at 600 North Pearl Street, Suite 2450, Plaza of the Americas – South Tower.

		Enclosed is the agenda for the meeting.






 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


AGENDA 
 


MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
 


EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT FUND OF THE CITY OF DALLAS 
 


TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 8, 2016 
 


600 NORTH PEARL STREET 
 


SUITE 2450 
 


PLAZA OF THE AMERICAS, SOUTH TOWER 
 


9:00 a.m. 







AGENDA 
NOVEMBER 8, 2016 
PAGE 2 
 
DISCUSSION AND APPROVAL OF:  
 
Minutes of October 11, 2016 
 
Consent Agenda of November 8, 2016 
 
Total Number of Retirees:  15  
 
Total Number of Survivors:  4 
 
Total Number of Termination/Redistribution of Survivor Benefits:  0 
 
Total Number of QDRO Benefits:  1 
 
Total Number of Small Estates:  4 
 
Total Number of Large Estates:  4 
 
Total Number of Disability Continuations:  0 
 
Total Number of Deferred Vested:  0 
 
Total Number of Final Calculations  0 
 
Total Number of Corrections  0 
 
Total Number of Resolution 2015-1 Re-Applications for Retirement Benefits 5 
 
Total Number of Resolution 2015-3 Re-Applications for Retirement Benefits 0 
 
 
INDIVIDUAL ITEMS – DISCUSSION AND/OR APPROVAL OF: 
 
 1. Trustee Election Results  
 
 2. CLOSED SESSION (MEDICAL DETERMINATIONS) 
 


Discussion of disability retirement applications will be closed to the public under 
the terms of Section 551.078 of the Texas Open Meeting Act. 
 
APPLICATIONS of total and permanent disability retirement: 


 
Total Number of Disability Applications: 4 


 
 







AGENDA 
NOVEMBER 8, 2016 
PAGE 3 
 
INDIVIDUAL ITEMS – DISCUSSION AND/OR APPROVAL OF: (continued) 
 
 3. Third Quarter 2016 Review by Thomas Toth and Ali Kazemi of Wilshire 


Associates (Attachments) 
 
 4. Review of Adelante Capital Management, LLC Performance and Action Plan  
 
 5. Private Equity Allocation to Hamilton Lane Secondary Fund IV (Attachment) 
 
 6. Resolution 2016-1 – Temporary Procedure Regarding Recognition of Marriage 


(Attachment) 
 
 7. Possible Attendance at: 
  


a. 2017 Teacher Retirement System of Texas (TRS) and Employees 
Retirement System of Texas (ERS) Emerging Manager Conference to be 
held January 19, 2017 (Attachment) 
 


b. Eighth Annual National Institute on Retirement Security (NIRS) Policy 
Conference to be held February 27-28, 2017 (Attachment) 
 


c. Council of Institutional Investors (CII) Spring Conference to be held 
February 27 - March 1, 2017 (Attachment) 


 
d. 8th Annual Global Real Assets Investment Forum to be held February 28-


March 1, 2017 (Attachment) 
 
 8. Highlights of Past Conference(s) 
 
 9. Reports and Recommendations by Executive Director and Staff: 
 


a. Asset Allocation Report 
 


b. Monthly Performance Report   
 


c. ERF at a Glance (Attachment) 
 







AGENDA 
NOVEMBER 8, 2016 
PAGE 4 
 
INDIVIDUAL ITEMS – DISCUSSION AND/OR APPROVAL OF: (continued) 
 
 
The term “Approval” in the wording of any Agenda item contained herein serves as 
notice that the Board may, in its discretion, dispose of any items by any action in the 
following non-exclusive list:  amendment, approval, disapproval, deferral, table, take no 
action, and receive and file. 
 
At any time during the consideration of the above items, the Board may go into Closed 
Executive Session under the provisions of Sections 551.071 (legal), 551.072 (real 
estate), 551.074 (personnel) or 551.078 (disability) of the Texas Open Meetings Act.   
 
At any time during Open Session, the Board may continue discussion and approval on 
any item discussed in a Closed Executive Session. 
 
Note:  An expression of preference or a preliminary vote may be taken by the Board on 
any of the briefing items.  
 
Texas’ new and modified handgun “carry” laws went into effect January 1, 2016.  
Pursuant to the Texas law, government entities are permitted to ban handguns at duly 
noticed Open Meetings held in accordance with Texas Government Code Chapter 551.  
Please see the required supplemental notice advising all visitors who wish to attend this 
meeting that all handguns are banned.  If you would otherwise be carrying a handgun, 
we would encourage you to safely store it before coming up to our offices. 







Handgun Prohibition Notice for Meetings 
of Governmental Entities 


 
 


Pursuant to Section 30.06, Penal Code (trespass by license holder with a 


concealed handgun), a person licensed under Subchapter H, Chapter 


411, Government Code (handgun licensing law), may not enter this 


property with a concealed handgun." 


"De acuerdo con la sección 30.06 del código penal (ingreso sin 


autorización de un titular de una licencia con una pistola oculta), una 


persona con licencia según el subcapítulo h, capítulo 411, código del 


gobierno (ley sobre licencias para portar pistolas), no puede ingresar a 


esta propiedad con una pistola oculta." 


 


"Pursuant to Section 30.07, Penal Code (trespass by license holder with 


an openly carried handgun), a person licensed under Subchapter H, 


Chapter 411, Government Code (handgun licensing law), may not enter 


this property with a handgun that is carried openly." 


"De acuerdo con la sección 30.07 del código penal (ingreso sin 


autorización de un titular de una licencia con una pistola a la vista), una 


persona con licencia según el subcapítulo h, capítulo 411, código del 


gobierno (ley sobre licencias para portar pistolas), no puede ingresar a 


esta propiedad con una pistola a la vista." 
 


 


 
 
 
 


 



http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/GetStatute.aspx?Code=PE&Value=30.07&Date=12/12/2015



		AGENDA

		MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES

		EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT FUND OF THE CITY OF DALLAS

		SUITE 2450

		PLAZA OF THE AMERICAS, SOUTH TOWER

		9:00 a.m.

		At any time during the consideration of the above items, the Board may go into Closed Executive Session under the provisions of Sections 551.071 (legal), 551.072 (real estate), 551.074 (personnel) or 551.078 (disability) of the Texas Open Meetings Act.

		At any time during Open Session, the Board may continue discussion and approval on any item discussed in a Closed Executive Session.

		Note:  An expression of preference or a preliminary vote may be taken by the Board on any of the briefing items.






 
 
 


MINUTES 
 


MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
 


EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT FUND OF THE CITY OF DALLAS 
 


TUESDAY, OCTOBER 11, 2016 
 


600 NORTH PEARL STREET 
 


SUITE 2450 
 


PLAZA OF THE AMERICAS, SOUTH TOWER 
 


9:00 a.m. 
 
 


  Meeting: John D. Jenkins and Carla D. Brewer presiding 
 


Present: John D. Jenkins, Carla D. Brewer, Randy Bowman, Craig D. 
Kinton, Dr. John W. Peavy III, and Tina B. Richardson 


 
 Absent: Lee M. Kleinman  


 
Staff: Cheryl D. Alston, David K. Etheridge, Natalie Jenkins Sorrell, Minoti 


Dhanaraj, Melissa Harris, Deirdre Taylor, and C. Kay Watson 
 


 Others Present: Ali Kazemi, Gary Lawson, and Thomas Toth 
 
 
With a quorum present, the regular meeting of the Employees’ Retirement Fund Board 
of Trustees was called to order at 9:20 a.m. by Carla D. Brewer, Vice Chair. 
 
 
DISCUSSION AND APPROVAL OF: 
 
The Vice Chair presented the Minutes of the Employees’ Retirement Fund Board of 
Trustees September 13, 2016 regular meeting for approval.   
 
Mr. Kinton moved approval of the Minutes of the Employees’ Retirement Fund Board of 
Trustees September 13, 2016 regular meeting.  Ms. Richardson seconded the motion 
and the Minutes of the Employees’ Retirement Fund Board of Trustees September 13, 
2016 regular meeting was unanimously approved. 







MINUTES 
OCTOBER 11, 2016 
 
 
DISCUSSION AND APPROVAL OF: (continued) 
 
Consent Agenda of October 11, 2016 
 
Total Number of Retirees:  20  
 
Total Number of Survivors:  7 
 
Total Number of Termination/Redistribution of Survivor Benefits:  0 
 
Total Number of QDRO Benefits:  0 
 
Total Number of Small Estates:  2 
 
Total Number of Large Estates:  3 
 
Total Number of Disability Continuations:  0 
 
Total Number of Deferred Vested:  0 
 
Total Number of Final Calculations  0 
 
Total Number of Corrections  0 
 
Total Number of Resolution 2015-1 Re-Applications for Retirement Benefits 0 
 
Total Number of Resolution 2015-3 Re-Applications for Retirement Benefits 0 
 
The Vice Chair presented the Consent Agenda of the Employees’ Retirement Fund 
Board of Trustees October 11, 2016 regular meeting for approval. 
 
Mr. Kinton moved approval of the Consent Agenda of the Employees’ Retirement Fund 
Board of Trustees October 11, 2016 regular meeting.  Mr. Bowman seconded the 
motion and the Consent Agenda of the Employees’ Retirement Fund Board of Trustees 
October 11, 2016 regular meeting was unanimously approved. 
 
INDIVIDUAL ITEMS – DISCUSSION AND/OR APPROVAL OF: 
 
 1. Presentation by Thomas Toth and Ali Kazemi of Wilshire Associates 
 


a. Active Management Review (Attachment) 
 
Mr. Jenkins arrived at 10:05 a.m. 
 


b. Real Estate Investment Trusts (REITs) Asset Class and Active 
Management Review (Attachment) 







MINUTES 
OCTOBER 11, 2016 
 
 
INDIVIDUAL ITEMS – DISCUSSION AND/OR APPROVAL OF: 


 
The meeting recessed at 10:52 a.m.  The meeting reconvened at 11:09 a.m.  
 
 1. Presentation by Thomas Toth and Ali Kazemi of Wilshire Associates (continued) 
 
  c. Risk Mitigation Strategies (Attachment) 


 
There was no motion made on this item. 


 
 2. Possible Attendance at: 


 
a. 2016 Invesco Real Estate US Client Conference to be held November 8-


10, 2016 (Attachment) 
 


b. Institutional Investor Forums and the Centre for Investor Intelligence (CIE) 
host the Global Senior Investor Symposium to be held November 15-18, 
2016 (Attachment) 


 
c. 4th Annual ConsortiumWest by RG Associates to be held January 25-26, 


2017 (Attachment) 
 
d. National Conference on Public Employee Retirement Systems (NCPERS) 


Healthcare Symposium and Legislative Conference to be held January 29-
31, 2017 (Attachment) 


 
Mr. Bowman made a motion to approve four ERF representatives to attend the 
2016 Invesco Real Estate US Client Conference, two ERF representatives to 
attend the Institutional Investor Forums and the Centre for Investor 
Intelligence (CIE) host the Global Senior Investor Symposium, and three ERF 
representatives to attend the National Conference on Public Employee 
Retirement Systems (NCPERS) Healthcare Symposium and Legislative 
Conference.  Following a second by Ms. Richardson, the motion was 
unanimously approved. 


  
 3. Highlights of Past Conference(s) 
 


There was no motion made on this item. 
 
 4. Reports and Recommendations by Executive Director and Staff: 
 


a. Asset Allocation Report 
 


There was no motion made on this item. 
 







MINUTES 
OCTOBER 11, 2016 
 
 
INDIVIDUAL ITEMS – DISCUSSION AND/OR APPROVAL OF: (continued) 
 
 4. Reports and Recommendations by Executive Director and Staff: 
 


b. Monthly Performance Report   
 


There was no motion made on this item. 
 


c. ERF at a Glance (Attachment) 
 


There was no motion made on this item. 
 


The meeting recessed at 12:30 p.m.  The meeting reconvened at 12:45 p.m.  
 
 5. CLOSED SESSION (PERSONNEL) 
 


Discussion of personnel matters will be closed to the public under the terms of 
Section 551.074 of the Texas Open Meetings Act. 


 
The meeting then went into Closed Session at 12:45 p.m. under the provisions of 
Sections 551.074 (personnel) of the Texas Open Meetings Act for the purpose of 
discussing personnel matters.   
 
  Performance Review for Executive Director  
 
The meeting reconvened at 1:28 p.m.  No other matters were discussed in Closed 
Session.   


 
 There was no motion made on this item. 
 
The Executive Director stated that there was no further business to come before the 
Board.  The Chair adjourned the meeting at 1:28 p.m. 
 
All materials presented at the meeting of the Board of Trustees are now part of the 
Official Minutes. 
 
            APPROVED:       __________________________________ 
    John D. Jenkins, Chair, Board of Trustees 
 
 
ATTEST:   _______________________________ 
        Cheryl D. Alston, Executive Director 
 
 
        _______________________________ 
        C. Kay Watson, Board Coordinator 





		MINUTES

		MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES

		EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT FUND OF THE CITY OF DALLAS

		TUESDAY, OCTOBER 11, 2016



		SUITE 2450

		PLAZA OF THE AMERICAS, SOUTH TOWER

		9:00 a.m.



